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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B #5922

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards)

(IRERA RS ERIRE)

Expressed in RMB millions

AARE BT

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+—RHILFE

Revenues

Other operating income

Operating expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Finance income/(cost), net

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company

Earning/(loss) per share
attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company
(RMB)™

At 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H

Cash and cash equivalents

Net current liabilities

Non-current assets

Long term borrowings, including
current portion

Obligations under finance leases,
including current portion

Total share capital and reserves
attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company

BEE

Hih &R Wk

BEXH

REEF (BR)
BRI/ (i) - H8
BEAIFLE, (BHE)
ARRIERFTEERIGFE
), (E1R)

RAREEREE RSN
AN (E1R)
(AR#T)O

REeLREFE
FrBaf

ERBEE
RHIER - BERE AN

BERERE
BERE N

RABEERFEE RIS
HBARA R

2007 2008 2009 2010
42,534 41,073 38,989 73,804 82,403
488 672 1,288 658 1,062
(42,894) (56,828) (38,456) (68,765) (79,292)
128 (15,083) 1,821 5,697 4,173
162 (267) (1,549) (347) 561
378 (15,256) 249 5,418 4,841
379 (15,269) 169 4,958 4,576
0.08 (3.14) 0.03 0.44
1,655 3,451 1,735 3,078 3,861
(26,098) (43,458) (28,648) (27,184) (29,679)
57,949 62,652 64,988 91,254 101,031
(14,675) (15,628) (16,928) (27,3793) (30,321)
(16,452) (20,809) (19,370) (19,208) (20,261)
2,361 (13,097) 1,235 15,271 20,126

M The calculation of earnings/(loss) per share for 2007 and 2008 are based on the consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company and 4,866,950,000 shares in issue. The calculation of earnings per share for 2009 is based on the consolidated profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of shares of 6,436,828,000; the calculation of earnings per share for 2010 is based
on the consolidated profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of 11,149,426,000 ordinary
shares in issue. The calculation of earnings per share for 2011 is based on the consolidated profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
divided by 11,276,539,000 ordinary shares in issue.

n o ZBTL . ZTTN\FEREF(BR)RBEEFENERRERSSE S RIEER, (B18) KRB 21T $04,866,950,0008:1 8 : —TTAFHER
S RAREE FE M ARA AERS A & IR FIR AT /N T @A A 42 T 1905 £16,436,828,0000+1 & : —T—TFMEHEFIZBIEEFENARA
RS IS B PR MR A B I TSN AR A0 DA P A9 B 2011,149,426,00088 5 T8 » — 2 ——E B REN 2R IBE FEHAQ ST E & RIEEFR
IAZETTIEYMNE 3BA%11,276,539,0000% 5 & ©

REVENUES
SR

(RMB millions) (A R#EETT)
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SUI\/II\/IARY OF ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS DATA

GETBUR M E B BUER &
(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

(R EARKNBELEGHEARE)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
BHE_T—F+_A=1+—HILFENH

Net profit FAE

Income from main operations FEEBFE
Income from other operations HhEERFE
Income from investments & Wam

Net income outside business & HEINK SRR

MAJOR ACCOUNTING DATA & FINANCIAL INDICATORS
EER BB BEIER

(Expressed in RMB Million) (A R¥EE&T)

1. Operation revenue EEIA

Net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of (@R AR BIERIEEE
the Company FFE

3. Total assets mEE

4. Shareholders’ equity & R fE =

5. Earnings per share (RMB) W= (ARETT)
6. Net assets per share (RMB) HRFEE(ARET)

Notes:
1. Calculation of major financial indicators:
Earnings per share = net profit + weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

RMB milion AREBHETT

4,902
12,211
1,316

128
1,570

2010 2011
74,958.11 83,974.51
5,380.38 4,886.70
100,810.12 112,215.15
16,576.18 22,145.41
0.48 0.43

1.38 1.78

Net assets per share = shareholders’ equity at the end of the year + total number of ordinary shares at the end of the year

1. EBRMBEGSAEDENT
G = FFE -+ ETEIND BRI T I8
BROFEAE = FERBCRER ~FERE BRI E2

PERMZE

=R DB AR

2011 47 5



SUMMARY OF SELECTED OPERATING DATA

TEZSBBEME

Capacity
ATK (available tonne - kilometers)
(million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

ASK (available seat - kilometers)
(million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

AFTK (available freight tonne -
kilometers) (million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

Hours flown (thousand)

Traffic
RTK (revenue tonne - kilometers)
(million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

RPK (revenue passenger -
kilometers) (million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

RFTK (revenue freight tonne -
kilometers) (million)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

Number of passengers carried
(thousand)
— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes

B
ARABAERATK)(EE)

— B
— B AAR
— MR AAR

ARAEAEASK(EE)

— B
— Bl AAR
— MR AAR

] A E &0 A E(AFTK)
(B8)
— B
— Bl AAR
—HmAAR

AT (F)

EnE
WABAERTK)(EE)

— B
— Bl AAR
— MR AAR

FEALERPK(EE)

—BIARfAR
— Bl AAR
— MR AAR

EHHEM L E(RFTK)
(B8)
— B
— BB AAR
— MR AAR

BEREAR(T)
—BIARfAR

— BB AAR
— R AAR

Weight of freight carried (kg) (million) EH#HEE(LAT)(EE)

— Domestic routes
— International routes
— Regional routes
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— B
— Bl AAR
— R AAR

2011
—E——f

18,662.50

9,908.43
7,975.16
778.91

127,890.81

88,012.97
34,685.25
5,192.59

7,152.33

1,987.26
4,853.49
311.58

1,288.40

13,402.08

7,256.76
5,659.85
485.47

100,895.06

70,932.87
26,151.29
3,810.90

4,420.57

934.14
3,338.13
148.30

68,724.96

58,761.38
7,246.70
2,716.88

1,443.05
699.43
626.26
117.37

17,887.36

9,638.94
7,633.23
815.19

119,450.88

83,421.13
30,453.49
5,676.26

7,136.78

2,031.04
4,792.41
313.33

1,195.10

12,598.98

6,886.62
5,196.12
516.23

93,162.76

66,309.84
22,769.29
4,073.63

4,308.47

980.43
3,172.67
166.37

64,930.43

55,456.27
6,600.72
2,873.45

1,464.91
729.01
617.12
118.79

Change
ZHEE

4.33%

3.87%
5.87%
-4.45%

7.07%

5.50%
13.90%
-6.88%

0.22%

-2.16%
1.27%
-0.56%

7.81%

6.37%

5.37%
8.92%
-5.96%

8.31%

6.97%
14.85%
-6.45%

2.60%

-4.72%
5.22%
-4.55%

5.84%

5.96%
9.79%
-5.45%

-1.49%
-4.06%

1.48%
-1.20%




SUMMARY OF SELECTED OPERATING DATA
TREEHERE

2011 2010 Change
—p—— % 208
Load factors HEX
Overall load factor (%) RERER(%) 71.81 70.44 1.37 pts
— Domestic routes — Bl AMmAR 73.24 72.19 1.05 pts
— International routes — Bl MR 70.97 68.98 1.99 pts
- Regional routes — Hb [ AR 62.33 63.33 -1.00 pts
Passenger load factor (%) EERE(%) 78.89 77.98 0.91 pts
— Domestic routes — B4R 80.59 79.49 1.10 pts
— International routes — B M AR 75.40 74.77 0.63 pts
— Regional routes — Mo [E M4 73.39 73.05 0.34 pts
Freight load factor (%) EBMHER(%) 61.81 60.37 1.44 pts
— Domestic routes — Bl AMmAR 47.01 48.27 -1.26 pts
— International routes — B MR 68.78 66.20 2.58 pts
— Regional routes — B[R MAR 47.60 49.59 -1.99 pts
Yields and costs Wz R AR A BT
Revenue tonne - kilometers yield WA A B S (ARY) 5.71 5.35 6.73%
(RMB)
— Domestic routes — Bl AMmAR 6.93 6.30 10%
— International routes — B M AR 3.97 3.87 2.58%
- Regional routes — [ AR 7.7 7.52 2.53%
Passenger - kilometers yield (RMB) BEEARABERFZ(ARE) 0.68 0.63 7.94%
— Domestic routes — Bl AMmAR 0.69 0.64 7.81%
— International routes — B MR 0.63 0.60 5%
— Regional routes — Hb [ AR 0.81 0.78 3.85%
Freight tonne - kilometers yield BEWABERBZ(ARYE) 1.83 1.95 -6.15%
(RMB)
— Domestic routes — Bl AMmAR 1.44 1.28 12.5%
— International routes — BB A AR 1.82 2.04 -10.78%
— Regional routes — M [ AR 4.49 4.54 -1.1%

FEESMZERGERAT 2011 F§ /




FLEET
PP

FLEET STRUCTURE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011 A E——Ft+ A =1+—HB#X
B/
Self-owned Under
and under operating
No. Model finance lease lease Sub-total
=L 95
755 i) BEMEE KEHE /INEF
Passenger aircraft
B
1 A340 - 600 5 - 5
2 A340 - 300 5 - 5
3 A330 - 300 8 7 15
4 A330 - 200 4 3 7
5 A300 - 600R 7 - 7
6 A321 22 - 22
7 A320 88 24 112
8 A319 5 10 15
9 B767 6 1 7
10 B757 - 200 5 5 10
11 B737 - 800 16 48 64
12 B737 - 700 35 19 54
13 B737 - 300 16 - 16
14 CRJ - 200 8 - 8
15 EMB - 145LR 10 - 10
16 Hawker800 1 - 1

Total number of passenger aircraft

BEHES 241 117 358
Freighter

B

17 MD-11F - 3 3
18 A300 - 600R 3 3
19 B747 2 3 5
20 B757 — 200F - 2 2
21 B777F - 6 6

Total number of freighters
EHMA 5 14 19

Total number of aircraft

TR M 4 246 131 377
Percentage
tt i 65.25% 34.75% 100%

8 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011




FLEET
HEFx

FUTURE AIRCRAFT DELIVERY PLAN R A AT ET 2
As of 31 December 2011, details of the aircraft to be delivered to the Group EHE-ZT——F+-_A=+—H  NEEKRK[TEHT
are set out as follows: BT -

=L VAR o

Number of aircraft to be delivered in
RRFEXINRENE =

Model 2012 2013 2014 2015
%t} —E—CF —E—=F —E—F —ZE—RF
A319 7 3 4 2
A320 19 8 6 8
A321 5 6 6 6
A330 - 200 6 8 7 5
A330 - 300 - 1 2
B737 - 700 7 6
B737 - 800 10 16 16 29

FEESMEROBRAF 2011 FR 9



MILESTONES
FRRSL

The Group announced its
accession to SkyTeam.

AEESMHEXMAREHEE o
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27/2

The Company sent the
first chartered plane to
Malta to evacuate 272
Chinese citizens from
Libya.

MG RMEMERE
Wtz 12721 BB A B
ZRHFASR -

G

16-19/3

The Company sent several
additional large planes to
evacuate more than 3,200
Chinese citizens from affected
areas in Japan.

FRAIEIR AT e B AN R
Z@Fh A AE3200% A °

BEESREERIMA
FABHARILR

o

The registered trademark of “FI I 5 75
22 CHINA EASTERN and its logo” was
recognised as “China Famous Brand (-2
B 5t P 1Z)” by the Trademark Office of
the State Administration for Industry &
Commerce of the PRC.

ERImERmERREPREAME
CHINA EASTERN X [ [+ mgiZ Al =

LI




29/3

By introducing a scheduled
flight between Shanghai
and Rome, Italy, the
Company became the first
airline to have a direct flight
between Shanghai and
Rome.

RnFE LBEHE AT
SHE HAERMIL - R
E%Eﬂtﬁﬂ%%mm

L\Fl°

31/5

The new China Cargo
Airlines held a grand
opening ceremony in
Shanghai.

e B S EME AR

£ LR TEERH
BRI ©

17/11

The Company
was granted the
“Golden Phoenix
yAward” by the

= China Capital
Market Annual
Conference.

19/11

The first brand-
new A330-200
aircraft with 180
degree fully flat
seats for Business
Class joined the
fleet.

REEE—LEEFH
NIER180E R T
55A330-200/1 82
HERX o

PR ME

The Company and
Microsoft (China)
Co., Ltd. signed a
three-year strategic
cooperation
memorandum.

The official website of
the Group was named
as one of “The First
Batch of Demonstration
Enterprises in

China with Honest

e- Commeroe Websites

tEmRAT 2011 E8% ]



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERMES

N

& Liu Shaoyong 248 &
f Chairman EH £

Dear shareholders, BMENIREER

| am pleased to present the report on the 7N AGE 1R 2 F B 75 fin 22 A%
operating results of China Eastern Airlines B8R AR ([ &XA T sk &
Corporation Limited (the “Company” or fii |) N EWE A 5] (4] A&
“CEA”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, gz ——%%F+=_A4
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 =+—HIFFERSE - WX
December 2011. On behalf of the entire ANEEZEEE T RSN AN T
staff of the Group, | would like to extend JXE ([ IRE |)EE -

my sincere thanks to the shareholders of

the Company (the “Shareholders”).

'] 2 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BEERWES

In 2011, market demand for international air transport services slowed down
affected by the global economic downturn, weak consumption in Europe and
the United States (“US”), and the natural disasters in Japan. Market demand
for domestic aviation services remained robust as a result of stable economic
growth in China. Meanwhile, factors such as consistently high aviation fuel
prices and the operation of the PRC high-speed rail adversely affected the
Group’s operations. Confronted by the complex domestic and international
economic environment and social developments, the Group proactively
grasped opportunities and strove to overcome difficulties. By enhancing its
safety management, operational capability and service quality, while fostering
construction of its hub network and optimizing its fleet structure in a steady
and orderly manner, the Group achieved positive results in 2011.

SAFETY MANAGEMENT

In 2011, adhering to the principle of “Safety First” and building on the
foundation of the Safety Management System (SMS), the Group continuously
strengthened its safety culture, deeply refined assessment of safety
performance, enhanced the quality of SMS operations and strove to refine
the level of safety system management with the aim of ensuring the aviation
safety, aviation security and ground safety. In 2011, the Group was awarded
the “Flight Safety Five-Star Award” (7% 2 1 £ %) by the Civil Aviation
Administration of China (‘CAAC”).

R —F RERREBETNR  BXBBEREARBER
WEEEZTE  BEMZ=ERTSHENE BN
fZEmiE RN EEARENRE ERERARSTERT
Ko R fURMEBRKESUESR  SEDREEARM
Bl T AKENKZES - BEHEENBERERLETS
MHERE  AREEGIEEKS  SHRRRE &
BRICZ2ER  RBIAKERN  BCERBEE - H#
BiER - BEERBEBRSESATETIREFNRE
E_T——FRE TRIFNREERE -

ZEEE

AEERF 22 RRINES  UREEIRER(SMS)i2
RRITF - TETINEZ 2 LR - RABELZER
Ziz  FHBRIISMSETHEE  BHBELRERRER
KF - BRTAEE T ——FEANRTLE - =0
ZEMMHAEZE - —E——F  AEEEPERBHF
(TRMRE DEENIRITLZE2HEE] -

2011 &
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BEERWES

PASSENGER TRAFFIC BUSINESS

The Group (j) flexibly adjusted its capacity layout through enlarging the capacity
deployed in core markets and major markets such as Shanghai, Xi’an and
Kunming and transferred the capacity from Japan routes to popular domestic
routes on a timely basis subsequent to the Japan earthquake in order to
prevent further losses from Japan routes; (ii) strove to raise the operating
capability of international routes by enhancing the sale of products through
the international routes, promoting business cooperation on international
travel products and fostering the consumer base of the direct sales team;
(i) focused on developing air-rail transportation products to promote the
integration of “Yangtze River Delta” market; (iv) continued to deepen the
integration of the Company, Shanghai Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Airlines”)
and China United Airlines Co., Ltd. (“China United Airlines”) and facilitate
the consolidation of marketing efforts in order to benefit from complementary
strengths and resources; and (v) strove to increase the daily utilisation rate
of aircraft by adding, and increasing the frequency of, international routes,
increasing the average travelling distance and enhancing the deployment of
capacity during low and peak seasons.

FREIGHT BUSINESS

In 2011, the Group completed the reorganization of the three cargo airlines
(China Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. (“China Cargo Airlines”), Shanghai Airlines
Cargo International Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Cargo Airlines”) and Great Wall
Airlines into a new China Cargo Airlines. The new China Cargo Airlines
adopted a series of measures to facilitate business integration, including
completing integration of its customer resources, optimising its deployment
of capacity, adjusting the deployment of its routes and strengthening sales
control. Meanwhile, the new China Cargo Airlines also adopted measures to
increase its revenue sources from freight transportation business by boosting
adjustment of the cargo and product structure, implementing extensive
strategic cooperation resources, developing a freight expressway between
Shanghai and Hong Kong, launching early flight for domestic express mail and
developing special cargo transportation services. Nevertheless, the Group still
recorded a loss in the freight business in 2011 owing to several unfavourable
factors, such as the sluggish economy in Europe and the US and the
persistent downturn of the global freight market.

HUB CONSTRUCTION

In 2011, the Group fostered the construction of its hubs in Shanghai, Xi’an
and Kunming by increasing capacity deployment, optimising route structure,
introducing new destinations and increasing the frequency of certain flights.
A relatively complete “three-in-three-out” flight frequency, namely morning,
afternoon and evening, was established at Shanghai Pudong International
Airport, achieving bilateral flight connections for over 25 domestic cities. The
“three-in-three-out” flight frequency had also been initially established in Xi'an,
and the completion of hub construction plans in Kunming would substantially
increase opportunities for transfer and connection. At the same time, the
Group is planning to establish supporting centres at our hubs in Shanghai,
Xi'an and Kunming to maintain our market presence at the three hubs.

2 mE M ALy
RiE =2

AEENEETALENGD  MAELE - ALZMERE
LTS - ERTHMENRN - EARHEE - A%
B K 65 1% B AN ARE D EICE N EPIMER - B2 TER
AR EHE—FIBK  (VRBLERSMRIEEER
HERRREERMEBEE  BHEEAHEBKTR 8
DRFABEMGELHEN (VB hES R=A1H5H—

Bl BERBRRTEHBEER  (VESRE LR

ﬂm EEmz=ERAR(EM]) PEBAM=ERA
([ D) — BB - HEERHEBRE  ERE
ZEREH - (VEBHBNNBEEME - TR

BELA R pnssi ki FE AP - BHRSREAFBEX -

BiE

ZE——F  AEEB-REEMEAR(FEEEME
BRAR(THEMR]) BB EEME=ERAR L
Efl) - REMEBERAR(TREM]))) SHAH+TE

e TPEMBRBRATFER  BLENEKR  #
BFGRMRE - MAHEERE—RIIEE - N5e T %%
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RAERR

ZE——F  AEEBRBIGIENKRK - BlEMGE
o OHMRBEME - BIIMMEESESR  BIHEL
8 AR BRAZKBAES - D8BRRBEBE#S DR
KTHRETENE P B == IOMIDE - 725
EA LBl A B IR EREZEEREMA  ALRAEK
MEPBETIZE=ZL IOMITE  REBREARIIEET
K hEgEEERLENIEERS - R - ASEERT
HELE  AZMERNEAREFRLS - E—TRA
E=KIBHTTBHIRIERE ) -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BEERWES

JOINING SKYTEAM

The Group officially joined SkyTeam on 21 June 2011. To date, the Group has
entered into frequent flyer and airport lounges agreements with 14 SkyTeam
member airlines, and signed code-sharing agreements with 12 member
airlines. Such agreements have been implemented on 95 destinations along
111 routes. By connecting to the route networks of other SkyTeam member
airlines, the Group is able to offer its passengers seamless transit to 926
destinations in 173 countries under a single plane ticket with direct luggage
services. Passengers may also enjoy the comforts of more than 490 VIP
airport lounges of SkyTeam members around the world.

SERVICE QUALITY

With the aid of the SkyTrax and SkyTeam projects, the Group strove to raise
its service quality and improve its hardware facilities. A central customer
database and the service management system and procedures for high-
end passengers were established to promote the shift of our service to
personalized customisation. Meanwhile, with a view to providing value-
added differentiation services to passengers, the Group created new service
products and set up a city terminal in Kunshan and customer service centres
in the cities surrounding Shanghai. The Group cooperated with the Shanghai
Railway Bureau to introduce the first air-rail transportation product, “Air-
Rail Service”, which links the international and regional routes at Honggiao
International Airport with the high-speed rail connecting to cities situated in the
Yangtze River Delta.

COST CONTROL

The Group proactively launched cost optimisation projects to reduce its
operating unit costs. By strictly managing its budget and implementing
process control, the Group controlled costs at full-scale level and in all
aspects. In addition, route structure was continually optimised and fuel saving
measures were generally implemented. The Group adjusted its debt structure
and increased its foreign exchange gains. The Group also decreased its
finance costs by evaluating its financing sources and, through a subsidiary
of the Company, by issuing RMB-denominated bonds of RMB2,500 million
maturing in three years in Hong Kong.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In 2011, the Group enhanced its information technology construction by
focusing on management enhancement, product innovation and resource
integration. The Group (i) completed the integration of a series of systems of
the Company and Shanghai Airlines, including operational control information
systems, aircraft maintenance information systems, call centre and frequent
flyer systems; (i) set up a customer service management system and realized
personalised information dispatch at three access points, namely departure
center, call centre and mobile cabin; and (i) completed the integration of the
official websites of the Company, Shanghai Airlines and China United Airlines,
and expedited the construction of its overseas website. Currently, our global
website covers North America, Australia, Europe and Asia Pacific.

MAREEER

ZE——FRNAZ+ R AEEEXMAKREHE -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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OUTLOOK FOR 2012

The Group cautions readers of this report. The operations of the Group as
an air transport enterprise that performs public service functions are closely
linked to the political and economic development both at home and abroad. As
such, the Group’s operations as well as that of the aviation industry are, to a
significant extent, subject to the risks associated with unforeseen occurrences
of geopoalitical events and other significant events.

The 2011 annual results of the Group includes certain forward-looking
statements, such as those on the future plans of the Group and the outlook of
international and domestic conditions and the aviation industry. Such forward-
looking statements are subject to many uncertainties and risks beyond our
control, and the actual results of the Group may vary materially from these
forward-looking statements.

In the future, the Group intends to become a premium airline that is globally
competitive. In addition, the Group intends to transform from a traditional
air passenger and freight carrier to an integrated, modern aviation services
provider.

In 2012, the aviation industry of the PRC is expected to face significant
pressures as a result of complex and changing domestic and international
operating environments, significant cost increases and a general downturn
in the global aviation industry. In addition, with the slowdown of the PRC
economy, the domestic PRC aviation industry will be further affected. To
counter these developments, the Group will seek to proactively implement
its operational plans and promote the transformation of the Group to an
integrated, modern aviation services provider, which it believes will improve
operating results while maintaining stability.

In 2012, the Group will focus on the following aspects:

1. Strengthen safety management and reinforce safety principles.
Adhering to the “Safety First, Prevention as Priority and Comprehensive
Management” approach, the Group will promote a culture of safety
by continuing to strengthen safety principles, strictly control the
safety management process and strive to enhance safety systems
management.

2. Enhance marketing efforts in passenger traffic and freight markets so
as to improve profitability. The Group will optimise resource allocation
among its routes and flight capacity and enhance its operating efficiency
to fully utilise its potential. To strengthen its operating capabilities
for international routes, the Group will expand its overseas sales
channels, develop major overseas customers and promote international
cooperation with other airlines.
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3. Maximise the results of cost reduction and strengthen cost control.
The Group will continuously maximise cost reduction measures and
implement cost optimisation strategies to reduce its finance costs;
continue to optimise the structure of its long and short term domestic
and foreign currency debts to reduce its finance expenses; strengthen
controls on the budget implementation process to minimise financial
risks; and strengthen capital operations and diversify financing channels
to lower finance costs.

4.  Expedite the implementation of strategies and enhance strategic
development. The Group will further enhance the Shanghai and Xi'an
hubs by upgrading hardware data facilities, enhancing supportive
measures and expediting the construction of a hub in Kunming. The
market share in Beijing will be expanded through the reorganisation of
China United Airlines and the Hebei Branch of the Group. The Group wil
also enhance its cooperation with members of the SkyTeam Alliance by
fully capitalising its resources.

5. Reinforce the foundation of service and improve service quality. Based
on its “precise, fine, detailed and wonderful” positioning, the Group
will promote the internationalised, personalised and information-driven
development of its services. The service management functions will be
coordinated to reinforce service principles and diversify service support
capabilities. The Group will strengthen its flight operations analysis and
enhance its contingency response capability to enhance the quality of
flight operations.

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company, | would like to express my gratitude to all Shareholders.

Liu Shaoyong
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
23 March 2012
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND

I\/IANAGEI\/IENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Ma Xulun 5 7Bfa
Vice Chairman and President
BIE F R R ABAEFE

280

With Shanghai as its core hub and Xi’an
and Kunming as regional hubs, the Group
has established an air transport network
covering all of China and extending to
Asia, Europe, North America and Oceania.
After joining the SkyTeam Alliance, the
route network of the Group expanded to
cover more than 926 destinations in 173
countries around the world. To date, the
number of Eastern Miles members, the
frequent flyer program of the Group, has
exceeded 15 million members.

REBHEET N HEAZOIR
A UL MERARREDIR
Mt B = R E I ER BT an
M~ BOM it;j%‘JHEEéﬁfiid\I\I
I ZE B B A4 o I A K& Bt
1&g NEEMMARREE ﬁL
2 ER173E B X 8 #8926 1 B
s o REEMI RS ETT]
BREZEHRLELHEB
1,500& A °

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

18



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RO M ERE BN wm AT

In 2011, through selling and surrendering leases for old aircraft and introducing
new aircraft, the Group further optimised its fleet structure. In 2011, the Group
completed (i) the purchase and finance-lease of a total of twenty-four aircraft,
including seventeen A320 aircraft, two A321 aircraft, two A332 aircraft, two
B737-700 and one B737-800 aircraft; (ii) the operating-lease of four aircraft,
including two B737-800 aircraft and two B777F aircraft; (iii) the disposal of
nine aircraft, including surrendering the leases of four MD11F aircraft and two
CRJ200 aircraft, and sales of three B767 aircraft; and (iv) the addition of three
operating-leased B747 aircraft as a result of the purchase of the assets of
Great Wall Airlines by China Cargo Airlines.

In 2011, the Group operated approximately 11,216 scheduled flights per
week. The Group achieved a passenger traffic volume of 100,895 million
passenger-kilometers, representing an increase of 8.31% from 2010. The
Group carried 68.725 million passengers with a passenger load factor of
78.89%, representing an increase of 5.84% and 0.91 percentage points,
respectively, over the previous year. The Group’s daily average utilisation rate
of aircraft was 9.8 hours, representing an increase of 0.1 hours compared
to the previous year. In 2011, the Group achieved a freight traffic volume of
4,421 million tonne-kilometers, representing an increase of 2.60% over the
previous year. The Group carried 1,443 million kilograms of cargo and mail
with a freight load factor of 61.81%, representing a decrease of 1.49% and an
increase of 1.44 percentage points, respectively, over the previous year.
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In 2011, the Group introduced several new international routes, including
Shanghai-to-Rome, Shanghai-to-Hamburg, Shanghai-to-Hawaii (Honolulu),
Shanghai-to-Dubai and Kunming-to-Male; introduced nine domestic routes,
including Shanghai-to-Zhanjiang, Xi’an-to-Shenyang and Kunming-to-
Yinchuan; and increased the frequency of flights in certain domestic and
international routes, including Shanghai-to-Sydney, Shanghai-to-Melbourne,
Shanghai-to-Shenyang, Shanghai-to-Chongaing, Xi'an-to-Singapore, Xi'an-to-
Shenzhen, Viangchan-to-Kunming and Xi’an-to-Kunming.

In 2011, the Group accounted for 52.38% and 39.01% of the market share at
Hongaiao International Airport and Pudong International Airport, respectively,
in terms of flight take-off and landing statistics, and accounted for 50.08% and
37.58% of the market share at Honggiao International Airport and Pudong
International Airport, respectively, in terms of passenger throughput.

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

The following discussion and analysis should be read together with the
Group’s audited financial statements and the accompanying notes prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) that are
included elsewhere in this annual report. The financial data presented in this
section are derived from the Group’s audited financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

Operational revenues

In 2011, the Group’s revenue was RMB82,403 million, representing an
increase of 11.65% from the previous year. Transportation revenue amounted
to RMB76,514 million, representing an increase of 13.54% from the previous
year. In 2011, the Group’s total traffic volume was 13,402 million tonne-
kilometers, representing an increase of 6.37% from the previous year.

In 2011, the Group’s passenger revenues amounted to RMB68,434 million,
representing an increase of 16.05% from the previous year, and accounting
for 89.44% of the Group’s traffic revenues in 2011. Passenger traffic volume
was 100,895 million passenger-kilometers, representing a 8.31% increase
from the previous year.

The Group’s domestic passenger traffic volume was 70,933 million passenger-
kilometers, representing an increase of 6.97% from the previous year.
Compared to last year, domestic passenger revenues increased by 16.18%
to RMB48,963 million, accounting for 71.55% of the Group’s passenger
revenues.

The passenger traffic volume on the Group’s international routes was
26,151 million passenger kilometers, representing a 14.85% increase from
the previous year. Compared to last year, international passenger revenues
increased by 20.10% to RMB16,393 million, accounting for 23.95% of the
Group’s passenger revenues.
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The passenger traffic volume on the Group’s regional routes was 3,811
million passenger-kilometers, representing a 6.46% decrease from last year.
Compared to last year, regional passenger revenues decreased by 3.09% to
RMB3,078 million, accounting for 4.50% of the Group’s passenger revenues.

In 2011, the Group’s cargo and mail traffic revenues decreased by 4.07% to
RMB8,080 million, as compared to last year, accounting for 10.56% of the
Group’s traffic revenues in 2011. Cargo and mail traffic volume was 4,421
million tonne-kilometers, representing a 2.60% increase from last year.

Operating expenses

In 2011, the Group’s total operating costs was RMB79,292 million,
representing an increase of 15.31% from the same period in the previous year.
This was primarily attributable to increased oil prices and the corresponding
increase in the costs of jet fuel.

Analysis of the changes in other items under operating costs of the Group is
set out as follows:

In 2011, the Group’s total aviation fuel consumption was approximately
3,896,300 tonnes, representing a 6.2% increase compared to last year. Total
expenditure on aviation fuel was RMB29,229 million, representing an increase
of 35.3% compared to last year. This was primarily due to an increase in
oil consumption and an increase of 27.4% in the average price of jet fuel
compared to the last year. In 2011, aviation fuel expenditures accounted for
36.86% of the Group’s total operating costs.

Impairment losses for assets amounted to RMB638 million, representing
an increase of 57.53% over the previous year. This was primarily due to
impairment provisions made under a sale price agreement as the Company
disposed of an obsolete aircraft during the year.

Selling and marketing expenses were RMB3,740 million, representing an
increase of 12.52% over the previous year. This was primarily due to increases
in ticketing system service fees and agency handling fees due to increases in
traffic revenue.

Food and beverage expenses were RMB2,022 million, representing an
increase of 26.69% compared to the previous year. This was primarily due
to improved in-flight food standards, particularly the food standards of two
classes.

The amount of civil aviation infrastructure levies payable to CAAC amounted
to RMB1,321 million, representing an increase of 1.93% compared to the
previous year, primarily due to the overall increase in miles flown.

Ground services and other charges were RMB568 million, representing an
increase of 29.09% over the previous year, primarily due to the corresponding
increase in expenses due to increased ground services income.
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Gains on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments was RMB87
million, compared to RMB833 million during the year 2010, and primarily due
to the decrease in gains arising from fair value movement of crude oil option
contracts, which resulted from a decrease in the notional amount of unsettled
crude oil option contracts. The crude oil option contracts of the Group were
settled by 31 December 2011. In 2011, the net gain on change in fair value
of crude oil option contracts of the Group was approximately RMB67 million,
and the actual cash inflow upon settlement of crude oil option contracts was
approximately RMB38 million.

Other operating income

Other operating income of the Group increased from RMB659 million in 2010
to RMB1,061 million in 2011, primarily due to an increase in government
subsidy income in 2011.

Finance income/costs

In 2011, the Group’s finance income was RMB2,024 million, primarily due
to an increase in foreign exchange gains resulting from the appreciation of
the Renminbi against the US dollar. Finance costs decreased to RMB1,463
million, primarily due to improvements in capital structure of the Group and a
reduction on the interest rates on certain foreign currency borrowings.

Profit

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the
parent in 2011 was RMB4,576 million, representing a 7.70% decrease, as
compared to the Group’s profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB4,958 million for the previous year.

Liquidity and capital structure

The Group generally finances its working capital requirements through cash
from business operations and short-term bank loans. As at 31 December
2010 and 2011, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB3,078 million and RMB3,861 million, respectively. In 2010 and 2011,
net cash generated from the Group’s operating activities amounted to
RMB10,641 million and RMB13,623 million, respectively. In 2011, basic cash
requirements of the Group other than for operating costs were primarily for the
purchase and upgrade of aircraft and flight equipment, and payment of related
indebtedness. In 2010 and 2011, net cash outflow from the Group’s investing
activities were RMB8,633 million and RMB14,939 million, respectively. Net
cash outflow from the Group’s financing activities in 2010 was RMB652
million. The net cash inflow from the Group’s financing activities in 2011 was
RMB2,136 million, primarily due to the issuance of RMB bonds, by its offshore
subsidiary, amounting to RMB2,500 million.

The Group generally operates with net current liabilities. As at 31 December
2011, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB29,679 million. The Group has been and believes it will continue to be
capable of financing its working capital by obtaining loans from domestic and
foreign banks in China.
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The Group monitors its capital on the basis of its debt ratio, which is
calculated as total liabilities divided by total assets. As at 31 December 2011,
the debt ratio of the Group was 0.81.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2011, the total amount of the Group’s
borrowings due within one year were RMB15,211 million and RMB18,171
million, respectively. As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s borrowings
payable from one to two years, from three to five years, and beyond five
years were RMB6,162 million, RMB10,672 million and RMB6,521 million,
respectively, as compared to RMB8,408 million, RMB9,391 million and
RMB5,804 million, respectively, as at 31 December 2011.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases as at 31 December 2010 and
2011 were RMB19,208 million and RMB20,261 million, respectively. As at 31
December 2010, the Group’s lease obligations payable within two years, from
three to five years and beyond five years were RMB4,381 million, RMB6,889
million and RMB7,939 million, respectively, as compared to RMB5,017 million,
RMB7,235 million and RMB8,009 million, respectively, as at 31 December
2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s borrowings comprised USD-
denominated borrowings of USD3,967 million and RMB-denominated
borrowings of RMB16,780 million. Fixed-rate borrowings and floating-rate
borrowings accounted for 15.6% and 84.4% of total borrowings, respectively,
in 2011. As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s borrowings comprised
USD-denominated borrowings of USD3,333 million and RMB-denominated
borrowings of RMB16,494 million. Fixed-rate borrowings and floating-
rate borrowings accounted for 16.80% and 83.20% respectively of total
borrowings in 2010.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s obligations under finance leases
comprised USD-denominated obligations of USD2,840 million, RMB-
denominated obligations of RMB1,090 million and Singapore dollar-
denominated obligations of $$263 million. The Group’s finance leases are
floating-rate obligations. As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s obligations
under finance leases comprised USD-denominated obligations of USD2,534
million, RMB-denominated obligations of RMB1,435 million and Singapore
dollar-denominated obligations of $$194 million.

Pledges on assets and contingent liabilities

The Group generally finances the purchases of aircraft through finance leases
and bank loans secured by its assets. As at 31 December 2011, the value
of the Group’s assets used to secure certain bank loans was RMB18,317
million, representing a decrease of 11.94%, from RMB20,800 million as at 31
December 2010.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

According to the contracted agreements, as at 31 December 2011, we expect
our capital expenditures for aircraft, engines and related equipment to be,
in the aggregate, approximately RMB108,298 million, including RMB17,935
million in 2012 and RMB22,249 million in 2013, in each case subject to
contractually stipulated changes or any change relating to inflation. We plan
to finance our capital commitments through a combination of funds generated
from operation, existing credit facilities, bank loans, leasing arrangements and
other external financing arrangement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are reflective of significant
judgments and uncertainties and potentially result in materially different results
under different assumptions and conditions.

Our audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS. Our principal accounting policies are set forth in Note
2 to our audited consolidated financial statements. IFRS requires that we
adopt the accounting policies and make estimates that our Directors believe
are most appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of giving a true
and fair view of our results and financial position. However, different policies,
estimates and assumptions in critical areas could lead to materially different
results. The critical accounting policies adopted and estimates made in the
preparation of these financial statements are identified and set forth in Note 4
to our audited consolidated financial statements.

RISK ANALYSIS

Interest rate fluctuation risk

The Group’s total interest-bearing liabilities (including long-term and short-term
borrowings, finance leases and bonds payable) as at 31 December 2010 and
2011 were RMB57,774 million and RMB62,035 million, respectively, of which
30.03% and 33.26% were short-term liabilities, respectively, for those years.
A portion of the Group’s long-term interest-bearing liabilities were liabilities
with variable interest rates, and were affected by fluctuations in current market
interest rates.

The Group’s interest-bearing liabilities were primarily denominated in US
dollars and Renminbi. As at 31 December 2010 and 2011, the Group’s
liabilities denominated in US dollars accounted for 67.18% and 69.14%,
respectively, of total liabilities while liabilities denominated in Renminbi
accounted for 31.03% and 28.81%, respectively, of total liabilities. The
fluctuations in the US dollar - RMB exchange rate and Renminbi interest rates
significantly affected the Group’s finance costs.
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Exchange rate fluctuation risk

Since 21 July 2005, the Chinese government adjusted the Renminbi exchange
rate system and established a floating exchange rate system by which the
exchange rate would be adjusted and managed based on market supply and
demand, with reference to a basket of foreign currencies. The fluctuation in the
Renminbi exchange rate is affected by domestic and international economic
and political conditions and general currency supply and demand dynamics. As
such, future Renminbi exchange rates may fluctuate and be materially different
from current exchange rates.

The Group operates its business in many countries and territories and
generates revenue in different currencies. As such, its foreign currency
liabilities are generally much higher than its foreign currency assets. The
Group’s major liability item (purchases or leases of aircraft) is mainly priced
and settled in US dollars. In addition, fluctuations in foreign exchange rates
will affect the Group’s costs incurred from foreign purchases such as aircraft,
flight equipment and jet fuel, and take-off and landing charges in foreign
airports. As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s total interest-bearing liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, converted to Renminbi, amounted to
RMB44,165 million, of which US dollar liabilities accounted for 97.1% of
this amount. Therefore, significant fluctuations in foreign exchange rates will
subject the Group to foreign exchange loss arising from the translation of
foreign currency denominated liabilities, which will also affect the profitability
and development of the Group. The Group typically uses hedging contracts
for foreign currencies to reduce the foreign exchange risks for foreign currency
revenue generated from ticket sales, and expenses to be paid in foreign
currencies. The Group’s foreign currency hedging mainly involves the sales
of Japanese Yen and the purchase of US dollars at fixed exchange rates. As
at 31 December 2011, foreign currency hedging contracts held by the Group
amounted to a notional amount of US$46 million (31 December 2010: US$48
million), and will expire between 2012 and 2017.

The Group recorded an increase in net foreign exchange gains in 2011. As
at 31 December 2010 and 2011, the Group’s foreign exchange gains were
RMB1,075 million and RMB1,872 million, respectively. Due to the large
amount of existing net foreign currency liabilities, the Group’s results will be
adversely affected if the Renminbi depreciates against the US dollar, or if the
rate of appreciation of the Renminbi against the US dollar decreases in the
future.

Risk associated with the fluctuation of fuel prices

Jet fuel is one of the Group’s major costs of operations. The Group’s results
of operations are to a large extent affected by the fluctuation of jet fuel prices.
Foreign fuel prices are mainly affected by supply and demand dynamics in
the global market. In addition, domestic jet fuel prices are supervised by
authorities such as the National Development and Reform Commission and
CAAC. The Group generally reduces operating costs arising from increased jet
fuel prices by imposing passenger fuel surcharges, reducing fuel consumption
by route optimisation and enhancing cost controls.

ERREEME

BE-TERFLA-T—HE  FEBNSREARKE
KBRS - BITUTMSHKAER  2E-&FHYK
HEITIHE ﬁﬁﬁ%&@[fﬂr c ARBERREHF
BAMBEREE - BUaBNEEHKBEENZE - R
KARKEERA LB ITERELRAZR -

AEENEBBEEZEARRMME - SHKRARES
BEEAAREEHRINEABERNNINEEE - ~5H
RIBMHEEER (BESHERK) AZRUETEE
MEEHEMGEER - I BENREEEFTEREENR
B~ AT~ AR ZE R B S SORAIE SN B A AN SR SR M
%t SEERANEY - HE-_T——F+-_A=+—

A AEBEIINEEEEHRENTE ARK AB441.651E
TL - HAPETTAENLHIA97.1% o Bt - £E R KIE
BEERT  BHINEBENEEENELNERSER
R RAFEREENRFKATER - BEAEE
SMNEEHIA 405K R K R M 52 85 5 SMNE LA e 75 DA SNE 2
MHEAMERMERER - INEEHFZAUETE
EHEATLBEAEZE L BE-Z——F+=-A=+—
A AEEHEEATERINEEREGNNERCER
E046EBL(ZE—ZEF+ - A=1+—HARET048E
) WHERZE-ZFE_T—tFHEER -

ZE——F  AEEERFUSERM LA  cBEZT—
ZEMZT——F+ZA=+—H  AEEELKES
Bl AAREA0.75B LA REE18.72187T - BRAEH
BERAENTE  BEARARBEAELREREARE
RETABRERE BEAEEREEELEAVE -

BmEH R B E R

FUmMAARETREERAZ — BRIt ARENEER
FmERKEB MR EERK - BSMUREREEX 2R
SHFERTE - MEAFHEBRSERERALE
ZEGLRMBERTREMNES - AEE—RBBH
WRm B N &~ BACABE PR IR AL - INSRA A IE B S
o SR AR RERUR B S LIRS RAVE SR AT

FEESMERGERA 2011 Fifk

25



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FEDE N E IR EO R WD AT

In 2011, assuming constant factors but excluding the effect of crude oil option
contracts, if the average price of jet fuel increases or decreases by 5%, jet
fuel costs of the Group will increase or decrease by approximately RMB1,460
million.

In 2011, the Group did not enter into any new crude oil option contracts, and
all contracts signed in past years were settled by 31 December 2011.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 59,872 employees, the majority
of whom worked in or were based in China. The wages of the Group’s
employees generally consisted of basic salary and performance-based bonus.
There were no material labour disputes between the Group and its employees,
and the Group did not experience significant turnover of employees or
encounter any major difficulties in recruiting new employees.

TAXATION

The Company is subject to income tax at a rate of 24% (2010: 22%). Our
effective tax rate, however, may be higher than the rate of 24% because
certain subsidiaries were incorporated in jurisdictions where the applicable
income tax rate is 25% rather than 24%. We had carried forward tax losses of
approximately RMB9,713 million as at 31 December 2011 (2010: RMB15,299
million), which can be used to set off future taxable income between 2012 and
2016.
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The Board is pleased to present the audited financial report of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “Reporting Period”).

GROUP ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

The Company is one of the three largest air carriers in the PRC based on the
total tonne-kilometers and number of passengers carried in 2011 and is an
important base airline facilitating the development of the “International Financial
Centre” and the “International Shipping Centre” of Shanghai. The results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the financial position of the
Company and the Group as at that date, prepared in accordance with IFRS
and PRC Accounting Standards, are set out in the financial statements.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the
financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance with IFRS.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from its business is as
follows:

Domestic A A

Regional (Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) (R )

International S

Total 15
DIVIDENDS

According to the financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC
Accounting Standards, the Company’s net profit was RMB4,892 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011, and the total accumulated losses of the
Company as at 31 December 2011 amounted to RMB4,503 million. The
Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the financial year
ended 31 December 2011.
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SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2011, the share capital structure of the Group is set out as
follows:
1. A shares AR
(@) Listed shares with trading moratorium @ BREEMGR
(0) Listed shares without trading moratorium  (b)  fEFR & {5 s
2. H shares H A%
3. Total number of shares & 1n 42 %8

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, the total number of registered shareholders of the
Company was 284,381, of which 283,697 are holders of A shares and 684
are holders of H shares.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors of the Company are aware, each of the following
persons, not being a Director, chief executive, supervisor of the Company
or member of the Company’s senior management, had, as at 31 December
2011, an interest and/or short position in the Company’s shares or underlying
shares (as the case may be) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), or was otherwise, as at 31
December 2011, interested in 5% or more of any class of the then issued
share capital of the Company, or was otherwise, as at 31 December 2011,
a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”)) of the Company:
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Type of Number of
Name of shareholders shares held shares held
REREE BRI R
China Eastern Air Holding Company A shares 4,831,375,000
(“CEA Holding”)
FEIRSMEEE AR AR
(IRmEE])
CEA Holding (Note 1) H shares 1,927,375,000
SR = (PTaE) Hi&
HKSCC Nominees Limited H shares 3,478,100,299
(Note 2)
BEERREE(RIEAN) HA&
AR AT (FF:E2)
Notes:

Based on the information available to the Directors as at 31 December 2011 (including
such information as was available on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and
so far as they are aware of, as at 31 December 2011:

1. Such H shares were held by CES Global Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“CES
Global”), in the capacity of beneficial owner, which in turn was 100% held by CEA
Holding.

2. Among the 3,478,100,299 H shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited,
1,927,375,000 H shares (representing approximately 55.16% of the Company’s
then total issued H shares) were held by CES Global in the capacity of beneficial
owner, which in turn was 100% held by CEA Holding.

Save as disclosed above, based on the information available to the Directors and
so far as they are aware, as at 31 December 2011, among the 3,478,100,299 H
shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited, no other person had any interest or
short position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares (as the case may
be) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

According to the relevant disclosure requirements laid down by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”), as at the end of the Reporting
Period, the 10 largest registered shareholders and the 10 largest registered
listed stock shareholders on the register of members of the Company and
their respective shareholdings are as follows:

As at 31 December 2011
REZB——F+ZA=+—BHEELF
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
shareholding shareholding shareholding

in the in the in the
Company’s Company’s Company’s
total issued total issued total issued
share capital A shares H shares
2817 2817 2817
B AR B HER B8
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30.84% - 99.54%

i -

REEER T F T+ A=+ AMEENBE(EEES
A R PTAE ERISHER) RBESMA R=F——F
tT-—A=+—8”:
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The 10 largest registered shareholders of the Company and their

respective shareholdings:

Name of shareholders

RERERE

1. CEA Holding
RMEE

2. HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED
(including CES Global)
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED
(BRMER)

3. Shanghai Alliance Investment
Limited
B EERAR
4. China National Aviation Fuel
Holding Co.
B EE AR

5. Jin Jiang International Holdings

Company Limited
TR (EE)BRAR

6. Aerospace Capital Holding
Co., Ltd.
MAREERERAF
7. Sinotrans Air Transportation
Development Co., Ltd.
RINBTBRERD
BRAT]
8. Bank of China Group
Investment Limited
HIREBEREARATF
9. Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited —
Harvest=E @8 ik = A
FHREES
B TR RITARG
BRAR-REXEM
BIRENEFRERS
10.  Shanghai Light Industry Co.,
Ltd. for Foreign Economic
and Technical Cooperation
EBE T R EIMEE R
BEBRAR

Increase/
(Decrease) in
shareholding

in the year

FEREH
0

3,531,900

-57,046,058

-8,147,5616

Shareholding
at the end of
the year

FR
BRYE

4,831,375,000

3,478,100,299

427,085,429

421,052,632

343,288,860

99,088,580

83,157,894

21,997,755

19,606,372

18,574,343

Percentage
(%)

Ll

(%)

42.84

30.84

3.79

3.73

3.04

0.88

0.74

0.2

0.17

0.16

Description of any related party or concert party relationship among the 10
largest shareholders: the Company is not aware of any related party or concert
party relationship among the above shareholders.
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Charged or
locked-up

Type of shares shares

H R

RHER R BB

Listed (all subject to Nil
moratorium) 3

BiE(2HA
REMR)

Listed Unknown
(1,437,375,000 KA
shares held by
CES Global
are subject to
moratorium)

Bitm(ERREmM
BIFA R
1,437,375,0008%

RRER)

Listed Unknown

[mny i R

Listed Unknown

[mny i KA

Listed (288,888,860 Unknown
shares are subject R
to moratorium)

Biim(EH
288,888,860/4%

RRER)

Listed Unknown

[mYny i R

Listed Unknown

[mny i R

Listed Unknown

[Ehsii A

Listed Unknown

[Ehs i KA

Listed Unknown

[EYk i KEN

Nature of
shares held

R&HEE

A shares (subject to
moratorium)

ABR(RE)

H shares
(1,437,375,000
shares held by
CES Global
are subject to
moratorium)

HI (CEC AR SR B
R
1,437,375,0008%
RRER)

A shares

AR

A shares
AR

A shares
AR

A shares
AR

A shares
AR
A shares
AR

A shares
AR

A shares

AR
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THE 10 LARGEST REGISTERED LISTED STOCK
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY AND THEIR
RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDINGS

Name of shareholders

RERERE

1. HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED (including CES Global)
BEEPREE(RBA)ERAR(BERMBIE)

2. Shanghai Alliance Investment Limited
BRI A B R AR

3. China National Aviation Fuel Holding Co.
PEI MR E R

4. Aerospace Capital Holdmg Co., Ltd.
R EZERABRA

5. Sinotrans Air Transporiahon Development Co., Ltd.
HINETEERRERG AR AT

6. Jin Jiang International Holdings Company Limited
ST RIS (RE)BR QA

7. Bank of China Group Investment Limited

hIREERERRAA]

8. Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited —Harvest == @27 &) /1 ix Z=#Y

REES
TEIERITENERAT -REIT@FPHNREREFREES

9. Shanghai Light Industry Co., Ltd. for Foreign Economic and Technical Cooperation

EETEREIMSBERMTEIEBRA
10.  Shanghai Tex Holding Co., Ltd.
FEHE(EE)ERAR

Description of any related party or concert party relationship among the 10
largest listed stock shareholders: the Company is not aware of any related
party or concert party relationship among the above listed stock shareholders.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

There has been no change in the Company’s controlling shareholder in the
year.

CEA Holding is the parent company of the Company and its registered capital
amounts to RMB11,780,365,000. Mr. Liu Shaoyong is the legal representative
of CEA Holding. CEA Holding’s scope of business includes the management of
all state-owned assets and state-owned equity of its group and its investment
enterprises which are formed by state investment. As at 31 December 2011, no
share of the Company held by CEA Holding was pledged.
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Shareholding
of listed stocks

at the end Type of
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Save as otherwise disclosed, during the year ended 31 December 2011,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of its listed securities (“securities” having the meaning ascribed thereto
under paragraph 1 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules), without taking into
account any issue of new securities.

SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE
COMPANY AND THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES REQUIRED TO BE FOLLOWED BY
U.S. COMPANIES UNDER THE NEW YORK STOCK
EXCHANGE’S LISTING STANDARDS

As a company incorporated in the PRC and listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the New York Stock
Exchange (the “NYSE”), the Company is subject to not only applicable PRC
laws and regulations, including the PRC Company Law, the PRC Securities
Law, the Corporate Governance Standards for Listed Companies and
Guidance Opinions regarding the Establishment of the Independent Director
System in Listed Companies (the “Independent Director Guidance”),
but also Hong Kong laws and regulations, including the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance and the SFO, as well as applicable U.S. Federal
securities laws and regulations, including the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Based on NYSE’s
listing standards, the NYSE imposes a series of corporate governance
standards for companies listed on the NYSE. However, the NYSE permits
foreign private issuers to follow their respective “home country” practices
and grants waivers for compliance with certain corporate governance
standards. One of the conditions for such waiver is for the foreign private issuer
to disclose in its annual report how the corporate governance practices in
its “home country” differ from those required of U.S. companies under the
NYSE'’s listing standards.

In accordance with the requirements of Section 303A.11 of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual, the following is a summary of the significant differences
between the Company’s corporate governance practices and those required
to be followed by U.S. companies under the NYSE’s listing standards:

Section 303A.01 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed
companies must have a majority of independent Directors. As a company
listed in the PRC, the Company is subject to the requirement under the
Independent Director Guidance that at least one-third of the Board be
independent as determined thereunder. As a company listed in Hong Kong,
the Company is also subject to the requirement under the Listing Rules that
at least three members of the Board shall be independent, and at least one
of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company currently has four
independent Directors out of a total of eight Directors. The standards for
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establishing independence set forth under either the Independent Director
Guidance or the Listing Rules differ from those set forth in the NYSE Listed
Company Manual.

Section 303A.03 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that
listed companies must schedule regular executive sessions in which non-
management directors meet without management participation. The Company
is not required, under either the applicable PRC law or the applicable Hong
Kong law, to hold such executive sessions.

Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed
companies must have a nominating/corporate governance committee
composed entirely of independent directors. The establishment of the
Nomination Committee was considered and resolved and its charter was
passed at the third regular meeting of the fifth session of the Board of the
Company held on 28 April 2009. The merging of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee into the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was agreed at the 36th ordinary meeting of the fifth
session of the Board of the Company held on 19 March 2010 and the “Working
Rules of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee” was passed. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
two of which are independent non-executive Directors of the Company.
Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual also provides that the
nominating/corporate governance committee of a listed company must have
a written charter that addresses the committee’s purpose and responsibilities,
which include, among others, the development and recommendation of
corporate governance guidelines to the listed company’s board of directors.
The Board is directly responsible for developing the Company’s corporate
governance guidelines.

Section 303A.05 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed
companies must have a compensation committee composed entirely of
independent directors. Under the Listing Rules, a majority of the members of
the remuneration committee must be independent non-executive directors.
The merging of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee into the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
was agreed at the 36th ordinary meeting of the fifth session of the Board of
the Company held on 19 March 2010. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company is composed of two independent non-executive
Directors and one Director.

Section 303A.10 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed
companies must adopt and disclose a code of business conduct and ethics
for directors, officers and employees. As required under the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, the Company has adopted a code of ethics that is applicable to
the Company’s Directors, Supervisors, President, Chief Financial Officer and
other senior managers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Under the articles of association of the Company and the PRC laws, no pre-
emptive rights exists, which require the Company to offer new shares to its
existing shareholders on a pro rata basis.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT B ARIFIRE

BERAREREHAT 2 RZEAIITHE - KRR ARFT
BHERUARRESANE  EFHEARNEREE
—E——F+_A=+—BIFERNZAEREHEF
MR AIES.08(1) AIERENEBERARKIE LTMESFE D

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report, the Directors believe that the Company has at all times
during the year ended 31 December 2011 maintained the relevant applicable

minimum percentage of listed securities as prescribed by Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the tt e

Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Names, relevant information of and shares held by the Directors, the
Supervisors and members of senior management of the Company as at 31
December 2011 are as follows:

Number of listed

B EELER

P arax

B

BABFRIER

ARABE_F——F+-A=+—AEF BEERS
REBABBE  BRERRERERDT

A shares of Capacity in
the Company which the
held - personal A shares Effective date and expiry
Name Position Age interest were held date of appointment
Fris A RIRIBAR

®H B FiR Mg — EAER FriEAR 513 fEERELE B
Liu Shaoyong Chairman 53 0 - 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
235 EER
Ma Xulun Vice Chairman BlE% K - 48 0 - 2011-11-11 -2013-6-28
5EMm President #4532 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
Li Yangmin Director £% - 49 3,960 (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 2011-6-29 - 2013-6-28
FER Vice President gl 424538 (HE1) EREEA 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
Luo Zhuping Director 5 » 59 11,616 (Note 2)  Beneficial Owner 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
BRT Board Secretary =€ - (FH2) EREBA 2010-6-28 - 2012-4-6

Company Secretary 2 5l Z 2010-6-28 - 2012-4-6
Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu Independent non-executive Director 64 0 - 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
2B BIUFNTESF
Wu Xiaogen Independent non-executive Director 46 0 - 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
REER BUIFNITES
Ji Weidong Independent non-executive Director 55 0 - 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
R BIUFNTESF
Shao Ruiging Independent non-executive Director 55 0 - 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
BRI BUIFNITES
Yu Faming Chairman of the Supervisory Committee 58 0 - 2011-6-29 - 2013-6-28
F=B -
Feng Jinxiong Supervisor 50 0 - 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
Voskiia EE
Yan Taisheng Supervisor 58 0 - 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
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ES $ \i& H ==
= A=
Number of listed
A shares of Capacity in
the Company which the
held - personal A shares Effective date and expiry
Name Position Age interest were held date of appointment
I AARRBEAR
®E B FiH#R BE—EAES FEAR 513 EHAEL B
Liu Jiashun Supervisor 55 3,960 (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
ZIR)E E=x (58181) BB A
Tang Bing Vice President 45 0 - 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
B K Bl
Shu Mingjiang Vice President 44 0 - 2011-12-13 - 2013-6-28
T BlarE
Wu Yongliang Vice President g|484532 49 3,696 (Note 3)  Beneficial Owner 2011-12-13 - 2013-6-28
RKR Chief Financial Officer awx@ gt (;H13) EREAA 2010-6-28 - 2013-6-28
Tian Liuwen Vice President 53 0 - 2011-12-13 - 2013-6-28
HEB BlassE
Note 1: representing approximately 0.000035% of the Company’s total issued shares as i1 : (EARFR-ZE——F+ - =+—HEEITRHEE
at 31 December 2011 #70.000035%
Note 2: representing approximately 0.0001% of the Company’s total issued shares as ~ #2 : (EARFR-ZE——F+ - =+—HEEITRHEE
at 31 December 2011 #70.0001%
Note 3: representing approximately 0.000033% of the Company’s total issued shares as #1138 : (EARFR-ZE——F+ A=+ —HEEITRHEE
at 31 December 2011 #90.000033%
Brief biographical details in respect of each of the Directors, Supervisors and ~ ARRESE « EERESREBEASHENT :

members of senior management of the Company are as follows:

Liu Shaoyong: Mr. Liu Shaoyong is currently the Chairman of the Company
and general manager and deputy party secretary of CEA Holding. Mr. Liu
joined the civil aviation industry in 1978 and was appointed deputy general
manager of China General Aviation Corporation, deputy director of Shanxi
Provincial Civil Aviation Administration, general manager of the Shanxi Branch
of the Company, and Head of the Flying Model Division of the CAAC. Mr.
Liu served as General Manager of the Company from December 2000 to
October 2002, vice minister of the CAAC from October 2002 to August 2004,
general manager of China Southern Air Holding Company from August 2004
to December 2008, chairman of directors of China Southern Airlines Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange) from November 2004 to December 2008. Since December
2008, Mr. Liu has been appointed as general manager and deputy party
secretary of CEA Holding, and became the Chairman of the Company since 3
February 2009. Mr. Liu graduated from the China Civil Aviation Flight College
and obtained an executive masters of business administration (EMBA) degree
from Tsinghua University. Mr. Liu holds the title of command pilot. He is
currently the Director General of China Air Transport Association, the Director
of International Air Transport Association and the Director of Association for
Relations Across the Taiwan Straits.
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Ma Xulun: Mr. Ma Xulun is currently the Vice Chairman, President and
Deputy Party Secretary of the Company, and deputy party secretary of CEA
Holding. Mr. Ma joined the civil aviation industry in 1997. He was previously
deputy general manager of China Commodities Storing and Transportation
Corporation. He was appointed as deputy director general of the Finance
Department of the CAAC and vice president of Air China International
Corporation Limited. In 2002, after the restructuring of civil aviation industry
he was appointed as vice president of general affairs of Air China International
Corporation Limited. Later on, Mr. Ma served as president and deputy party
secretary of Air China International Corporation Limited (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from
September 2004 to January 2007. Mr. Ma became a party member of China
National Aviation Holding Company from December 2004 to December 2008,
and deputy general manager of China National Aviation Holding Company
from January 2007 to December 2008. Since December 2008, Mr. Ma was
also President and Deputy Party Secretary of the Company and deputy
party secretary of CEA Holding. Since February 2009, Mr. Ma has become
a Director of the Company. From January 2009 to February 2012, Mr. Ma
served as chairman of China Cargo Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company, and
chairman of Shanghai Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company, from January
2010 to January 2012. Mr. Ma was appointed as party secretary of CEA
Holding and Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from November 2011.
Mr. Ma graduated from Shanxi University of Finance and Economics and
Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Ma holds a masters
degree and is a qualified accountant.

Li Yangmin: Mr. Li Yangmin is currently a Director, Party Secretary, Vice
President and Safety Director of the Company and party committee member
of CEA Holding. Mr. Li joined the civil aviation industry in 1985. He was
previously deputy head of the aircraft maintenance workshop (FR#4E (S
REEfE), head of technology office, secretary of the workshop branch of
Northwest Company (FitfiZ=/A ) and deputy general manager of the
aircraft maintenance base and the manager of air route department (4%
#F) of Northwest Company (FEdtMiZ=72 7). From June 2002 to March 2004,
he was general manager of the aircraft maintenance base of China Eastern
Air Northwest Company. From March 2004 to October 2005, he was vice
president of China Eastern Air Northwest Company. Since October 2005, he
has also been a Vice President of the Company. He was appointed Safety
Director of the Company in July 2010, party committee member of CEA
Holding in May 2011 and Party Secretary and Director of the Company in
June 2011. From September 2010 to January 2012, Mr. Li served as the
director of Shanghai Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company. Since February
2012, he was appointed as the chairman of China Cargo Airlines, a subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from Northwestern Polytechnical University
with a masters degree. He is a qualified senior engineer.

Luo Zhuping: Mr. Luo Zhuping is currently a Director of the Company. Mr.
Luo joined CEA in 1988. He was Deputy Chief and then Chief of the Enterprise
Management Department and Deputy Head of the Share System Office of
China Eastern Airlines. From 1997 to 2008, he served as the head of the
Board secretariat of the Company. From 1997 to April 2012, he served as the
secretary to the Board (the “Board Secretary”) and the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”). He became a Director of the
Company in June 2004. Mr. Luo graduated from the Faculty of Philosophy
and the Faculty of Law of Anhui University in 1979 and 1985, respectively. In
1994, Mr. Luo received a masters degree in global economics from Eastern
China Normal University. In 1998, he participated in the training programme
for senior managers of large state-owned enterprises organised in the U.S.
by the State Economic and Trade Commission and Morgan Stanley. Mr. Luo
has been responsible for domestic and overseas exchange listing and capital
management of the Company since 1993. He has gained rich experience
in certain value-added measures of an enterprise, such as enterprise
reform, stock issuance, corporate governance, merger and acquisition and
reorganization.
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Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu: Mr. Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2009. Mr. Liu joined the civil
aviation industry in Taiwan in 1969. He served in China Airlines (& /& 2
ZE/NF]) in various capacities, including airport manager in Honolulu Airport,
marketing director for the Americas, general manager for Hawaii District,
regional director for Europe, director of corporate planning and director of
marketing planning in its Corporate Office in Taiwan. With China Airlines,
he also served as vice president for marketing and sales in 1993 and vice
president for commerce since 1996, and was promoted to president in 1998.
Additionally, Mr. Liu served as a director of Taiwan Mandarin Airlines (& /&
(S ZE), Taiwan Far Eastern Air Transport (&&= 8 #12=), Taiwan China
Pacific Catering Service (& /&ZEEZEE) and Taiwan Taoyuan International
Airport Service Company (& /& kEMmEIR% 2 7)), as well as chairman of
the board of Taiwan Air Cargo Terminal (&/&ZEEYR2A 7). In 2001, he
relocated to Hong Kong to join Expeditors International of Washington, Inc.,
a global logistics company, as chief operating officer for the Asia Region. Mr.
Liu graduated from Taiwan Shih Hsin University and attended advanced study
programmes at Stanford University in 1990 and 1993.

Wu Xiaogen: Mr. Wu Xiaogen was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2010. Mr. Wu previously served as
assistant to the general manager and deputy general manager of the securities
department of China Jingu International Trust Investment Company Limited
(FELBREEREEREAREEAT]), and deputy general manager of the
securities management department and general manager of the institutional
management department of China Technology International Trust Investment
Company (FF ERHL R EEHRE 2 a]). From July 2000 to November 2004,
he was head of the audit teaching and research unit and deputy dean of the
School of Accountancy of Central University of Finance and Economics. He
was chief accountant of China First Heavy Industries from November 2004 to
June 2010. He has been a professional external director for central enterprises
since June 2010 and holds the title of researcher. Mr. Wu is also a director
and a member of the Ethics Committee of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an independent director of China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and an
external director of China Three Gorges Corporation. Mr. Wu graduated from
the Department of Economics and Management of the Central University of
Finance and Economics and also obtained a doctoral degree in economics.

Ji Weidong: Mr. Ji Weidong was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2010. Mr. Ji graduated from the
Department of Law of Peking University in 1983 and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law. Mr. Ji completed his masters and doctoral degree courses at
the Graduate School of Kyoto University, Japan from April 1985 to March
1990. From September 1991 to July 1992, he was a visiting scholar at
Stanford Law School. He obtained his doctoral degree from Kyoto University,
Japan in January 1993. From April 1990 to September 1996, Mr. Ji was an
associate professor at the School of Law of Kobe University, Japan. From
October 1996 to March 2009, he was a professor at the School of Law of
Kobe University, Japan. Since 2008, he has been the dean and professor of
Koguan Law School of Shanghai Jiaotong University. He is also currently an
honorary professor at Kobe University, Japan.
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Shao Ruiqing: Mr. Shao Ruiging was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in June 2010. Mr. Shao is currently a
deputy dean, professor in accounting and mentor to doctoral students at
Shanghai Lixin University of Commerce. He was deputy dean and dean of the
School of Economics and Management of Shanghai Maritime University. From
March 2004 to date, he has been deputy dean of Shanghai Lixin University of
Commerce. Mr. Shao graduated from Shanghai Maritime University, Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics and Tongji University with a bachelor
degree in economics, and masters and doctoral degrees in management.
Mr. Shao has been engaged in the teaching, research and practice of the
accounting profession for an extensive amount of time, and has spent two
and a half years studying and being senior visiting scholar in the U.K. and
Australia. He is well-versed and experienced in internal control, IFRS and risk
management standards for foreign enterprises. Mr. Shao was awarded the
Special Allowance by the State Council of the PRC in 1995. Mr. Shao is an
independent director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). He is currently a consultative committee
member of the Ministry of Communications of the PRC, as an expert in finance
and accounting.

Li Jun: Mr. Li Jun was Vice Chairman of the Company and party secretary
and deputy general manager of CEA Holding during the Reporting Period.
Mr. Li joined the civil aviation industry in 1972 and served as officer in the
political department and office secretary of CAAC, person-in-charge of
Policy Research Department in CAAC, deputy director of Policy Research
Department in CAAC, deputy manager and manager of Planning Department
in CAAC, director of the General Office in CAAC and manager of Personnel
Education Department in CAAC. From May 2001 to September 2006,
he served as deputy head and party committee member of CAAC. From
September 2006 to November 2011, Mr. Li served as party secretary and
deputy general manager of CEA Holding. From June 2007 to November
2011, he served as Vice Chairman of the Company. Mr. Li ceased to act as
Vice Chairman and Director of the Company since November 2011 due to his
other professional commitments. Mr. Li graduated from the Party School of
the Central Committee of the C.P.C. and holds a bachelor degree in economic
management and is a qualified senior economist and senior political work
instructor.

Luo Chaogeng: Mr. Luo Chaogeng was a Director of the Company and
deputy general manager of CEA Holding during the reporting period. Mr. Luo
joined the civil aviation industry in 1970 and served as flight mechanic of the
instructing team of the Lanzhou Civil Aviation Administration, flight mechanic
and vice instructor of the 8th Civil Aviation Flight Team, deputy commissar
and commissar of the Xi’an Flight Team of China Northwest Airlines, deputy
general manager of the aircraft maintenance base of China Northwest
Airlines, deputy director of the Northwest Civil Aviation Administration, general
manager of Yunnan Airlines and director of Yunnan Provincial Civil Aviation
Administration. From November 2001 to September 2002, he was general
manager of Yunnan Airlines. From September 2002 to September 2004,
he was a party member and deputy general manager of CEA Holding and
general manager of Yunnan Airlines of CEA Holding. From September 2004
to October 2006, he was President of the Company. From September 2004
to May 2011, he was a party member and deputy general manager of CEA
Holding. Mr. Luo served as a non-executive director of TravelSky Technology
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from 3 March
2009. Mr. Luo has ceased to act as Director of the Company since June 2011
due to his retirement. From September 1998 to June 2001, Mr. Luo attended
the postgraduate course in economics and management for incumbent
leading cadres of Shaanxi Province at the Central Party School. Mr. Luo has
been recognized as possessing first class competency in flight mechanics.
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Yu Faming: Mr. Yu Faming is currently the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company and party member and head of party disciplinary
inspection group of CEA Holding. Mr. Yu served as cadre of the Scientific
Research Institute, cadre of the office secretariat and deputy director of
the Survey and Research Department of the Policy Research Office of the
Ministry of Labour and Human Resources of the PRC, head of the Integration
Division of the Department of Policy and Regulation of the Ministry of Labour
of the PRC, manager and deputy general manager of the Integrated Planning
Department of China Star Corporation, deputy head of the Labour Science
Research Institute of the Ministry of Labour of the PRC, deputy head and
head of the Labour Science Research Institute of the Ministry of Labour
Protection of the PRC. From March 2002 to June 2008, he served as head
of the Training and Employment Department of the Ministry of Labour
Protection of the PRC. From June 2008 to May 2011, he served as head of
the Employment Department of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the PRC. Since May 2011, he has been party member and head of
party disciplinary inspection group of CEA Holding. Since June 2011, he has
served as the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company. Mr.
Yu graduated from Shandong University majoring in philosophy. He holds the
title of associate research fellow.

Feng Jinxiong: Mr. Feng Jinxiong is currently a Supervisor and General
Manager of the Audit Department of the Company. Mr. Feng joined the civil
aviation industry in 1982, and served in the Planning Department of Shanghai
Civil Aviation Administration as well as the Planning Department of the
Company. He was Deputy Director and Director of the Planning Department
of the Company, director of the Finance Department of CEA Holding, deputy
chief accountant of CEA Holding and Manager of the Human Resources
Department of the Company. He served as vice president of China Eastern
Air Jin Rong Company (#7722 &) from 2003 to 2005, deputy general
manager of the Shanghai Ground Service Department of the Company from
2005 to 2007, as well as president of the China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co.,
Ltd. from 2007 to 2009. Since February 2009, he has been General Manager
of the Audit Department of the Company. He has been a Supervisor of the
Company since March 2009. Mr. Feng graduated from the Civil Aviation
University of China and the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences, holding a masters degree.

Yan Taisheng: Mr. Yan Taisheng is currently a Supervisor and the Vice
Chairman of the Labour Union of the Company. Mr. Yan joined the civil
aviation industry in 1973, and served in the Command Centre and the General
Office of Shanghai Civil Aviation Administration. He served as Chief of the
Board Secretariat of the General Office of the China Eastern Airlines Company,
manager of Shanghai Civil Aviation Dong Da Industry Company (/&R
RE /2 7)) and Deputy Director of the General Office of the Labour Union of
the Company. From 2002 to 2005, he served as Director of the General Office
of Labour Union of the Company. He has been Vice Chairman of the Labour
Union and Director of the General Office of the Labour Union of the Company
since 2005. He has been a Supervisor of the Company since March 2009. Mr.
Yan graduated from East China Normal University.

Liu Jiashun: Mr. Liu Jiashun is currently a Supervisor of the Company. He
served as party secretary, deputy president and secretary of the disciplinary
committee of China Aviation Fuel Hainan Company, chairman of the board
and president of Hainan Nanyang Air Transport Co., Ltd., chief director in
charge of fuel supply engineering at Haikou’s Meilan Airport, a director of
Meilan Airport Co., Ltd., and vice chairman of the board and president of
Meiya Company (3EZ2 B % AR A al). From 1999 to 2007 he was deputy party
secretary, and subsequently the secretary of the disciplinary committee of
China Aviation Fuel East China Company, and served as the general manager
of Shanghai Pudong Airport Fuel Co., Ltd. (- /&ifiamB R 2 &) from 2006
to March 2009. Since October 2009, Mr. Liu has served as party secretary
of FREMZEMAIEER A R] (China Aircraft Fuel Huadong Company). Mr. Liu
has been a Supervisor of the Company since 2000. Mr. Liu was awarded a
postgraduate qualification and is qualified as a senior political work instructor.

TER : TEEEEREARRAEESEFE  RfEHE
EAKE  ElghAER TEERETREHAS
ERESBRIBMIEMEE  MABMERHE - BERHR
MR R - TRESHHERFOEA ARG RER
B P B R A B AT A A B AR A AT BIRRASIE - B
K DESHRLPHUBMAMEIME - PES

RIEMLLSBEBMEMAIFTR - T ESBREHL BT
BREMAR - —EE_F=AE2_TT/\FRALEF
BEERERLEIRERRR  —TENFAAE-F
——FRAAEREANBERMESRESAXA AR
—TFRARERMEERBEKES - Bl mERE
K B —FRNAREARREEGER - TRES
FNIURARBHER - BHEITT SR -

Re BEEALREADEES B HALHE -
BAER—ANZEMARME - GRBRRM LEE
ERFEIE AR EE  REAQRNBERER
R RMEEMBHAE - RMEBEA G - A&
RAIANERPEE - —TZ=F2_TTRFERM

SHRAFRERE  —TERFE -_TELEFEARAF]
LBRESRAKE  —ETHFE - TTHFIH
RAMEREERETAAMELE  _TETNE_AF

S EARRAEAPEALE c —_TTNEF=RRELRR
AEE  BEAEENTEEMAZRPEL SN S5
ME AR - EAELTHRESE -

HRER  ARBAEREALAES  TERIEFE - &
EER—NE=FMARME @ ERBREM LSEE
BIEER WA= - DERMBRN QAR AEWERF
£ LERMRAEBEEARALE  ARBTERAZE
T —EE - FE_TERAFEARAIEHAE

- —ERRFESEARRAIGRIEFERIGHRAE
ITE —ZENF=-AREARFESR - HMELEXN
FERAMEE AL o

BIRIE : AKIBEEREARAES - LB ERH
MEmEERARERERL  BIBLE  LEEL 8
MEAMEERERARNESE  AKHE  BOXHK
SR TREEER  XWRSAERETARESEME
DEXARAFREEER  BKE - —NWNWNFE-T
ZLEEPRMEANERAAEREECRLEE
L CEERFE_ZETNAF=ACLERMOBER
AABEE  —TRNFETAZSEPEMERHAER
REEEER - BEER_TSTTEFRERRAES -
BIEEAFRRLELE - SRBTEELR -

PEESMERGARAR 2011 Fik

39



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
TERREE

Liu Jiangbo: Ms. Liu Jiangbo was the chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company, and party member, deputy general manager and head of
disciplinary inspection group of CEA Holding during the Reporting Period.
Ms. Liu joined the civil aviation industry in 1979 and served as an officer in the
Beijing Civil Aviation Administration and deputy secretary of the committee of
C.P.C. of the transportation business division, secretary of the committee of
the Communist Youth League of the National Civil Aviation, deputy director
of the personnel department of the Air Traffic Control Bureau of the PRC,
supervisor to the CAAC appointed by the Ministry of Supervision of the PRC,
deputy director of the transportation division of CAAC and vice president of
Yunnan Airlines Corporation Limited. She served as a party member, deputy
general manager and head of the disciplinary examination committee of CEA
Holding from October 2002 to May 2011. Ms. Liu has ceased to act as the
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee and Supervisor of the Company since
June 2011 due to retirement. Ms. Liu graduated from the Graduate School of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, majoring in business management of
industrial economics. She was awarded the postgraduate qualification and is
qualified as a senior political work instructor.

Xu Zhao: Mr. Xu Zhao was a Supervisor of the Company during the Reporting
Period and is currently a candidate for Director of the Company and the chief
accountant of CEA Holding. Mr. Xu served as engineer and accountant of
Dongfeng Motor Group Company Limited, manager of the finance department
of Shanghai Yanhua High Technology Limited Company and chief financial
officer of Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automobile Co., Ltd. Since November 2006,
Mr. Xu has served as chief accountant of CEA Holding. He was a Supervisor
of the Company from June 2007 to November 2011. Mr. Xu was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Yingde Gases Group Company
Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with effect from
September 2009. Mr. Xu has been recommended as a candidate for Director
of the Company and has ceased to act as a Supervisor of the Company since
November 2011. Mr. Xu graduated from Chongging University, majoring in
moulding, and the Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring in accounting,
and holds a masters degree. Mr. Xu is qualified as an engineer and an
accountant, and is a certified public accountant in the PRC.

Tang Bing: Mr. Tang Bing is currently a Vice President of the Company and
party member of CEA Holding. Mr. Tang joined the civil aviation industry
in 19983. He served as deputy manager of the Engineering Technology
Division under the Aircraft Engineering Department of /B 5 finZ= G R A
(China Southern Airlines Company Limited), deputy director of the Busmess
Development Department of & R # (& T2 AR A &) (Guangzhou Aircraft
Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd.), and vice director of its Accessories
Business Centre. From June 2003 to December 2005, he was vice president
of TR/FEE R FEEF & AR A 7] (MTU Maintenance Zhuhai Co., Ltd.). From
December 2005 to March 2007, he served as office director of China Southern
Airlines Holding Company. From March 2007 to December 2007, he was
the president of EEMZ=AR A& (Chongging Airlines Company Limited).
From December 2007 to May 2009, he served as chief engineer and general
manager of the Aircraft Engineering Department of China Southern Airlines
(@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Hong Kong Stock
Exchange). From May 2009 to December 2009, he was appointed as general
manager of the Beijing Branch of the Company and was a Vice President
of the Company since February 2010. He served as a director and general
manager of Shanghai Airlines since January 2010, and was appointed as
the chairman of Shanghai Airlines in January 2012. He has served as a party
member of CEA Holding since May 2011. Mr. Tang graduated from Nanjing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics majoring in electrical technology.
He obtained a master of business administration degree (MBA) from the
Administration Institute of Sun Yat-sen University and an EMBA degree from
the School of Economics and Management of Tsinghua University.
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Shu Mingjiang: Mr. Shu Mingjiang is currently a Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Shu joined the Shanghai Flight Team of CEA in 1989 as flight
instructor, deputy squadron leader and squadron leader. He served as deputy
general manager of Shanghai Eastern Flight Training Co., Ltd. (F/&E 5
1T FIBR A R]), a subsidiary of the Company, deputy head of the Safety
Monitoring Division, vice manager and subsequently manager of the Safety
Monitoring Department of CEA. From April 2004 to May 2005, he was deputy
general manager of the Shanghai Flight Division of the Company. From May
2005 to November 2006, he was deputy general manager of the Yunnan
Branch of the Company. From November 2006 to December 2009, he was
the Chief Pilot and General Manager of the Operating Control Division of the
Company. From December 2009 to November 2011, Mr. Shu was general
manager of the Beijing Branch of the Company. He has been a Vice President
of the Company since December 2011. Mr. Shu graduated from the Flight
College of Civil Aviation Flight University of China, majoring in aviation flying,
and attached a postgraduate programme in flight safety management jointly
held by Civil Aviation University of China, ENAC, France and ENSICA, France
from October 2001 to April 2003, obtaining a masters degree in flight safety
management.

Wu Yongliang: Mr. Wu Yongliang is currently a Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the civil aviation industry
in 1984 and served as deputy director of the Finance Department of CEA.
Subsequent to the stock reform of the Company, he served as Deputy
Director and subsequently Director of the Finance Department of the Company
and Director of Planning and Finance Department of the Company. He served
as head of the Finance Department of CEA Holding from 2000 to 2001
and deputy chief accountant and head of the Finance Department of CEA
Holding from 2001 to March 2009. From April 2009 onwards, he has served
as Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He has been a Vice President of
the Company since December 2011. Mr. Wu graduated from the Economic
Management Department of Civil Aviation University of China, majoring in
planning and finance. He also graduated from Fudan University, majoring in
business administration. Mr. Wu was awarded the postgraduate qualification
and Certified Accountant.

Tian Liuwen: Mr. Tian Liuwen is currently a Vice President of the Company
and general manager of Shanghai Airlines. Mr. Tian worked with Civil Aviation
Industrial Airline Company (FRfin T %M1 %572 7)) and the Operating Department
of China General Aviation Corporation. He served as manager of the Beijing
Sales Department under the Marketing and Sales Division of China General
Aviation Corporation, director of the General Manager Office of the Shanxi
Branch of the Company, and Chairman of the Labour Union and Deputy
General Manager of the Shanxi Branch of the Company. From June 2002
to January 2008, he was the deputy general manager and subsequently
general manager of the Hebei Branch of the Company. During April 2005 to
January 2008, he was general manager of the Beijing Branch of the Company.
From January 2008 to December 2011, he served as general manager of
China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company. Since
December 2011, he has been Vice President of the Company. He obtained an
EMBA from Nanjing University and is qualified as senior economist.
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Wang Jian: Mr. Wang is currently the Board Secretary, a joint company
secretary of the Company (the “doint Company Secretary”), a representative
of the Company’s securities affairs and the head of the Board secretariat of
the Company. Mr. Wang joined the Company in 1995. From June 2002 to
February 2004, he was deputy head of the general manager’s office of the
Company. From February 2004 to September 2006, he served as deputy
general manager of the Shanghai Business Office of the Company. From
September 2006 to May 2009, he was the deputy general manager in the
Shanghai Base of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. From May
2009 to date, he served as a representative of the Company’s securities
affairs and head of the Board secretariat of the Company. Since April 2012,
he was appointed as the Board Secretary and a Joint Company Secretary
of the Company. Mr. Wang has obtained a qualification certificate for board
secretaries of listed companies issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr.
Wang graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University and has an MBA from
East China University of Science and Technology and an EMBA degree from
Tsinghua University.

Ngai Wai Fung: Mr. Ngai is currently a Joint Company Secretary. Mr. Ngai is a
fellow and vice president of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Ngai is currently the director and chief executive officer
of SW Corporate Services Group Limited. He used to serve as joint company
secretary in several companies and has rich experience in being a company
secretary, as well as in enterprise management, legal matters, finance and
corporate governance. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Since April 2012, Mr. Ngai was
appointed as the Joint Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ngai has a
Doctorate in Finance from the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics,
a masters degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, an MBA from Andrews University in the United States and a
Bachelor’s degree (Honours) in Law from the University of Wolverhampton in
the United Kingdom.

Zhang Jianzhong: Mr. Zhang Jianzhong was a Vice President of the
Company during the Reporting Period. Mr. Zhang joined the civil aviation
industry in 1982 and served as an assistant of the planning department of
Shanghai Civil Aviation Administration, a deputy director of the planning
department of Shanghai Honggiao International Airport, a director of the
planning department of China Eastern Airlines, and a manager of the sales
and marketing department, an assistant to general manager, a director of the
Office of Strategic Study and a general manager of the Computer Information
Centre of the Company. From April 2003 to June 2004, he was the Chief
Economist of the Company. From May 2003 to June 2004, he served
concurrently as General Manager of the Sales and Marketing Department of
the Company. From June 2004 to November 2011, he was a Vice President of
the Company. Mr. Zhang has ceased to act as Vice President of the Company
since November 2011 due to his other professional commitments. Mr. Zhang
graduated from the Faculty of Mechanical Engineering of Zhejiang University
and also from Fudan University, majoring in economics and management, and
was awarded a masters postgraduate degree.
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Zhao Jinyu: Mr. Zhao Jinyu was a Vice President of the Company during
the Reporting Period. Mr. Zhao joined the civil aviation industry in 1978 and
served as deputy director and director of the Flying Safety and Technology
Department of China General Aviation Corporation, general manager of the
Flying Aviation Department of the Shanxi Branch of the Company and vice
president of the Shanxi Branch of the Company. He was general manager
of the Hebei Branch of the Company from January 2000 to January 2004,
general manager of the Anhui Branch of the Company from January 2004 to
May 2008, managing vice president of the Yunnan Branch of the Company
from May 2008 to July 2008, general manager of the Yunnan Branch of
the Company from July 2008 to December 2009 and Vice President of the
Company from December 2009 to November 2011. Mr. Zhao has ceased to
act as Vice President of the Company since December 2011 due to his other
professional commitments. Mr. Zhao graduated from the China Civil Aviation
Flight College, specializing in aircraft flying and holds the title of Second Class
Pilot.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has issued a confirmation in
respect of the factors set out in the Listing Rules concerning his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

CHANGES IN THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Name Date of termination

®E BERH

Termination

BEE

Li Jun 3 November 2011

xS —T——&%+—HA=H

Luo Chaogeng 29 June 2011

EHR —T——FRAZTNA

Liu Jiangbo 13 June 2011

£l pawsd —T——FXAT=H
29 June 2011
—E——HFXA=-TAIAH

Xu Zhao 11 November 2011

REQ —Z——%+—-A+—H

Zhang Jianzhong 25 November 2011

SRz —E——fF+—-A=+AhH

Zhao Jinyu 13 December 2011

HE® —T——H+=ZR+=H

Luo Zhuping 6 April 2012

BT —E—FMAKA

Note: Mr. Luo Zhuping, a Director of the Company, ceased to act as the Board Secretary
and the Company Secretary from 6 April 2012 due to other business engagements.
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Position

B

Vice Chairman, Director
BEER %

Director

R

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
EEeER

Supervisor

BE

Supervisor

BE

Vice President

BliasIg

Vice President

BliasIg

Board Secretary, Company Secretary
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Name Date of appointment Approval organization
®H RS REBHE
Appointment
BF
Ma Xulun 11 November 2011

10th meeting of the sixth session of the Board

Position

Loz

Vice Chairman

SR —T——%+—A+—H FREEFEEI0REGH BEER
Li Yangmin 29 June 2011 2010 annual general meeting Director
FER —T——FRAZTNA —T-THEERFEAE 5%
Yu Faming 29 June 2011 2010 annual general meeting Supervisor
T8 —T——FRAZTNA —T-THEERFEAE EE
29 June 2011 7th meeting of the sixth session of the Supervisory Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
Committee
—T——F R AZTNA EVNELE S E YN EEEIR
Shu Mingjiang 13 December 2011 12th meeting of the sixth session of the Board Vice President
AT —T——%+ZA+=H EREEFEE12REH BlaEaos
Wu Yongliang 13 December 2011 12th meeting of the sixth session of the Board Vice President
RKR —T——%+ZA+=H EREEFEE12REH BlaEgos
Tian Liuwen 13 December 2011 12th meeting of the sixth session of the Board Vice President
& X —T——%+ZA+=H EREEFEE12REH BlaEgos
Wang Jian 6 April 2012 13th meeting of the sixth session of the Board Board Secretary, the Joint Company
Secretary
padied —E——FMAKNA EREEFEEI1BNEGH EEghE  BERRNE
Ngai Wai Fung 6 April 2012 13th meeting of the sixth session of the Board Joint Company Secretary
Bz —E——FMAKNA EREEFEEI1BNEGH BEARWE

Note: The 10th meeting of the sixth session of the Board held on 11 November 2011
agreed to nominate Xu Zhao and Gu Jiadan as candidates for Directors of the sixth
session of the Board, which will be submitted to the forthcoming general meeting
of the Company for consideration. The 10th meeting of the sixth session of the
Supervisory Committee held on 11 November 2011 agreed to nominate Xi Sheng
as candidate for Supervisor of the sixth session of the Supervisory Committee,
which will be submitted to the forthcoming general meeting of the Company for
consideration.

CHANGE OF PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Mr. Ma Xulun, Vice Chairman of the Company, ceased to act as the chairman
of Shanghai Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company, with effect from January
2012 and the chairman of China Cargo Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company,
with effect from February 2012.

Mr. Li Yangmin, a Director of the Company, was appointed as the chairman of
China Cargo Airlines, a subsidiary of the Company, with effect from February
2012 and ceased to act as a director of Shanghai Airlines, a subsidiary of the
Company, with effect from January 2012.

Mr. Shao Ruiging, an independent non-executive Director of the Company,
ceased to act as an external supervisor of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, with effect from August 2011.

Mr. Luo Zhuping, a Director of the Company, ceased to act as the Board
Secretary and the Company Secretary from April 2012.

HHA R ——F+ A+ HFANEEFEFI0RSAZRER
BRE  BEARLRARFENEEFEERREA TR
RERB A —RBERAGESE  —F——F+—H+—
FEREEFEETASAREERERRE EESFE
ERHREA  WRIXANBASI —RARRAGER

,,,,,,, S

M3RAIE13.51B (1) 2 E =X

ARRBEESREAMAEN T ——F— AT HE
FEEM(ARRNHBARNESE —T——F_A#
FTHRETPEM(AARNHNBARNESE °

ARBIEEETERAEN T —_F_AREFTEN
(RRAWMBRRNESR  —T——_F—ATHEE
ER(ERRRREARDESE -

AARBLFATESAHRELAER_T——F/\ A
THEEHABRTENERAR(—RELERESFRS
P~ Bt P ETREY A E)) ROSMNERER S -

ARBIEFBVTEER T ——FHABTHRER
RAEEFEWERARWE -
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SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF
EXECUTIVE, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors,
chief executive, Supervisors or members of senior management of the
Company and their respective associates had any other interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case
may be) of the Company and/or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions
of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
(including any interest or short position which any of such Directors, chief
executive, Supervisors or members of senior management of the Company
and their respective associates were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which was otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (which shall be deemed to apply to
the Supervisors to the same extent as it applied to the Directors).

In 2011 and as at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors, chief executive,
Supervisors, members of senior management of the Company and/or any of
their spouses or children under the age of eighteen were granted any right,
and the Company had not made any arrangement enabling any of them, to
subscribe for equity securities or debt securities of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract
with the Company, which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or Supervisors had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to during the Reporting Period (the term ‘contract of
significance’ having the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph 15 of Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Details of the remuneration of Directors and Supervisors are set out in note 9
to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 59,872 employees, a majority of
whom worked in the PRC. The wages of the Group’s employees generally
consisted of basic salary and performance-based bonus.

BE - THAE BEENSRE
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MEDICAL INSURANCE

The majority of the Group’s PRC employees participate in the medical
insurance schemes organised by the municipal governments, under which
the Group and its employees are required to contribute to the schemes
approximately 12% and 2%, respectively, of the employee’s basic salaries. For
those employees who participate in these schemes, the Group has no other
obligation for the payment of medical expense beyond such contributions.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s medical insurance
contributions charged to the income statement amounted to RMB374 million
(2010: RMB281 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and the Group
as at 31 December 2011 are set out in note 32 to the financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS.

INTEREST CAPITALIZED

Interest capitalized by the Group as calculated in accordance with IFRS for the
year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB260 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011 and profit appropriation by the Company are set
out in note 41 to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

STATUTORY COMMON WELFARE FUND

Details in relation to the statutory common welfare fund, such as the nature
and application of and movements in the fund, and the basis of its calculation,
including the percentage used for calculating the amounts, are set out in note
41 to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable purposes amounting
to approximately RMBO.7 million.

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Company’s employee retirement scheme and post retirement
benefits are set out in note 36 to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In 2011, purchases by the Company from the largest and five largest suppliers
accounted for 11% and 25.7%, respectively, of the total annual purchases
of the Company. Sales to the Company’s five largest customers amounted
to approximately RMB7,064 million, accounting for 8.4% of the Group’s total
revenue.

None of the Directors, Supervisors or any of their respective associates nor
any shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, hold 5% or more of
the Company’s share capital has any interest in any of the above mentioned
suppliers and customers.

GENERAL MEETINGS AND BOARD MEETINGS

General Meetings

The 2011 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 28
February 2011 at Shanghai International Airport Hotel (& BB #4352 £7),
2550 Hongagiao Road, Shanghai. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 28 February 2011.

The 2010 annual general meeting of the Company were held on 29 June 2011
at the Meeting Centre, Shanghai International Airport Hotel (=5 BIFS #3525 68),
2550 Honggiao Road, Shanghai. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 29 June 2011.

Board Meetings
Date of
Session of Meeting Meeting Announced Resolutions
EEER BHEH BERERE
The 1st regular meeting of the sixth session 18 February 2011 For detalils, please refer to the

of the Board in 2011 Company’s announcement
issued in Hong Kong dated

18 February 2011

FAEEZE0MEFIRIE

The 2nd regular meeting of the sixth session 30 March 2011

of the Board in 2011 Company’s announcement
issued in Hong Kong dated
30 March 2011

FAEEZEMEF2NIE

20112 A 18H FHERERARRERBTIEN
BEA2011F2F18BAANE

For detalils, please refer to the

201143 A30H HERAADAEB BT
HHEA2011EIA0EMAE

TEHREREER

ZE——FARARARAHEE NS HE RS S
B RMEFEEREATERN11%125.7% @ ANQ B AFI5E
EEHEENKRARELN B ARK70.64(ETT @ (hARE)E
I AHB.4% °

BES EFYEBRBEANEABRARREEMANRE
5%k A _EAR A B 2 BCR A sl R B P
BiE(HEE -

BRAE

BRERAE

EELGHER

ARFN=F——E= A=+ \BEDE BB
25509 LIS EI 5 B2 172011 5 — AR REAIA
& HMBAAATNEMASE——F-A=TN\AN
A -

AATR-E——FA At ABESE LENEY
26509 LBEI A R E B OB =T~ THAB
TAE  HEBRAANABA-T—EXA- TN

Unannounced Resolutions

RAERE

The financial budget of the Company for 2011, the investment
plan of the Company for 2011, the resolution on the disposal
of three B767 aircraft by swap, work report of the President for
2010 and the working plan for 2011, and the work reports for
2010 and the working plan reports for 2011 of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, Aviation Safety and Environment
Committee, Planning and Development Committee and Audit and
Risk Management Committee of the Board were considered and
passed.

EEBBART0MEEHBEE  ARF0NEFERER
- BRUERAREESEBIOTRBNZE - AARBLE
20106 TIEREMONEE LIS URESGREES
HZ8g MZER2HRELEE  RARRZEL A
RERZEEER2010F TEER R0 FTIETEI8HE -

The resolution on the preparation of the Risk Management Manual
of Derivative Business and the work report for 2010 and the
working plan for 2011 of the hedging operation of the Company
were considered and passed.
BRRBARMETARRITERBRBERFMNEER - AR
AIEBREXEB2010EE TEFRRAM2011 FE IR E -
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Date of
Session of Meeting Meeting
BBER BHAH

The 3rd regular meeting of the sixth session 28 April 2011
of the Board in 2011

EZQ011FEINDIE 201144280
The 5th meeting of the sixth session 30 May 2011
of the Board
NEEFEEOREH 201154308
The 6th meeting of the sixth session 13 June 2011
of the Board
FREEFEFONES 2011F6A13H
The 7th meeting of the sixth session 29 June 2011
of the Board
FREEFEETNGH 201146A29A
The 8th meeting of the sixth session 25 July 2011
of the Board
FREEFEFONGH 201147 A 250

The 4th regular meeting of the sixth session 29 August 2011
of the Board in 2011

ENEEEE11FFE4NIE 201148 A29H
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Announced Resolutions

/'\d:/kﬁ

For detalils, please refer to the
Company’s announcement
issued in Hong Kong dated
28 April 2011
FHEFRRALAEEATIES
HEA2011F4A28BMAE

For detalils, please refer to the
Company’s announcement
issued in Hong Kong dated
29 June 2011

HEERAARERETEN
BEA2011F6 A29B NS

Unannounced Resolutions

ROERE

The resolutions on the issuance of RMB bonds offshore and the
establishment of a wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong Kong were
considered and passed.

FRABENEING
2EFRAMBR -

TARBBEFNER  BREDERI—

The resolution on the proposal of issuing RMB bonds offshore
was considered and passed.
BRRBRIMNETARBESF HRNER -

The resolutions on the work position and remuneration reform of
the Company and the adjustment of Director candidates of the
Company were considered and passed.
EZRBERNARARBUEFHSESRNEER  BRREBARA
EEARMEER -

The resolutions on the preparation of the Comprehensive Risk
Management and Internal Control Manual of China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited, the settlement and consolidation
proposal of investment companies under the Company and the
transfer of 5% equity interest in CEA Real Estate Investment held
by the Company were considered and passed.
ERBBENE(PRERAMERDERARZERARERE
W%&ﬂ¥ﬁ>m%%\%%$AﬂT§&é AEREARE
MER  BREZARTMBRMEHER T5%RENER -

The resolutions on the division of the Safety Operation
Management Department into the Safety Supervision Department
and Operation Management Department and the reconstruction
and expansion project of China United Airlines. at the Nanyuan
Airport were considered and passed.
EERBERNER2ETEESIRAL 2 ERNMETEEL
HER - BRREREESERERNEE -

The resolutions on the interim financial report of the Company for
2011, interim report of the Company for 2011, the investment in
It R 2= VE i 20 E AR 75 A BR 2 A (Beijing Aviation Ground Services
Co. Ltd.), the construction of a new freight area of the Northwest
Branch of the Company and the construction of a temporary
freight terminal of China Cargo Alrlines. at the westemn freight area
of Pudong Airport by the Company were considered and passed.
FRRBAREONEDRYHRE  ARF0NFRHR
% BRARERZEEMEHAREERATNZEE - BREL
PRAMEEREAANER  ARAHERTENRERER
RESREERENSIIERNER -




REPORT OF DIRECTORS

Egggé;i&tbéi
= ==
Date of
Session of Meeting Meeting
BBER BHAH
The 9th meeting of the sixth session 10 October 2011
of the Board
FREERCFINGH 20116104108
The 5th regular meeting of the sixth session 28 October 2011
of the Board in 2011
ERBEFG0NFEINNE 2011610288

The 10th meeting of the sixth session 11 November 2011

of the Board

FREEZEFI0REE 201111 A118

The 11th meeting of the sixth session 25 November 2011
of the Board

EVNEEES-EANVN- 2011611 258

The 12th meeting of the sixth session 13 December 2011
of the Board

NEEFQE1208H 2011125138

Announced Resolutions
EAERE

For detalils, please refer to the
Company’s announcement
issued in Hong Kong dated
11 November 2011

FHBRERAARRERBTIEN
AE#A2011F11 11 A/

R

For detalils, please refer to the
Company’s announcement
issued in Hong Kong dated
13 December 2011
HEFRAARERBHEN
AEA2011412 5130 /)

D

Unannounced Resolutions

ROERE

The resolutions on the purchase of fifteen Airbus A330 series
aircraft and the disposal of five A340-300 aircraft and the swap
of twenty-four B787 aircraft for forty-five B737-800 aircraft were
considered and passed.
ERARBURARARE1GRERABRIIRE R HESR
A340-300TR i FY £ 5 - BEF 2442 B787 i E #45%8737-800
REHER -

The resolutions on the third quarterly financial report of the
Company for 2011, the working plan for 2012 of the hedging
operation of the Company, the amendment of the Risk
Management Manual of Derivative Business of the Company, the
capital increase in China United Airlines, the receipt of the transfer
of equity interests in Aviation Data Communication Corporation,
the purchase of properties in Hangzhou by the Zhejiang Branch
of the Company, the disposal of properties in stock of the
Company, the third quarterly report of the Company for 2011 and
the amendment of the Working Regulations of Presidents were
considered and passed.

EZRBARAR0NFE=FERBRE - ARF0126EH
RETEFE - ENMEATARRGITAERBRREEF NG
R BRUTRHULENER  BRXERAERREARAT]
RENER BRI ARMMEEBBEE AR  BRE
EARAFERENER  ARRONFE=FERS  BRE
KRR THEHEMER «

The resolutions on the construction of an aircraft repair area of
the Beijing Branch of the Company, the disposal of the remaining
flight equipment of MD90 aircraft and the scrapping of a CF6
aircraft engine were considered and passed.

FARAENMLR ) RARBRERZZARNER  BRHE
MDOF MR RAM MR - BN HRE —ACFoRE R BN S

.
o

The resolution on the introduction of two simulation aircraft by
EEARTIEIIBR AR (Shanghai Eastern Flight Training Co.,
Ltd.) was considered and passed.

FRBBMR LS IEIARA T LA TRLAR

FREREAMERNBRAR 2011 F3R
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 4 November 2011, in order to be more focused on the core aviation
business and the related business of the Company, the Company entered
into an equity transfer agreement with F8H & EHR A7 (Shanghai
Eastern Airlines Investment Co., Ltd.) (“SEA Investment”), pursuant to which
the Company agreed to transfer 5% of the equity interest in HRfiE HE
& HR AT (CEA Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd.) (‘CEA Real Estate
Investment”) held by the Company to SEA Investment. SEA Investment
agreed to pay a sum of RMB100,663,590 in cash to the Company, subject to
modification, as the consideration for this transaction. SEA Investment, which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEA Holding (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), is a connected person of the Company and thus, the transaction
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company. The transaction had not
completed as at 31 December 2011. For additional details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 4 November
2011.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The annual transaction caps for the continuing connected transactions, which
were considered and approved by the Board and at the general meetings of
the Company, and their actual amounts incurred up to 31 December 2011,
are set out as follows:

FER S

R-ZE——&+—AMA - A7 EITARQBNME
FENBRAEENLE  AARHEESEMEEERA
A([RBAFDETCREE R GZ) - Bt - ARE)H
AR RMEEREERAR([RMEBEAR])
5% MR RG RN « (FARARGHEE - Bi%
AAIRAE AR S A A ZAAR A AREE100,663,5907T
(ZRAAR) - REAFRERMEE (AR EER
RINZEWBAR  DAARNBEEAL  BERS
FHEBKAAR—HBRERS BEZZT—F+=A
=+—HB ZRHEAEK  FEBL2EEAQREDH
HEHRBA=Z——F+—AMNBEMAL -

FEMER S
BARAEFE  REASBRUEQ S BEMER S

FELREBE"ZT——F+-A=+—HLENEEZE
ERRHIRIAT

The approved

Category R5EH

Financial services (balance of deposit) SRR (TF 3R eRER)
Catering services Mzl & BR %S
Import and export agency services HEHORIERS

Production and maintenance services

R RRTS K st I AR

Property leasing YERE

Advertising agency services BEERIZIR

Sales agency services (agency fee) EBRERB(RESR)
Media resources operation services RS &R ARG

Incurred up to
31 December 2011

2011 estimated
transaction caps

BE
—E——fF KHEER
+=ZA=t+—8 —E2——F
K E5E FEERZSELR
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ARBHET) (ARBAET)
2,200.000 4,000.000
737.827 825.000
57.682 81.900
102.614 103.320
55.140 79.800
18.202 36.000
20.361 80.000
12.900 40.000

Details of the Group’s continuing connected transactions with the Company’s
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) during the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out in note 45 to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

For further details regarding the above continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the Company’s 2010 annual report.
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The Company’s independent non-executive Directors have reviewed such
continuing connected transactions during the year 2011 and confirmed that:

(@)

the transactions have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and
usual course of its business;

the transactions have been entered into either () on normal commercial
terms or (ii) (where there are not sufficient comparable transactions
to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms) on terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

the transactions have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the
Company have carried out procedures on the above connected transactions
disclosed herein for the year ended 31 December 2011 in accordance with
the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
reported that, in respect of the above connected transactions:

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved
by the Board.

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Company.

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected
transactions as set out in the appendix to this letter, nothing has come
to our attention that causes us to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual
value disclosed in the previous announcement dated 15 October 2010
made by the Company in respect of each of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.

In respect of each continuing connected transaction disclosed in note 45 to
the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS, the Company
confirms that it has complied with the relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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Details of the other related party transactions entered by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 45 to the financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. These transactions do not
constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS

Details of the Group’s staff housing benefits are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2011, the Company was not involved in any litigation,
arbitration or claim of material importance.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The Company wishes to highlight the following information:

o2

On 1 August 2011, Eastern Air Overseas (Hong Kong) Corporation
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, issued guaranteed RMB-
dominated bonds of RMB2.5 billion with an interest of 4% per annum
for a period of three years with a maturity date of 8 August 2014. The
issuance completed on 8 August 2011. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 2 August
2011.

On 17 October 2011, the Company entered into the Aircraft Purchase
Agreement and Aircraft Sale Agreement with Airbus SAS regarding the
purchase of fifteen Airbus A330 series aircraft and the sale of five Airbus
A340-300 aircraft. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company issued in Hong Kong dated 17 October 2011.

On 17 October 2011, the Company entered into the B787 Aircraft
Termination Agreement and the Aircraft Purchase Agreement with
Boeing Company regarding the termination of the purchase of 24 Boeing
787 series aircraft and the purchase of 45 Boeing 737NG series aircraft.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company issued
in Hong Kong dated 17 October 2011 and the circular of the Company
dated 25 November 2011.

On 4 November 2011, the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement with SEA Investment, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to transfer 5% of the equity interest in CEA Real Estate
Investment held by the Company to SEA Investment. SEA Investment
agreed to pay a sum of RMB100,663,590 in cash to the Company,
subject to modification, as the consideration of this transaction. SEA
Investment, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEA Holding (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), is a connected person of the
Company and thus, the transaction constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company. The transaction has not completed as of 31 December
2011. For additional details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company issued in Hong Kong dated 4 November 2011.
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5. On 23 March 2012, the Company entered into a binding memorandum
of understanding with Jetstar Airways Pty Limited (“Jetstar”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Qantas Airways Limited. The Company and
Jetstar will jointly establish Jetstar Hong Kong Limited, which will be
a Hong Kong-based low-cost airline. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 25 March
2012.

6.  With effect from 6 April 2012, (i) Mr. Luo Zhuping ceased to act as
the Board Secretary, the Company Secretary and the Authorised
Representative of the Company (the “Authorised Representative”);
and (ii) Mr. Wang Jian and Mr. Ngai Wai Fung have been appointed
as the Joint Company Secretaries, and Mr. Wang Jian has also been
appointed as the Board Secretary and an Authorised Representative.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company issued in
Hong Kong dated 6 April 2012.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ OPINION

Independent Directors of the Company have performed auditing work and
issued an independent opinion on the external guarantees the Company
has provided, as required by the relevant requirements of the CSRC. The
Company has strictly observed the relevant laws and regulations as well as its
articles of association while it has also imposed strict control on the external
guarantees provided. As at 31 December 2011, none of the Company and its
subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements has provided any
guarantee to the Company’s controlling shareholder and other related parties,
other non-corporate bodies and individuals.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Certified Public Accountants) and
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company (registered
accountants in the PRC) were the Company’s international and domestic
auditors in 2011, respectively.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Shaoyong
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
23 March 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and appropriate corporate governance
structure. The Company has also placed emphasis on the corporate
governance principle of having transparency, accountability and safeguarding
the interests of all shareholders.

The Board believes that sound corporate governance is essential to the
development of the Company’s operations. The Board regularly reviews
our corporate governance practices to ensure that the Company operates
in accordance with the laws, regulations and requirements of the listing
jurisdictions, and that the Company continuously implements corporate
governance of a high efficiency.

The Company’s corporate governance practices include but are not limited to
the following:

Articles of association, rules of meeting of general meetings, rules of meeting
of the Board, rules of meeting of the Supervisory Committee, working
regulations of independent directors, management regulations of connected
transactions and constitutional documents of the audit and risk management
committee, constitutional documents of the planning and development
committee, working rules of the nomination and remuneration committee,
working rules of the aviation safety and environment committee, working
regulations of presidents, management regulations of investor relationship,
investor relationship management detailed implementation rules, management
regulations of connected transactions, connected transaction detailed
implementation rules, regulations on external guarantee and the interim
administrative regulations concerning hedging businesses.

For the year ended 31 December 2011 and as at the date of publication of this
annual report, the Board has reviewed the relevant provisions and corporate
governance practices under the codes of corporate governance adopted by
the Company, and took the view that the Company’s corporate governance
practices during the year ended 31 December 2011 met the requirements
under the code provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Code”). In certain aspects,
the code of corporate governance adopted by the Company is more stringent
than the provisions set out in the Code. The following sets out the major
aspects which are more stringent than the Code.

Major aspects which are more stringent than provisions set out in the Code:

- all members of the audit and risk management committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

- 13 meetings of the Board were held during the financial year of 2011.
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BOARD

The Company is managed by the Board. The Board is responsible for the
leading and control of the Company. The Directors are jointly responsible
for the affairs of the Company by directing and supervising the affairs of the
Company.

DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2011, the Board consists of eight Directors, including
four independent non-executive Directors. During the general meeting in
2010 held on 29 June 2011, the shareholders of the Company approved the
appointment of Mr. Li Yangmin as Director of the sixth session of the Board,
while Mr. Luo Chaogeng and Mr. Li Jun ceased to act as Directors of the
Company with effect from 29 June 2011 and 3 November 2011, respectively.
The 10th meeting of the sixth session of the Board held on 11 November
2011 agreed to nominate Xu Zhao and Gu Jiadan as candidates for Directors
of the sixth session of the Board, which will be submitted to the forthcoming
general meeting of the Company for consideration.

All Directors shall retire in the third annual general meeting following their
appointment, but are eligible for re-election. Names, personal particulars
and conditions of appointment of the Directors are set out in page 34 of this
report.

Independent non-executive Directors of the Company shall possess
specialised knowledge and experience. They shall be able to play their roles
of supervising and balancing to the fullest extent to protect the interests of
shareholders and the Company as a whole. The Board considers that they
shall be able to exercise independent judgment effectively, which complies
with guidelines on assessment of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has received the
annual confirmation letters from each of the independent non-executive
Directors on their independence.

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are appointed for
a term of 3 years. The formal appointment letters and the articles of association
of the Company have set out the terms and conditions of their appointment.
Other than working relationships, Directors, Supervisors and members of
senior management of the Company do not have any financial, business or
family connection with one another.
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POWERS OF THE BOARD

On a periodic basis, the Board reviews the relevant performance against
proposed budgets and business objectives of each operating unit. It also
exercises a number of powers retained by the Board, including the following:

- responsibility for convening general meetings and reporting to
shareholders on its work;

- implementing resolutions passed in general meetings;

- deciding on the operating plan and investment proposals of the
Company;

- formulating the annual preliminary and final budget proposals;

- formulating the Company’s profit distribution proposal and the proposal
to offset losses;

- formulating the Company’s proposals to increase or reduce the
registered capital and proposals to issue debt securities;

- drawing up proposals for the Company’s merger, demerger and
dissolution;

- deciding on the Company’s internal management structure;

- employing or dismissing the Company’s President and Secretary to
the Board; appointment or dismissal of the Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on the nomination of the President, and
the determination of their remuneration;

- formulating the basic management systems of the Company;

- formulating proposals to amend the articles of association of the
Company;

- discharging any other powers and functions granted in general meetings.

The Board and the relevant specialized committees are also responsible for
the completeness of financial information and are responsible for maintaining
an effective internal control system and for risk management of the Group,
as well as preparing the financial statements. Setting the business objectives
and overseeing the daily operations are the responsibilities of the chief
executive officer. The Company’s articles of association specify the duties and
authorities of the Board and management. The Board periodically reviews the
duties and functions of the chief executive officer and the powers delegated to
him to ensure that such arrangements are appropriate.
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In order to ensure the balance of powers and authorization, the roles of the
Chairman and the chief executive officer have been clearly defined. The
Chairman of the Company is Mr. Liu Shaoyong, and the chief executive officer
is Mr. Ma Xulun, a Director and the President of the Company. There are also
other senior officers who are responsible for the daily management of the
Company within their scope of duties.

MEETING OF THE BOARD

The Chairman leads the Board to ensure that the Board performs its various
duties effectively and he is responsible for drawing up the agenda of the
meeting of the Board and considering other matters that the other Directors
propose to be included in the agenda. The agenda together with documents
of the Board should be, as far as practicable, circulated at least 3 days prior
to the meeting of the Board or its specialized committees. The Chairman is
also obliged to ensure that all the Directors are suitably briefed on matters
to be raised in the meeting of the Board. The Chairman ensures that the
Directors receive information that is accurate, timely and clear. Through on-
the-job training of Directors, continuous participation in meetings of the Board
and of specialized committees of the Board and meetings with key persons in
headquarters and other departments, the Directors are encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and their understanding of the Group.

The Company has established a specialised organisation, i.e. the secretariat of
the Board, to work for the Board. All the Directors have access to the service
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary periodically updates the
Board of the latest information on governance and regulatory matters. The
Directors may seek independent professional advice through the Chairman for
the purpose of performing their duties, with the cost borne by the Company.
Specialized committees may also seek professional advice.

The Company Secretary is responsible for the records of the Board meetings.
These minutes of meetings together with other related documents for
the Board meetings shall be made available to all members of the Board.
Board meetings are meant to enable the Directors to have open and frank
discussions.

In order to ensure sound corporate governance, as at the date of the
announcement of this annual report, the Board had 4 committees in place:
Audit and Risk Management Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Planning and Development Committee and Aviation Safety and
Environment Committee with their terms of reference drawn up in accordance
with the principles set out in the Code. The Company Secretary drafts the
minutes of meetings for these committees, and the committees report to the
Board.
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The Board held 13 meetings during the Reporting Period. Details of
attendance of each Director at general meetings and Board meetings are set
out as follows:

Directors

=

Liu Shaoyong

2BE

Ma Xulun

5Em

Luo Zhuping

EOT

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu

BzeE

Wu Xiaogen

RER

Ji Weidong

FHR

Shao Ruiging

BRIRE

Li Yangmin (appointed on 29 June 2011)
FERRZZE—F A TIABER)
Li Jun (terminated on 3 November 2011)
FE(RZT——F+—A=HEE)

Luo Chaogeng (terminated on 29 June 2011)
BHER(VW_ZE——F XA TABEE)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

All the Directors shall declare to the Board upon their first appointment their
capacities as directors and any other positions held in other institutions, the
declaration of which shall be renewed once a year. When the Board discusses
any motion or transaction and considers any Director has any conflict of
interest, the Director shall declare his interest and abstain from voting, and
will excuse himself as appropriate. The Company shall, pursuant to guidelines
applicable to the Company, request from Directors their confirmation if they
or their associates are connected with any transactions entered into by the
Company or its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period. Material transactions
which have been confirmed as having been entered into with any connected
person have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements prepared
in accordance with IFRS of this annual report.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the securities transactions code for the Directors. Each of the
Directors and the Supervisors of the Company has been issued with a copy of
the Model Code upon his appointment.

All the Directors and the Supervisors of the Company have confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code in 2011.

The Company has also adopted the related provisions set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, and has established its Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Employees of the Company according to its own situation
and with reference to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. The aforesaid code of conduct shall apply to the conduct of dealings
in the securities of the Company by the Supervisors and members of senior
management of the Company.

In addition, pursuant to the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Stock on Shanghai Stock Exchange, the shares of the Company transferred
by each of the Directors, Supervisors and members of senior management of
the Company every year shall not exceed 25% of the total number of shares
held by each of them, and they are not allowed to purchase the shares of the
Company within six months after they have sold their shares. They are also not
allowed to sell the shares of the Company within six months after they have
bought the shares of the Company. Additionally, within six months after they
have left their appointment, they are not allowed to transfer their shares of the
Company held by them.

All the employees who may have unpublished price-sensitive information
related to the Group are also required to comply with the Model Code. During
the Reporting Period, the Company is not aware of any breach of laws and
regulations.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirm that they are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group.

The Auditor’s report made by the Company’s auditors in respect of the
financial statements is set out on page 76 to page 77 of this annual report.
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2011, the Audit and Risk Management Committee
comprises Mr. Shao Ruiging, Mr. Wu Xiaogen and Mr. Ji Weidong, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Shao Ruiging, the chairman of
the committee, possesses extensive professional qualifications in accounting.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is a specialized committee under
the Board. It is responsible for checking and monitoring the financial reports
and internal control of the Company, checking and evaluating the overall risk
management of the Company, in particular the risk management and risk
control policy for material decision, significant events and major business, and
overseeing their implementation.

(1) INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control system

The Board shall be responsible for the overall internal control system
of the Company/Group and periodically review the effectiveness of
the internal control system through the Audit and Risk Management
Committee. The internal control system is essential to risk management
which, in turn, is important in ensuring that operational objectives
can be achieved. Internal control procedures are designed to prevent
assets from unauthorised use or disposal, to ensure the maintenance
of appropriate accounting records and to provide reliable financial
information either for internal use or for dissemination externally.
However, the control procedures aim at reasonably (but not absolutely)
assuring that there will not be material misrepresentation, loss or
misconduct. The internal control system is prepared in accordance with
the relevant laws, subsidiary regulations and constitutional documents.

The Company reviews the effectiveness of its internal control system
annually, which includes control over finance, operations, compliance
with laws and regulations as well as risk management. The results of
the review have been reported to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board.

The Board confirms that the Company has systems and procedures
in place to identify, manage and report material risks in the course of
achieving its strategic objectives. The Board continues to monitor risks
with the support of the specialised committees and senior management.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s internal audit department is responsible for conducting
an independent audit of whether or not the internal control system
is sufficient and effective. The auditing plan is prepared using a risk
based approach and is discussed and finalized by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee annually. Other than the pre-determined scope
of work for each year, the department is also required to conduct other
specific audits.

The Group’s internal audit department reports to the President; it may
also report directly to the chairman of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee. All the internal audit reports are delivered to the Chairman
of the Board, the President, Chief Financial Officer, the management of
the department being audited and related departments. The outcome
of each audit, in summary, will also be discussed with the Audit and
Risk Management Committee. The Board and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee of the Company actively monitor the number
and seriousness of the inspection results submitted by the internal audit
department, and the relevant corrective measures taken by the relevant
department.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company is
responsible for checking and evaluating the overall risk management
of the Company and overseeing their implementation; checking and
evaluating the risk management and risk control system and duties on
developing aviation fuel, foreign exchange and interest rate hedging
businesses and overseeing their implementation.

The internal audit department has undertaken related risk management
duties and reports to the Audit and Risk Management Committee
periodically. It is responsible for coordinating the implementation of
appropriate procedures to manage the operational risks of the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held five meetings in
2011. In each meeting, senior management and external and internal
auditors were invited to attend. Based on the reports of the external
and internal auditors, according to the accounting principles and
practices, and internal controls adopted by the Group with a view to
comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee conducted reviews of audits, internal control,
risk management and financial statements. The Group’s first quarterly
results, interim results and third quarterly results for 2011 and the final
results for 2011 had been discussed in the Audit and Risk Management
Committee’s meetings before they were submitted to the Board for
approval.
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Attendance of members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meetings is as follows:

Directors

E=

Shao Ruiging
BRImEE

Wu Xiaogen
REER

Ji Weidong
FHR

Additionally, the Audit and Risk Management Committee also conducted
other compliance work to comply with PRC and US reporting
requirements in 2011, including guiding and overseeing the development
of internal controls, hearing and reviewing the overall plan for risk
management, implementing risk management work in accordance with
the requirements of the regulatory authorities, reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and considering the work
undertaken by the management, including management assessment,
to ensure the Company’s compliance with internal control regulations
under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

The constitutional document of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee is posted on the website of the Company and the website of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the Reporting Period, the annual audit fees payable to the external auditors
(both international and domestic auditors) is estimated to be RMB16.10 million
for the regular annual audit of the Group’s 2011 financial statements prepared
under IFRS and PRC Accounting Standards and the other relevant documents
applicable for the purpose of 20-F US filing. A service fee of RMB1.40 million is
also payable to the external auditors for approved non-audit services rendered
during the Reporting Period. The auditors’ remuneration shall be approved by
the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Board.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee obtained a brief understanding of
the scope of the non-audit service and related fees and was satisfied that the
non-audit service (in respect of the nature of service and the total cost of non-
regular audit services compared to regular audit service fee) had not affected
the independence of the accounting firm.
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PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

As of 31 December 2011, the Planning and Development Committee of the
Company comprises three members: Mr. Li Yangmin, Mr. Luo Zhuping and
Mr. Shao Ruiging, all of whom are Directors. Mr. Li Yangmin, a Director, is the
chairman of the committee.

The 2010 general meeting held on 29 June 2011 agreed to elect Mr. Li
Yangmin as a Director of the sixth session of the Board, while Mr. Luo
Chaogeng ceased to act as Director due to retirement. The 7th meeting of the
sixth session of the Board, which was held subsequently, agreed to elect Mr.
Li Yangmin as member of the Planning and Development Committee of the
sixth session of the Board and he was appointed as chairman of the Planning
and Development Committee.

The Planning and Development Committee is a specialized committee under
the Board. It is responsible for studying, considering and making plans or
recommendation in regard to the long term development plans and material
investment decisions of the Company and overseeing their implementation.

Attendance of members of the Planning and Development Committee
meetings is as follow:

Members

Z£8

Li Yangmin
FER

Luo Zhuping
B

Shao Ruiging
BRI

Luo Chaogeng
B

The constitutional document of the Planning and Development Committee is
posted on the website of the company.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board comprises three
members: Liu Shaoyong, Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu and Ji Weidong. Liu Shaoyong is
the chairman of the committee Nete), while both of Mr. Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu and
Ji Weidong are independent non-executive Directors.

Note:  With effect from 1 April 2012, when considering and approving nomination
related matters, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be chaired
by Mr. Liu Shaoyong; when considering and approving remuneration related
matters, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be chaired by Mr.
Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu or Mr. Ji Weidong.
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In 2011, under the leadership of the Board, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board performed their duties diligently to standardize
the election of Directors and senior management, establish and refine the
incentive and assessment mechanism of Directors and senior management
and realize the long-term goals of the Company pursuant to the requirements
of the “Working Rules of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board”. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held six meetings in
total during the year, at which the following were considered and passed:

During the second meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the sixth session of the Board on 15 February 2011, the work report for
2010 and the working plan for 2011 of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee were considered and passed.

During the third meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the sixth session of the Board on 28 March 2011, the remuneration for the
year 2010 of salaried Directors and senior management of the Company was
considered and passed.

During the fourth meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the sixth session of the Board on 13 June 2011, the resolutions on the
proposal on work position and remuneration reform of the Company and the
adjustment of Director candidates were considered and passed.

During the fifth meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
sixth session of the Board on 28 June 2011, the resolutions on the adjustment
of the composition of the Planning and Development Committee and the
Aviation Safety and Environment Committee of the Board were considered
and passed.

During the sixth meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the sixth session of the Board on 9 November 2011, the resolution on the
nomination of Director candidates was considered and passed.

During the seventh meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the sixth session of the Board on 12 December 2011, the resolution on the
appointment of a Vice President was considered and passed.

Attendance of members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are
as follow:

Members

Z£8

Liu Shaoyong
2AE

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu
252

Ji Weidong

FHR

The Working Rules of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are
posted on the website of the Company and the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.
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REMUNERATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS

Directors generally do not receive remuneration from the Company except
independent non-executive Directors who receive a fixed remuneration.
However, Directors who serve in other administrative positions of the
Company will receive salary separately for those positions.

Certain Directors received emoluments from CEA Holding, the parent
company, in respect of their directorship or senior management positions in
the Company and its subsidiaries.

Generally, the policy regarding the remuneration packages of Directors are
aimed primarily at linking the remuneration of Directors and their performance
to the objectives of the Company, in order to motivate them in their
performance and retain them. Pursuant to the policy, the Directors are not
allowed to approve their own remuneration.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company mainly comprises basic
salary and bonus.

BASIC SALARY

The Directors review the basic salary of each Director on an annual basis
pursuant to the remuneration policy of the Company. In 2011, pursuant to
the service contracts entered into between the Company and each of the
Directors, the Directors are entitled to receive a fixed basic salary.

BONUS

Bonuses are calculated based on the measurable performance and
contribution of the operating units for which the Directors are responsible.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Remuneration (before tax) received by the Company’s independent non-
executive Directors in 2011 were as follows:

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu
BI7E

Wu Xiaogen
RIEER

Ji Weidong
EHE

Shao Ruiging
BRImE
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AVIATION SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT
COMMITTEE

The Aviation Safety and Environment Committee comprises Mr. Ma Xulun,
Mr. Li Yangmin and Mr. Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu, and Mr. Ma Xulun serves as the
chairman of the committee. Mr. Li Yangmin, a Director, has been appointed as
a member of the Aviation Safety and Environment Committee in place of Mr.
Luo Chaogeng with effect from June 2011.

The Aviation Safety and Environment Committee is a specialized committee
under the Board. It is responsible for consistent implementation of the
relevant laws and regulations of national aviation safety and environmental
protection, examining and overseeing the aviation safety management of the
Company, studying, considering and making recommendation on aviation
safety plans and major issues of the related safety duties and overseeing their
implementation, studying, considering and making recommendation on major
environmental protection issues in relation to aviation carbon emission on
domestic and international levels and overseeing their implementation.

The Working Rules of the Aviation Safety and Environment Committee are
posted on the website of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company undertakes that the disclosure it makes is fair and the reports
it provides are comprehensive and transparent. The ultimate responsibility of
the Chairman of the Board is to ensure effective communication with investors
and to ensure that the Board is aware of the views of substantial shareholders.
Accordingly, the Chairman is required to meet the shareholders in this regard
and the routine communication of the Board with the substantial shareholders is
mainly conducted through the Company Secretary.

The Company has drawn up and implemented the Information Disclosure
Management System and has further improved the information disclosure
system in order to ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
information disclosed to public; the Company has also established an
information disclosure office for which the Company Secretary is responsible.
The information disclosure office is mainly responsible for the collection,
collation and compilation of basic information for disclosure, and is also
responsible for drawing up the rules and systems for information disclosure
and related internal control and procedures. It is responsible for monitoring the
correct implementation of the various control measures.

The Company has also implemented the Investor Relations Management
System and Investor Relations Management Detailed Implementation Rules,
which specifies the basic principles and the institutional structure of investor
relations management, as well as the duties and responsibilities of investor
relations work, so as to further foster corporate integrity and self-discipline,
and to realize standardized operation, with the ultimate aim of maximizing
corporate value and shareholders’ interests, and ensuring that interests of
investors are protected.
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The Company has released information in relation to its quarterly results.
The latest annual general meeting was held on 29 June 2011 in Shanghai.
The meeting was open to all the shareholders and the media. A total of 30
shareholders attended in person or by proxy.

In the annual general meeting, each matter was proposed as an individual
resolution and voted by poll.

Investors and the public may access our website and download related
document briefings. The website also sets out details of each of the Group’s
operations. Announcements, notices or other documents issued by the
Company may also be downloaded from the website of the Company.

The Company Secretary and the managers of the investor relations department
and the capital investment market department held two specialized meetings
with securities analysts in respect of the 2010 annual financial results and the
2011 interim financial results and one press conference with financial media
and organized 60 one-to-one roadshows and investors’ meetings.

Based on publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the
Directors of the Company, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company is held by the public. As at 31 December 2011, there were a total of
284,381 shareholders on the Company’s register of members.

For any enquiries of the Board, shareholders may contact the Company
Secretary by phone at 8621-62686268 or by e-mail at ir@ceair.com or they
may put forward their questions in the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meetings. In respect of the procedures for shareholders to convene
annual general meeting or extraordinary general meetings, they may enquire
with the Company Secretary through the aforesaid channels.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Shaoyong
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
23 March 2012
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
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Dear Shareholders,

In the new year, the Supervisory Committee will, as in the past, conscientiously
exercise the powers bestowed upon it by the Articles of Association of the
Company and perform corresponding obligations, further strengthen its
supervision of the Company’s financial affairs and ensure compliant business
practices. It will continue to explore a monitoring and control mechanism
which is useful in protecting the investors and promoting the Company’s
development.

63

Meetings Convened by the Supervisory Committee:

On 30 March 2011, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at which
it adopted the Report of the Supervisory Committee for the year 2010,
and resolved that it would be put forward to the 2010 annual general
meeting of the Company for consideration; the Supervisory Committee
considered the financial report of the Company for the year 2010 truly
reflected the financial position and operating results of the Company
which was objective and fair, and resolved that it would be put forward
to the 2010 annual general meeting of the Company for consideration;
the Supervisory Committee adopted the 2010 profit distribution proposal
of the Company, and resolved that it would be put forward to the
2010 annual general meeting of the Company for consideration; the
Supervisory Committee reviewed the full text and summary of the annual
report for 2010 prepared by the Company and expressed a written audit
opinion. Meanwhile, the Supervisory Committee reviewed the resolution
on the day-to-day connected transactions of the Company for the
year 2010 and the self-assessment report on the internal control of the
Company for the year 2010;

On 28 April 2011, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at which it
reviewed the full text and summary of the Company’s 2011 first quarterly
report and expressed a written audit opinion;

On 18 June 2011, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at which
it was resolved that Mr. Yu Faming would be nominated as candidate for
Supervisor of the sixth session of the Supervisory Committee, which will
be submitted to the 2010 annual general meeting of the Company for
consideration;

On 29 June 2011, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at which
it was resolved that Mr. Yu Faming would become the chairman of the
sixth session of the Supervisory Committee;

On 29 August 2011, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at
which it reviewed the full text and summary of the Company’s interim
report for 2011 and expressed a written audit opinion;

On 28 October 2011, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting, at
which it reviewed the full text and summary of the Company’s 2011 third
quarterly report and expressed a written audit opinion;
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On 11 November 2011, the Supervisory Committee held a meeting,
at which it was resolved that Mr. Xi Sheng would be nominated
as candidate for Supervisor of the sixth session of the Supervisory
Committee, which will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company for consideration.

Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee:

Legality of the Operation of the Company

In 2011, the Supervisory Committee monitored the procedures of
convening the general meetings and Board meetings of the Company
and their resolutions, execution of the resolutions passed in the general
meetings by the Board, and execution of the resolutions passed in the
Board meetings by the management. It is of the view that the Company
has strictly complied with the Company Law, the Securities Law, the
Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Articles of Association of the Company
and other regulations in drawing operational decisions, monitored its
operations based on law, continuously optimized the internal control
system and further enhanced its corporate governance standards. The
Directors and the senior management of the Company were able to
protect the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole
and carry out their duties with dedication. The Supervisory Committee
did not discover any of their actions that in any way violated laws,
regulations, or the Articles of Association of the Company or were
prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

Financial Position of the Company

The Supervisory Committee seriously reviewed the Company’s 2011
financial report, 2011 profit distribution proposal, 2011 annual report
and the 2011 financial audit report issued by the PRC and international
auditors expressing unqualified opinions. The Supervisory Committee
resolved that the Company’s 2011 financial report truly reflects the
financial position and operating results of the Company for the year
2011. The Supervisory Committee agreed to the 2011 financial audit
report issued by the auditors and the 2011 profit distribution proposal of
the Company.

Proceeds and Purchases or Sale of Assets of the Company

In 2011, there was no new fund raising conducted by the Company.
The Supervisory Committee conducted examination on the resolutions
in respect of major acquisitions and asset disposal and did not discover
any acts of insider trading, any acts prejudicial to the interests of the
shareholders or resulting in loss of assets or prejudice to the interests of
the Company.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

ERGWEE

4.  Connected Transactions of the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee conducted
examination on the resolutions in respect of the connected transactions
of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee conducted examinations on all the
connected transactions of the Company in the current year, and believe
that all the contracts, agreements and other relevant documents related
to the connected transactions of the Company in the current year had
complied with the legal procedures and the terms of the transactions
were fair and reasonable to the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole. The connected transactions were dealt with under stringent
principles of fairness, impartiality and transparency. The Supervisory
Committee did not discover any acts of insider trading or breach of good
faith by the Board of Directors in making decisions, signing agreements
and information disclosure.

The Supervisory Committee is extremely grateful for the continuous support
for its work offered by all the shareholders, Board of Directors and staff.

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee

Yu Faming
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shanghai, the PRC
23 March 2012
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
HTEET

The sustainable development of an enterprise is interdependent with and
closely related to the sustainable development of the society. The Company
has always placed great importance on technical innovation and application
and actively explores new technologies, models and areas in civil aviation
to comply with the environmental protection policy and energy saving and
emission reduction requirements of the PRC. Adhering to the idea of dual
focus on both energy conservation and development and mutual coordination
between development and saving, we advocate the idea of low-carbon
flying, energy consumption reduction, conservation of the environment and
animal-friendliness to create a friendly community and establish a resource-
conservative and environmentally friendly enterprise.

LOW-CARBON FLYING

With the target of lowering resources and energy consumption, the
Company advocates the concept of “low-carbon flying”. We seek to initiate
an operational mode of “Consuming and emitting less but performing
more efficiently” to foster organic and efficiency-oriented growth. Jet fuel
consumption accounted for more than 98% of the energy consumption of the
Company. More than 90% of the Company’s flights undergo refueling and
flying in accordance with the “low-carbon flying” scheme. “Low-carbon flying” is
implemented via standardized and regulated management. Fuel consumption
and carbon emission are lowered through approaches such as system
restrictions, procedural enhancement and technological innovation.

Optimization of Fleet

The Company ensures the mechanical functionality of its fleet by eliminating
and surrendering the lease of old aircraft and introducing newer aircraft on
an annual basis, in addition to repair and replacement of engines and routine
maintenance works. In 2011, the Company eliminated certain old aircraft
models through disposal, introduction of new aircraft and replacement. A
younger fleet helps to boost the efficiency of jet fuel consumption.

Optimization of Routes

The Company strives to facilitate the implementation of the DOC (Direct
Operation Control) system in the Company and optimize long-haul routes
by implementing information management of route segments. By selecting
the most economical route from several routes, the Company reduced the
flying time of flights and thus effectively lowered fuel consumption. The annual
saving of jet fuel was about 34,200 tons.

Biofuel

The Company strives to reduce the emission of greenhouse gases
and countering global climate change by continuously focusing on the
development and use of alternative energy sources. The Company cooperated
with members of the aviation industry chain, energy suppliers and the
academic circle to develop sustainable biofuel that can be used on civil aircraft
in order to achieve greener flying.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
HERM

Saving Energy and Reducing Emission

By renewing old aircraft, purchasing new engines, installing additional winglets,
upgrading and refitting engines, increasing energy efficiency and strengthening
energy consumption management, the emission of greenhouse gases was
reduced by 208,000 tons.

Technological Emission Reduction

Installing additional winglets: By refitting aircraft wings, the aircraft’s drag (lift-
induced drag) and the amount of power required to get the aircraft flying is
reduced, ultimately achieving the targets of saving fuel, lowering maintenance
cost of engines and reducing takeoff and landing noise. It can reduce fuel
consumption by about 2.5%, which makes a saving of 210 to 220 tons of jet
fuel per aircraft per annum, assuming an average daily utilization of 10 hours.

Refitting aircraft engines: This can mitigate the impact of emissions on the
environment, lower the emission of greenhouse gases and reduce the noise
during the whole flight. Each engine can reduce fuel consumption by 1.1% to
1.3%.

Measures for Saving Energy

The Company reduces its fuel consumption by promoting the use of a
computer flying programme to formulate real-time flight plans and adopting
precise refuelling instead of refuelling a fixed amount of fuel as was done in
the past. APU (auxiliary power unit) management and GPU (ground power
unit) usage are further promoted. At airports such as Pudong, Guangzhou
and Shenzhen, the rate of use of GPU as a replacement of APU has reached
90%. The Company reduces its fuel costs by adopting cost-saving weight and
balance operation and flight control method and effectively controlling freight
load and the center of gravity of aircraft. Weight reduction of aircraft through
controlling water-filing, reducing the number of newspapers and magazines
and precise catering also helps to save jet fuel. Engine washing is practised to
increase the efficiency of engines. Wind resistance is cut down by maintaining
an even and closed aircraft surface and polishing the windward surface of
aircraft for the purpose of reducing fuel consumption.

APPLICATION OF NEW TECHNOLOGIES

Expediting and promoting the application of new civil aviation technologies
in operation are important measures adopted by the Company to achieve
continuous flight safety, ensure regular flights and realise energy saving and
emission reduction.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
HERMT

ADS-B Application

The Company is the first airline that is approved by the CAAC to operate with
ADS-B (Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast). An aircraft equipped
with ADS-B can broadcast its precise location, including its speed, height
and whether it is turning, ascending or descending, through a data chain
without the assistance of any ground equipment. The Company has finished
refitting five A340-600 aircraft and training its flight crew, dispatch crew and
cabin crew. After the operational approval of ADS-B has been obtained, the
workload of the flight crew and fuel consumption have decreased while the
flying capacity has increased.

RNP Application

The Company is a pioneer in the industry in the application of RNP (Required
Navigation Performance) technology. RNP, which is actively promoted by the
CAAC as one of the important new technology application projects, is a new
technology adopted to guide the landing and takeoff of aircraft by using the
built-in navigation equipment of the aircraft with a global positioning system.
The implementation of RNP operations can save 5 to 10 minutes compared
to conventional meter processes for incoming and departing flights and it
also reduces fuel consumption effectively. The Company further facilitated
the development and application of RNP Approach. The Company has
completed program design review, simulation aircraft trial flying and program
test trial flying in respect of RNP Approach at such airports of Wenzhou,
Xining, Jinchang, Zhangye, Huai’an, Sanya, Jiuzhai and Kangding. Currently,
the Company is conducting relevant work in connection with program design
of RNP Approach at such airports of Qingyang, Nantong, Zhoushan and
Lianyungang.

ENERGY MANAGEMENT

To strengthen energy management and promote energy saving and emission
reduction, the Company formulated the “Management Rules of Energy Saving
and Emission Reduction” to regulate the organization, reporting, approval,
filing and person-in-charge of energy saving and emission reduction work and
energy consumption management. The total carbon dioxide emission during
the year was 12.54 million tons.

GREEN OFFICE

The Company focuses on saving energy and resources and actively promotes
the application of the internet office system. Subsequent to the application of
the E-OFFICE (Intranet) system in the Company, the “United Office System
2.0 (A YA F%2.0)” was launched in October 2011, which offered more
convenience in operation and optimized the operation of a paperless office.
The Company has reduced energy consumption at ground facilities through
the oil-to-gas boiler conversion project, central air-conditioning refitting project
and energy-saving lighting refitting project. By promoting energy-saving
measures, such as double-sided printing and “turning off lights as you leave”,
and introducing video conferencing and telephone conferencing, the Company
has cut its operating costs and increased its communication efficiency. The
Company also contributes to energy saving, emission reduction and a low-
carbon environment by reducing the number of business trips.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
HERM

COMMUNITY CHARITY

The Company fully supports the development of public affairs, such as
education, hygiene and culture, and actively participates in poor and disaster
relief activities. We encourage our staff to take part in donation campaigns
and voluntary work and organize community charity activities in a systematic
manner. In 2011, the Company launched a large scale voluntary service
campaign called “Love Relay”, under which 2,197 collective projects
were organized with 86,154 staff members participated, serving a total of
49,542 people. A total of 320 staff members participated in blood donation.
Serving certain welfare organizations, the elderly living alone and families of
servicemen, the “Love Relay” campaign entered into mutual agreements with
more than 10 community charity organizations. A voluntary campaign was
launched in several “Sunshine Homes” in Shanghai to organize activities that
are targeted to the disabled children.

EVACUATION

In 2011, the Group participated in the evacuation of Chinese citizens from
Egypt and Libya, as well as the support of emergency earthquake transport in
Yunnan and Japan. With the Group’s quick response, precise arrangements
and its courage to overcome hardship and difficulties, 53 overtime charter
flights were successfully sent to evacuate around 12,000 passengers and
provide approximately 143 tonnes of supplies for the purposes of evacuation,
disaster relief and peacekeeping.

KEY AWARDS RELATED TO SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES IN 2011

The registered trademark of “Ar B E 75 1 2=CHINA EASTERN and its logo”
was officially recognised as “China Famous Brand (1 B &t 42 4Z)” by the
State Administration for Industry & Commerce of the PRC;

The Group was awarded the “Flight Safety Five-star Award” (FR17% & 1 £ 28)
by CAAC;

The Company was recognised as the “Outstanding Unit in Performing the
Large Scale Emergency Evacuation of PRC Citizens from Libya (#1717 B AR
RRUERILL B 5 A B B oMz E RIS H B RIE L) by the CAAC;

The Group ranked 14th in the “2011 Top 25 Most Innovative Companies in
China” by Fortune Magazine (Chinese);

The Company was ranked 24th among the “Top 50 Most Valuable Chinese
Brands” by a member of WPP, a world-leading brand communication service

group;

The Company was granted the “Golden Phoenix Award” by the China Capital
Market Annual Conference;

The Company was granted the “Award of Typical Merger and Reorganisation
Case” by the 10th China Corporate Governance Forum;
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
HERMT

The Company was awarded the “2011 China’s most innovative corporate
social responsibility report” by the China Corporate Social Responsibility
Summit 2011;

The Company was recognised as “Top 100 Brands in China” by Asia Brand
Association, Hong Kong;

The official website of the Group was named as one of “The First Batch of
Demonstration Enterprises in China with Honest e-Commerce Websites (&
WP EEFESAREHLRERE) by the China Electronic Commerce
Association;

The Northwest Branch of the Company was recognised as an “Advanced Unit
in Services and Security Work of the International Horticultural Exposition (tt
E BRI A Z R TIESE#E B (1) by the CAAC.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RV Y 2GR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 197, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBEN RS

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

/\ /\‘/T\ u&

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B0 ¥ 81 1 3 & 4 81| 4R 3L )

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——%F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FtaE AR¥ T ARET T
Revenues PN 5 82,403,130 73,808,659
Other operating income Hib&E WA 6 1,061,451 658,620
Operating expenses BEIH
Aircraft fuel TR (29,229,011) (21,605,611)
Gain on fair value movements of PTETEAEE
derivatives financial instruments SEUES 8 86,851 833,384
Take-off and landing charges TRIELAEPR B (8,350,181) (7,454,637)
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe (6,965,570) (6,757,837)
Wages, salaries and benefits ITE - HekEF 9 (8,664,854) (8,940,786)
Aircraft maintenance U E 2 (4,405,900) (4,614,093)
Impairment losses BERMERK 10 (638,316) (405,391)
Food and beverages mZEBERHtE (2,022,367) (1,596,454)
Aircraft operating lease rentals RS EHERS (4,128,420) (3,975,557)
Other operating lease rentals B tAERe (491,901) (601,742)
Selling and marketing expenses HERTISHER (3,739,682) (3,323,830)
Civil aviation infrastructure levies M EMRMEER (1,321,373) (1,295,612)
Ground services and other charges HE RIS R E B ﬁﬁ (567,552) (439,664)
Office, administrative and other expenses WA BEEREMER (8,853,751) (8,587,503)
Total operating expenses BESHAE (79,292,027) (68,765,333)
Operating profit FEg—F el 11 4,172,554 5,696,946
Share of results of associates B(ERE N R EE 23 75,435 39,228
Share of results of jointly controlled entities b (SN UNCI 3 24 31,437 28,154
Finance income BIESHLA 12 2,024,002 1,155,384
Finance costs g5 13 (1,462,727) (1,501,900)
Profit before income tax i B A58 4,840,701 5,417,812
Income tax fRIE 14 (264,229) (1383,491)
Profit for the year FERHE 4,576,472 5,284,321
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEHMRE (FR) WE
for the year
Cash flow hedges, net of tax fﬁ?ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁﬁ - IBRBEIA 38 (132,446) (17,016)
Fair value movements of available-for-sale EHESREEY
investments DA BEED 486 (534)
Fair value movements of available-for-sale BEmE AR R HEESR
investments held by an associate BEZARNEBEED 23 (2,701) 1,643
Total comprehensive income for the year FE#ZSNE 4,441,811 5,268,314
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R G W

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B0 81 1 3 & # 81 4R 5L )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR®T R ARETT
Profit attributable to: ﬂiﬁgﬂﬂﬁa BR :
Equity shareholders of the Company NEIESEEE 4,575,732 4,957,989
Non-controlling interests #TI%U M A e 740 326,332
4,576,472 5,284,321
Total comprehensive income FEASSKRZEBR
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company NRERIEEE 4,441,071 4,941,982
Non-controlling interests 3HI%IJ [ERERS 740 326,332
4,441,811 5,268,314
Earnings per share attributable to the FEXRQATREZEEE
equity shareholders of the Company EEER RS
during the year
Basic and diluted (RMB) EAREFARE) 17 0.41 0.44
The notes on page 87 to 197 are an integral part of these financial statements. 587 B =197 B WM FE AT KRR BB LD -
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CONSOI_IDATED BALANCE SHEET
FEERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B0 ¥ 81 1 3 & 4 81| 4R 3L )
As at 31 December 2011 R=ZZE——F+=ZA=+—H

2011 2010
—E——%F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FtaE AR¥ T ARET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Intangible assets B EE 18 11,353,590 11,333,376
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - IR R ERE 19 73,757,795 68,822,273
Lease prepayments FEHEER 20 1,471,272 1,406,156
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft — FREETFEF R 21 10,968,344 6,356,602
Investments in associates RE R &R T 23 837,589 807,669
Investments in jointly controlled entities ?x =i W/NG] 24 423,256 406,170
Avalilable-for-sale financial assets HEESHEE 240,380 242,005
Other long-term assets ﬁﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁﬂ BE 25 1,929,834 1,752,115
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 35 44,418 75,188
Derivative assets PTEEE 38 4,365 52,081
101,030,843 91,253,635
Current assets RENEE
Flight equipment spare parts TR R 1,555,544 1,286,898
Trade receivables FEW AR 26 2,197,493 2,127,446
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FB{ER « 1738 & Efth E L ER 27 5,611,715 5,157,004
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 28 3,860,973 3,078,228
Derivative assets PTHEEE 38 - 18,970
Assets held for sale FEGEEE 42 482,313 411,535
13,708,038 12,080,081
Current liabilities REEE
Sales in advance of carriage FHEZER 3,197,649 2,577,855
Trade payables and notes payable FER BRI R BN 48 29 2,692,624 4,275,443
Other payables and accrued expenses HibEN R R TEIRE B 30 16,267,287 14,536,168
Current portion of obligations under RmEAEBENREE D
finance leases 31 2,459,259 2,137,831
Current portion of borrowings BERERENE D 32 18,171,130 15,210,660
Income tax payable FERFRTE 172,319 64,787
Current portion of provision for return KETHETRIMIE EXEM
condition checks for aircraft under KRB ER D
operating leases 88 375,409 339,091
Derivative liabilities PTEAE 38 51,063 121,982
43,386,740 39,263,817
Net current liabilities BRBAME (29,678,702) (27,183,736)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERS 71,352,141 64,069,399

8O China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
afEERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B0 81 1 3 & # 81 4R 5L )
As at 31 December 2011 R=ZFE——&F+=A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥ TR ARETF T
Non-current liabilities kRBAR
Obligations under finance leases MEHERE 31 17,801,563 17,070,502
Borrowings g 32 23,603,463 23,354,997
Provision for return condition checks EETHE TR
for aircraft under operating leases RIS ERE 33 2,923,717 2,475,412
Other long-term liabilities HERAEE 34 2,047,099 1,804,862
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE 35 29,326 51,814
Post-retirement benefit obligations RIR BT ERE 36(b) 2,859,945 2,556,001
Derivative liabilities PTEERE 38 281,921 194,425
49,547,034 47,508,013
Net assets FEE 21,805,107 16,561,886
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to the BENARNAREREAE
equity shareholders of the Company AN K et
Share capital [N 40 11,276,539 11,276,539
Reserves b 41 8,849,353 3,994,748
20,125,892 15,271,287
Non-controlling interests FEFE I R 1,679,215 1,290,599
Total equity FLb 21,805,107 16,561,886

The notes on pages 87 to 197 are an integral part of these financial 2887 B 2197 B Wi A SRR ML S -
statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 ~ AHMBHMECHARBEFER T ——F=A=1+=

March 2012 and were signed on its behalf. AEETIE  WRREEFSEE -
Liu Shaoyong Ma Xulun

2mE BAR

Director Director

BE BE
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COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEET
NAIEERRE

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B0 ¥ 81 1 3 & 4 81| 4R 3L )
As at 31 December 2011 R=ZZE——F+=ZA=+—H

2011 2010
—E——%F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FtaE AR¥ T ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets B EE 18 11,343,374 11,323,299
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - IR RtE 19 50,246,293 51,777,767
Lease prepayments TESHEER 20 497,301 398,860
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft ~ FRATET X 21 10,195,340 6,231,270
Investments in subsidiaries FERHTE AR 22 7,104,106 4,083,117
Investments in associates FEREE A T] 23 578,836 578,836
Investments in jointly controlled entities KEREERT] 24 323,238 323,238
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHESRmEE 221,557 223,729
Other long-term assets HEtbRAFEE 25 980,434 914,799
Derivative assets PTEEE 38 4,365 52,081
81,494,844 75,906,996
Current assets RENEE
Flight equipment spare parts R BT 1,270,586 1,033,280
Trade receivables AR 26 2,256,601 2,545,900
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FB{ER « 1738 & Efth E L ER 27 4,213,838 5,553,366
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 28 852,012 851,283
Derivative assets PTHEEE 38 - 18,970
Assets held for sale FEGEEE 42 482,313 411,535
9,075,350 10,414,334
Current liabilities REEE
Sales in advance of carriage FHEZER 2,817,980 2,190,776
Trade payables and notes payable FER BRI R BN i 29 3,480,109 4,701,951
Other payables and accrued expenses HihEM R R TEIRE B 30 10,661,377 10,442,380
Current portion of obligations under RmEAEBENREE D
finance leases 31 2,010,988 1,796,739
Current portion of borrowings (EENEobinE2E e 32 14,830,480 12,347,575
Current portion of provision for return ST ETRIRE RS R
condition checks for aircraft under KR EIER D
operating leases 88 174,151 46,695
Derivative liabilities TEaE 38 51,063 121,982
34,026,148 31,648,098
Net current liabilities BRABAMS (24,950,798) (21,233,764)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERS 56,544,046 54,673,232

8 2 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited
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COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEET

NEEERER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B0 81 1 3 & # 81 4R 5L )

As at 31 December 2011 R=T——F+=-A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥ TR ARETF T
Non-current liabilities kRBAS
Obligations under finance leases MEHERE 31 14,123,184 14,081,133
Borrowings (TN 32 15,184,868 18,241,540
Provision for return condition checks EETHE TR
for aircraft under operating leases RIS ERE 33 1,546,944 1,470,376
Other long-term liabilities HEmRAEE 34 1,331,811 1,498,255
Post-retirement benefit obligations RIR BT ERE 36(b) 2,191,722 1,891,483
Derivative liabilities PTEEE 38 281,921 194,425
34,660,450 37,377,212
Net assets FEE 21,883,596 17,296,020
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to the HEERARARIESIEEE
equity shareholders of the Company R AR R &
Share capital [N 40 11,276,539 11,276,539
Reserves B 41 10,607,057 6,019,481
Total equity FLb 21,883,596 17,296,020

The notes on page 87 to 197 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23

March 2012 and were signed on its behalf.

Liu Shaoyong
2R=E

Director

EE

BRUETIZE - URRESEHE -

Ma Xulun
BAfm

Director

EE
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NERAT
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CONSOI_IDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EEJ v //IL%%

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B0 ¥ 81 1 3 & 4 81| 4R 3L )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——%F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FtaE ARETR ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNEESRE
Cash generated from operations KEEANES 43(a) 13,781,419 10,739,839
Income tax paid BERETSH (158,394) (98,591)
Net cash inflow from operating activities & EEELNZRERA 13,623,025 10,641,248
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHNESRE
Additions of property, plant and equipment EEYE  WENKRE (5,368,362) (6,522,951)
Payment of short-term deposits with original S M TERERR BB
maturity over three months =& A MR HATE 3k 27 (1,963,289) (434,314)
Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft XA FRAETES R 21 (8,180,128) (3,461,737)
Disposal of subsidiaries L ERHTE A A = (9,730)
Investment in available-for-sale financial assets B B Al H & & R & 2= (1,472) (2,737)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in UG BE B A AIAY
subsidiaries P il (45,739) -
Acquisition of cargo business of Great Walll WEE R MZEAR A
Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Great Wall Airlines”), (T=HMmzED - ?D 5% SR
net of cash acquired (60,736) -
Net cash acquired through acquisition of IEE EISMZERDERA
Shanghai Airlines Co., Ltd. ([ Efpzn 1)ER ﬂﬁ’wiﬁﬁ
(“Shanghai Airlines”) - 1,167,565
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale  HEFEFEEEMSER 411,535 430,110
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - Bk
plant and equipment RBFIER 33,881 101,894
Interest received BEUWFIE 146,529 64,359
Dividends received B U AT 82,294 30,443
Proceeds from disposal of interests in an B ERE S QRS
associate Frisiie = 4,405
Proceeds from disposal of interests in HERAHEESmEEN
available-for-sale financial assets WEARESMERE
and a subsidiary 6,426 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities B&EZEELNTERSR (14,939,061) (8,632,693)

84 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

At EmER

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (1% B0 81 1 3 & # 81 4R 5L )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥ TR ARETF T
Cash flows from financing activities AMEIENEESRE
Proceeds from draw down of short-term BEAGHAERK
bank loans 19,647,120 20,803,369
Proceeds from issuance of bond BITEAFAMKIINER S 2,490,417 -
Repayments of short-term bank loans EEEHER (18,514,150) (21,942,900)
Proceeds from draw down of long-term e ARHERK
bank loans 5,693,281 11,556,258
Repayments of long-term bank loans EERBAERK (5,245,147) (6,526,565)
Principal repayments of finance lease EEREHEAESS
obligations (2,191,369) (2,201,176)
Receipts/(payments) of restricted bank WeBl],/ (A5 HIBR I 17 3R
deposits 1,108,726 (1,174,066)
Interest paid EAFIE (1,701,253) (1,644,924)
Capital contribution from non-controliing MEBARZIEETIEERAEE
interests of subsidiaries 1,004,500 519,300
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests EANINIEPNGIE et 2 S
of subsidiaries A% A (156,526) (41,738)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing RETHESFHERA(RL)
activities 2,135,599 (652,442)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R&RESZEYFEM 819,563 1,356,113
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —A—HBMIRENBEEEY 3,078,228 1,735,248
Exchange adjustments fERFR (36,818) (13,133)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December + —A=+—HWEER
REEEY 28 3,860,973 3,078,228
The notes on page 87 to 197 are an integral part of these financial statements. 2587 B 2197 B MM ZE R IEIREZMEEBIH -
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CONSOI_IDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
fk P @] 2%

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAEGREEELER Non-
Share Other Accumulated controlling
capital reserves losses Subtotal interests  Total equity
B i RiER N FRERIMER B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2010 “T-TF—-A—B&H 9,581,700 9,566,349  (17,913,496) 1,234,553 441,628 1,676,181
Total comprehensive income FEBGRA NS
for the year - (16,007) 4,957,989 4,941,982 326,332 5,268,314
- Profit for the year irﬂf = = 4,957,989 4,957,989 326,332 5,284,321
- Other comprehensive loss Hibir AR - (16,007) - (16,007) - (16,007)
Issuance of new shares for the ks ﬁ*ﬁﬂﬂﬂ%kﬁﬂxﬁ
acquisition of Shanghai Airlines (FtzE40)
(Note 40) 1,694,839 7,399,913 - 9,094,752 - 9,094,752
Non-controlling interests addition WEE AR 12 N
through the acquisition of ERTGl o
Shanghai Airlines - - - - 53,920 53,920
Dividends paid to non-controlling SO
interests of subsidiaries FEIR | MR S AR A - - - - (41,738) (41,738)
Capital contribution by non-controlling Pt/ FIZEH=I 1t
interests in subsidiaries BREE - - - - 519,300 519,300
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - - - (8,843) (8,843)
Balance at 31 December 2010 “T-EE+-F=1+—H&R 11,276,539 16,950,255  (12,955,507) 15,271,287 1,290,599 16,561,886
Balance at 1 January 2011 “Z-—-F-F-Bp&& 11,276,539 16,950,255  (12,955,507) 15,271,287 1,290,599 16,561,886
Total comprehensive income FEAZANE
for the year - (134,661) 4,575,732 4,441,071 740 4,441,811
- Profit for the year -EEFE = - 4,575,732 4,575,732 740 4,576,472
- Other comprehensive loss -HitiraEE - (134,661) - (134,661) - (134,661)
Accumulated losses shared by HEA R RHMER
non-controlling interests after BERAENBEEFR
capital injection in a subsidiary (Hz22(b))
(Note 22(b)) = 426,439 = 426430  (427,264) (825)
Dividends paid to non-controlling Sz {3 &2 732 &t
interests of subsidiaries R - - = = (156,526) (156,526)
Capital contribution by ol NGE 22
non-controlling interests in a R E (MEF22(b)
subsidiary (Note 22(b)) - - - - 1,004,500 1,004,500
Acquisition of non-controlling WEE I B A RIFEIEHIME
interests in subsidiaries BERE - (12,905) - (12,905) (32,834) (45,739)
Balance at 31 December 2011 —E-——-Ft+-A=1t-H&% 11,276,539 17,229,128 (8,379,775) 20,125,892 1,679,215 21,805,107

The notes on page 87 to 197 are an integral part of these financial statements. FE8TEZE197
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M 5t

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 5 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (the “Company”), a joint
stock company limited by shares was incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) on 14 April 1995. The address of the
Company’s registered office is 66 Airport Street, Pudong International
Airport, Shanghai, the PRC. The Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation,
including the provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery, tour operations
and other extended transportation services.

The Company is majority owned by China Eastern Air Holding Company
(“CEA Holding”), a state-owned enterprise incorporated in the PRC.

The Company’s shares are traded on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and The New York Stock
Exchange.

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s
Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 23 March 2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s accumulated losses were
approximately RMB8.38 billion and its current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately RMB29.68 billion. For the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Group received a net cash inflow
from operating activities of RMB13.6 billion, a net cash outflow
from investing activities and financing activities of RMB12.8 billion
and an increase in cash and cash equivalents of RMBO0.8 billion.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board considers the
adequacy of cash inflows from operations and financing to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

83
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Basis of preparation (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had total unutilised credit
facilities of approximately RMB35.5 billion from banks. The Board
believes that, based on experience to date, it is likely that these
facilities will be rolled over in future years if required.

With the cash inflows from operations and available credit facilities,
the Board considers that the Group will be able to obtain sufficient
financing to enable it to operate, as well as to meet its liabilities
as and when they become due, and the capital expenditure
requirements. Accordingly, the Board believes that it is appropriate
to prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis
without including any adjustments that would be required should
the Company and the Group fail to continue as a going concern.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new standards and
amendments to existing standards which are relevant for the
Group’s existed business and mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 January 2011:

o The improvement related to IFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” in the Third Improvement
Project emphasises the interaction between
quantitative and qualitative disclosures about the
nature and extent of risks associated with financial
instruments. This improvement is applicable to the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2011 and
has no material impact on the Group.

o The improvement related to IAS 1 “Presentation of
financial statements” in the Third Improvement Project
clarifies that an entity will present an analysis of other
comprehensive income for each component of equity,
either in the statement of changes in equity or in the
notes to the financial statements. This improvement
is applicable to the financial year beginning on or after
1 January 2011 and has no material impact on the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(@) Basis of preparation (continued)

U

(i)

IAS 32 (Amendment)

IFRS 1 (Amendment)

IFRIC - Int 19

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

The improvement related to IAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” in the Third Improvement
Project clarifies that the consequential amendments
from IAS 27 made to IAS 21 “The effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates”, IAS 28 “Investments in
associates” and IAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”
apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009, or earlier when IAS 27 is applied
earlier. This improvement is applicable to the financial
year beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and has no
material impact on the Group.

New and amended standards, and interpretations mandatory
for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January
2011 but not currently relevant to the Group

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation — Classification of Rights Issue

First-time Adoption of IFRSs - Limited
Exemptions from Comparative IFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters

IFRIC - Int 14 (Amendment)  Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

Requirement
Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR B ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

2.

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and which are
relevant for the Group’s operations

The following standards and amendments to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011 or later periods, but the Group has not early adopted
them:

o IAS 19 (Amendment) (effective from 1 January 2013).
This amendment eliminate the corridor approach and
calculate finance costs on a net funding basis. The
Group will apply the standard retrospectively from 1
January 2013. The management is in the process of
evaluating the impact of IAS 19 (Amendment) on the
Group.

o Amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial instruments:
Disclosures’ on derecognition” (effective from 1 July
2011). This amendment will promote transparency in
the reporting of transfer transactions and improve users’
understanding of the risk exposures relating to transfers
of financial assets and the effect of those risks on an
entity’s financial position, particularly those involving
securitisation of financial assets. Earlier application
subject to EU endorsement is permitted. This
amendment is not expected to have material impact on
the Group’s or Company’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(@) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and which are
relevant for the Group’s operations (continued)

o IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective from January
1, 2018). The standard addresses classification and
measurement of financial assets, introducing the
following changes: (i) Introduces a single model that
has only two classification categories: amortised
cost and fair value, which are driven by the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual characteristics of the financial
assets. (i) Removes the requirement to separate
embedded derivatives from financial asset hosts,
and requires a hybrid contract to be classified in
its entirety at either amortised cost or fair value. (iii)
Prohibits reclassifications except in rare circumstances
when the entity’s business model changes and the
changes apply prospectively. (iv) Provides specific
guidance for contractually linked instruments that
create concentrations of credit risk, which is often
the case with investment tranches in a securitisation.
(v) Indicates that all equity investments should be
measured at fair value. However, management has
an option to present in other comprehensive income
unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses on
equity investments that are not held for trading. (vi)
Removes the cost exemption for unquoted equities
and derivatives on unquoted equities but provides
guidance on when cost may be an appropriate estimate
of fair value. The Group will apply the standard from 1
January 2013 and it is not expected to have material
impact on the Group’s or Company’s financia
statements.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

2.

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and which are
relevant for the Group’s operations (continued)

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” (effective
from 1 January 2013). The objective of IFRS 10 is to
establish principles for the presentation and preparation
of consolidated financial statements when an entity
controls one or more other entity (an entity that controls
one or more other entities) to present consolidated
financial statements. Defines the principle of control,
and establishes controls as the basis for consolidation.
Set out how to apply the principle of control to identify
whether an investor controls an investee and therefore
must consolidate the investee. Sets out the accounting
requirements for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements. The Group will apply the standard
from 1 January 2013 and it is not expected to have
material impact on the Group’s or Company’s financial
statements.

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” (effective from 1
January 2013). IFRS 13 aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across IFRSs. The requirements, which are largely
aligned between IFRSs and United States Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“US GAAP”), do not
extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted by other standards within
IFRSs or US GAAP. The Group will apply the standard
from 1 January 2013 and it is not expected to have
material impact on the Group’s or Company’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31 December.

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies, generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where it does
not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-
facto control. De-facto control may arise in circumstances
where the size of the Group’s voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders give
the Group the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition — by-acquisition basis, either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

94

(b) Consolidation (continued)

()

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

Subsidiaries (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at
the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed (Note (k)(i)). If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at
cost. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

96

(b) Consolidation (continued)

(iv)

v)

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (Note 2(m)). The results of associates are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity in which the Group has
joint control over its economic activity established under a
contractual arrangement. The Group’s investments in jointly
controlled entities includes goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation (continued)

(v)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting based on
the audited financial statements or management accounts
of the jointly controlled entities. The Group’s share of its
jointly controlled entities’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements is adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the jointly controlled entity.

The Group recognises the portion of gains or losses on
the sale of assets by the Group to the joint venture that it
is attributable to the other venturers. The Group does not
recognise its share of profits or losses from the joint venture
that result from the Group’s purchase of assets from the joint
venture until it resells the assets to an independent party.
However, a loss on the transaction is recognised immediately
if the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net
realisable value of current assets, or an impairment loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in jointly
controlled entities are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 2(m)). The results of jointly controlled
entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“*CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the office of the General Manager that makes strategic
decisions.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

98

(d)

(e)

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
functional and presentation currency of the Company and
the Group’s entities.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred
in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘finance income or costs’.

Revenue recognition and sales in advance of carriage

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and the provision of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
business and value-added taxes, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies
relating to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

2.

BERE

(d)

(e)

g

TR

fm”a?

pull]g

NE

HEslmE

0)  DEEFIZIRE

AEEGEE RN BRERMIIEEY
NZEEEEMENEIRRERENE
BAE((TREER]) - AR BHRRUA
REZ2%H - AREASARRAIRAKEE
EE I RIIBREY -

(i) RZRAEE

SNERZR SIRAR S BMEXRBE BTNEE
B B THaERETEEARNR
EMBERFFIE L PN - BEE
RGEENE R BE A NSNS HER
ENBEENMBBUFRERHREELDN
R REBENERER o

A%ﬁﬂﬁé&ﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁ%MEﬁ
ISR RIEFE R ARO[ 875 A
ER P -
AR EAERX
WAEAEBERBRERSHBIETHESR
m RREREHE KRB S B RL(E

WAFEMREEBRIZED - RE - @M
I ARSHEB AR ERIIRR -

BUWRARBEL A EAE - RRREN G
BRI AEHER MAKESRLHY

& BB GRS (A T 3CPrit) - NS E BN
RBUA - BRIEERHE GBI A SRR EIRY
EAR - BRINARBER T AR BB A 5
AR AEERBHEUGEETEERFA
A XSEEMERL NS REL G -

Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Revenue recognition and sales in advance of carriage

(continued)

The Group operates frequent flyer programmes that provide travel
awards to programme members based on accumulated miles. A
portion of passengers revenue attributable to the award of frequent
flyer benefits is deferred and recognised when the miles have been
redeemed or have expired.

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(v

Traffic revenues

Passenger, cargo and mail revenues are recognised as traffic
revenues when the transportation services are provided. The
value of sold but unused tickets is recognised as sales in
advance of carriage (“SIAC”).

Ground service income

Revenues from the provision of ground services are
recognised when the services are rendered.

Tour operation revenues

Revenues from tour and travel services and other travel
related services are recognised when the services are
rendered.

Cargo handling income

Revenues from the provision of cargo handling income are
recognised when the service are rendered.

Commission income

Commission income represents amounts earned from other
carriers in respect of sales made by the Group on their
behalf, and is recognised in the income statement upon
ticket sales.

Other revenue

Revenues from other operating businesses, including
income derived from the provision of freight forwarding, are
recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income from subleases of aircraft is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases.
Rental income from leasing office premises and cargo
warehouses is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U]

(9)

(h)

(M)
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Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Maintenance and overhaul costs

In respect of aircraft and engines under operating leases, the
Group has obligations to fuffill certain return conditions under the
leases. Provision for the estimated cost of these return condition
checks is made on a straight line basis over the term of the leases.

In respect of aircraft and engines owned by the Group or
held under finance leases, overhaul costs are capitalised as a
component of property, plant and equipment and are depreciated
over the appropriate maintenance cycles (Note 2(l)).

All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement as and when incurred.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan
and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest
rate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
asset, including the interest attributable to loans for advance
payments used to finance the acquisition of aircraft, are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
expensed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()}

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the jurisdictions where the Company and its subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill and deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Intangible assets

()

(i)
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Gooawill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary, associate or jointly
controlled entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisition of subsidiaries is included in “intangible assets”.
Goodwill on acquisition of associates and jointly controlled
entities is included in “investments in associates” and
“investments in jointly controlled entities” and is tested
for impairment as part of the overall balances. Separately
recognised goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually
or whenever there is an indication of impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or Groups of cash-generating
units according to the identified operating segments that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose.

Computer software costs

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 5
years. Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programs are recognised as expense
when incurred.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recognised initially at cost which
comprises purchase price, and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the assets to the condition for their intended use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

When each major aircraft overhaul is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment and is depreciated over the appropriate
maintenance cycles. Components related to airframe overhaul
cost, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 5 to 7.5 years.
Components related to engine overhaul costs, are depreciated
between each overhaul period using the ratio of actual flying hours
and estimated flying hours between overhauls. Upon completion
of an overhaul, any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the
previous overhaul is derecognised and charged to the income
statement.

Except for components related to overhaul costs, the depreciation
method of which has been described in the preceding paragraph,
other depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to write down their costs or revalued
amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Owned and finance leased aircraft and engines
Other fight equipment, including rotables
Buildings

Other property, plant and equipment

15 to 20 years
10 years

15 to 45 years
5 to 20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the assets’ carrying amount and are recognised in
the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and equipment pending installation. This includes the costs of
construction or acquisition and interest capitalised. No depreciation
is provided on construction in progress until the asset is completed
and ready for use.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, jointly
controlled entities and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or which are not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
for impairment at least annually or whenever there is indication of
impairment. Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each balance sheet date.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and are classified as
assets held for sale.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent acquisition costs of land use rights
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is provided over the
lease period of the land use rights on a straight-line basis.

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft represent payments
to aircraft manufacturers to secure deliveries of aircraft in future
years, including attributable finance costs, and are included in non-
current assets. The balance is transferred to property, plant and
equipment upon delivery of the aircraft.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 55 81 15 5 & Bll 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(1)

(s)

®

Flight equipment spare parts

Flight equipment spare parts are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of flight equipment spare parts comprises the
purchase price (net of discounts), freight charges, duty and value
added tax and other miscellaneous charges. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price of the flight equipment in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the provision
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(u)

v)
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Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the balance sheet date in which case such
borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. SZe:mEiE(g)
POLICIES (continued)

(w) Leases

()

A Group company is the lessee

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has acquired substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of
the fair value of the leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other short-term and other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost
is charged to the income statement over the lease period
SO as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. Leased
assets are depreciated using a straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives to residual values.

For sale and leaseback transactions resulting in a finance
lease, differences between sales proceeds and net book
values are deferred and amortised over the minimum lease
terms.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

For sale and leaseback transactions resulting in an operating
lease, differences between sales proceeds and net book
values are recognised immediately in the income statement,
except to the extent that any profit or loss is compensated
for by future lease payments at above or below market value,
then the profit or loss is deferred and amortised over the
period for which the asset is expected to be used.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(w)

()
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Leases (continued)

(i) A Group company is the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in
property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet. They
are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis
consistent with similar property, plant and equipment. Rental
income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes
regarding pension and medical benefits for employees organised
by the municipal governments of the relevant provinces. The
contributions to the schemes are charged to the income statement
as and when incurred.

In addition, the Group provides retirees with certain post-
retirement benefits including retirement subsidies, transportation
subsidies, social function activity subsidies as well as other welfare.
The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains
or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions in excess of the greater of 10% of the
value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit obligation are
charged or credited to the income statement over the employees’
expected average remaining working lives.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the income
statement, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional
on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of
time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 55 81 15 5 & Bll 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the
balance sheet at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value.
The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and
if s0, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are accounted for as trading instruments and any
unrealised gains or losses, being changes in fair value of the
derivatives, are recognised in the income statement immediately.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges and that are highly effective, are
recorded in the income statement, along with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities that are attributable to
the hedged risk.

Derivative financial instruments that qualify for hedge accounting
and which are designated as a specific hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a highly probable forecast transaction, are accounted
for as follows:

()  the effective portion of any change in fair value of the
derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in
equity. Where the forecast transaction or firm commitment
results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, the gains
and losses previously deferred in equity are included in
the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.
Otherwise, the cumulative gain or loss on the derivative
financial instrument is removed from equity and recognised
in the income statement in the same period during which the
hedged forecast transaction affects net profit or loss.

(i)  the ineffective portion of any change in fair value is
recognised in the income statement immediately.
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

@

(aq)
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Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-
current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
items is more than 12 months, and as a current asset or liability
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12
months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or
liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised in the income statement when the committed or
forecast transaction ultimately occurs. When a committed or
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was recorded in equity is immediately transferred
to the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments in securities other than subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, being held for non-trading purposes, are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date,
the fair value is remeasured, with any resulting gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses. When
these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income
statement.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. In the case
of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the securities below its
cost is considered an indicator that the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the income
statement.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised

as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 55 81 15 5 & Bll 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and fuel price risk), credit risk, and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage risk
exposures whenever management consider necessary.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(the “Group Treasury”) under policies approved by the Board. The
Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The overall
risk management strategies, as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest-rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments were approved by the Board.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group operates its business in many countries and
territories. The Group generates its revenue in different
currencies, and its foreign currency liabilities at the end of
the period are much higher than its foreign currency assets.
The Group’s major liability item (resulting from purchases
and leases of aircraft) is mainly priced and settled in foreign
currencies, primarily US dollars. The Group is exposed to
currency risks from fluctuations in various foreign currency
exchange rates against RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and is regulated by the PRC government. Limitation
on foreign exchange transaction imposed by the PRC
government could cause future exchange rates to vary
significantly from current or historical exchange rates.

In addition, fluctuations in exchange rates will affect
the Group’s future costs for purchases of aircraft, flight
equipment and aviation fuel, and take-off and landing
charges in foreign airports.

The Group entered into certain foreign exchange forward
option contracts to manage part of these foreign currency
risks. Details of foreign currency forward contracts are
disclosed in Note 38(b) to the financial statements.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(C)
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Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s

exposure at the balance sheet date to major currency risk.

3. TRARERE(E)

(@) EmiEkREZEE)

() SMEESR(E)

TREETEERARERBREDD
SMNERRR

Group
£
2011 2010
—B--% 225
usb Euro JPY usb Euro JPY
EY B =y e B B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETT ARETT ARET:
Trade and other receivables  FEURBRFX &2
H fth FEUR 1,324,445 130,948 164,780 1,778,205 84,424 134,822
Cash and cash equivalents HeERIREEEY 520,976 19,753 5,425 263,051 30,592 12,705
Deposits relating to aircraft L MHERKITS
under operating leases 594,354 - - 610,366 - -
Trade and other payables FERTBRR
E A FERTFR (448,593) (278) (2,754) (615,559) (678) (22,891)
Obligations under finance leases L& FHE B (& (17,891,918) - - (16,740,266 - -
Borrowings (5N (24,994,674) - - (22,072,121) - -
Currency derivatives at METEZRRLRS
notional value 289,841 - - 317,890 — =
Net balance shest exposure B EB BEXRFE (40,605,569) 150,423 167,451  (36,457,928) 114,338 124,636
Company
AR
2011 2010
—E--F —2-%
usb Euro JPY usb Euro JPY
Ey B =y e B B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETr AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARET:
Trade and other receivables  FEURBRE TR &%
H fth FEUR 1,056,966 11,438 158,343 970,089 50,461 132,581
Cash and cash equivalents Be RAESZEY 453,753 7,938 1,021 181,499 22,888 7,445
Deposits relating to aircraft REMTHE RIS
under operating leases 262,420 - - 233,703 = =
Trade and other payables JEBRF K
H 1 FERT R (432,582) - - (457,595) - (20,046)
Obligations under finance leases FE & FH & & (& (14,133,574) - - (13,448,836) - -
Borrowings N (18,587,048) - - (17,661,867) - -
Currency derivatives at METEZRRLRS
notional value 289,841 - - 317,890 - -
Net balance shest exposure B EB EXRFE (31,090,224) 19,376 159,364  (29,865,117) 73,349 119,980
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 55 81 15 5 & Bll 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aRAEAREIE(E)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) SRERFEZE)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) ) SNER ()
The following table indicates the approximate change TRETREEBERAD  WARKH
in the Group’s profit and loss and other components of HtEEAE1% » AREBFMAR T
consolidated equity in response to a 1% appreciation of the MR ATIE S M= A b 2B A 28D I
RMB against the following major currencies at the balance Zo
sheet date.
Group
£H
2011 2010
—E——F T
Effect on Effect on
Effect on other Effect on other
profit components profit ~ components
and loss of equity and loss of equity
HERHEM® HtEes B At
HERNEE BOoNPE HERNTFE HooxE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥TR ARETT AREBTT
US dollars i 406,797 (222) 359,256 8,346
Euro BT (1,504) - (1,143) -
Japanese Yen Bt (1,675) - (1,246) -
Company
A
2011 2010
S —T-TF
Effect on Effect on
Effect on other Effect on other
profit components profit ~ components
and loss of equity and loss of equity
HERHEM S H A
HIERNTE BINRKE HEZNTE [Hox2
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AR%TR ARETT ARETT
US dollars eI 311,644 (222) 293,329 8,346
Euro BT (194) - (733) -
Japanese Yen Bt (1,594) - (1,200) -
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B[ 81 15 3R & Bl 4R 82 )
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. EtERER(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) SEEREZEGE)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIRE R
The Group’s interest-rate risk primarily arises from NEENFRRERETERAERTLRE
borrowings and obligations under finance leases. Borrowings HEBE - REHNEBANBERS
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow EEATHESRENERR - ILETEH
interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the REANERSRNEBEIA L BEFR
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The interest rates and [BRR o ANERE AR - EBERIAR
terms of repayment of borrowings made to the Group and 1| 2 BR % B2 A B 745 R 5 ) P 5 32 RN B
interest rate swaps are disclosed in Notes 32 and 38(a) to 7+38(a) °
the financial statements.
To hedge against the variability in the cash flows arising from BT EREN TSR R E (TS| AR
a change in market interest rates, the Group has entered into SREE)  AEBEBBE—TFRF R
certain interest rate swaps to swap variable rates into fixed S Z R RE L BEERNE o
rates.
The following table details the interest rate profiles of the TRERTEBRARENBREDN
Group’s and the Company’s interest-bearing financial AOSR T BN o
instruments at the balance sheet date.
Group Company
£=HE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E——fF —ZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARKETTT AR¥F R ARETFT
Floating rate instruments ZERETH
Cash and cash equivalents ~ IR& RIS EEY 3,852,681 3,067,661 847,544 844,084
Deposits with banks with HE={EAEIN—F
original maturity over three K42 HATE X
months but less than a year 2,616,057 462,768 110,782 89,601
Restricted bank deposits PR FIMESRTTIE R 278,230 1,486,362 249,386 1,466,463
Borrowings 5N (35,256,801)  (32,088,011) (26,133,256) (26,133,256)
Obligation under finance MEHERE
leases (20,260,822) (19,208,333) (16,134,172) (15,877,872
(48,770,655) (46,279,553) (41,059,716) (39,610,980)
Interest rate swaps at FEEHENBESS
notional amount 4,075,758 4,048,530 4,075,758 4,048,530
(44,604,807) (42,231,023) (36,983,958)  (35,562,450)

,] ,] 4 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 55 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (a)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

cRERERE(E)

& L B 3% ()

(i) FIFmE (&)

Group Company
£8 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E——F —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT AR¥F R ARETFT
Fixed rate instruments EEMEITR
Borrowings & (6,517,792)  (6,477,646)  (4,455,859)  (4,455,859)
Interest rate swaps at FEEBMEHNBESS
notional amount 303,368 375,434 303,368 375,434
6,214,424)  (6,102,212)  (4,152,491)  (4,080,425)

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit and loss and other components of equity,
taking into the consideration of the interest rate swap, if
interest rate had been 25 basis points higher with all other
variables held constant.

TRERTEEMEERFRBENERLT  XERE
FREHFBIR - BN K EFrosEEER S EE &
RAMEmRA R RN EMAKBHNTE -

2011 2010

N —T-TF
Effect on Effect on
Effect on other Effect on other
profit components profit ~ components
and loss of equity and loss of equity
HERHAM® S H A
HIERNEE BINKE HESHNTE HHo0x2
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥ T ARETT ARETT
Floating rate instruments FEFETA (118,952) (10,189) (110,424) (10,121)

(i) Fuel price risk

The Group’s results of operations may be significantly
affected by fluctuations in fuel prices which is a significant
expense component for the Group. Aircraft fuel accounts for
37% of the Group’s operating expenses (2010: 31%).

In 2011, the Group did not enter into any new crude oil
option contracts, and all the contracts signed in past years
were settled before 31 December 2011.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, if fuel price had
been 5% higher/lower with all other variables held constant
(excluding the impact of crude oil option contracts), the
Group'’s fuel cost would have been RMB1,461 million higher/
lower.

(i) AHERER

HRAANEE —BEELESH
R AEBOEED ST EIMREERR
BT E - U HIEEEZESHE
37%(—ZT—TF : 31%) °

MNZZE——F  AEEREIHHRM
HIRA X - BUARTEE AT A Rh B
BHER-_ZE——F+-A=+—H7

2 EPEIE -

RZB——F+_A=+—HILFE
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Tt/ BRIEARE14.61(6TT
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

(iv)
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Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and derivative financial
instruments with banks and financial institutions, as well as
credit exposures to sales agents.

A significant portion of the Group’s air tickets are sold by
sales agents participating in the Billing and Settlements
Plan (“BSP”), a clearing system between airlines and sales
agents organised by the International Air Transportation
Association. The balance due from BSP agents amounted
to approximately RMB756 million as at 31 December
2011 (2010: approximately RMB804 million). The credit
risk exposure to BSP and the remaining trade receivables
are maintained by the Group on an on-going basis and
the allowance for impairment of doubtful debts is within
management’s expectations.

The Group’s cash management policy is to deposit cash
and cash equivalents mainly in state-owned banks and
other banks, which are highly rated by international credit
rating companies. The Group also deposits cash and cash
equivalents in an associate financial institution owned by its
holding company (Note 45(c)(iii)). The management does
not expect any loss to arise from non-performance by these
banks and the financial institution.

Transactions in relation to derivative financial instruments
are only carried out with financial institutions of high credit
rating. The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution. Management does
not expect any losses from non-performance by these
banks.

3.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@)

Financial risk factors (continued)

v)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been for day-to-
day operations, additions of and upgrades to aircraft, engines
and flight equipment and payments on related borrowings.
The Group finances its working capital requirements through
a combination of funds generated from operations and bank
loans (both short-term and long-term). The Group generally
finances the acquisition of aircraft through long-term finance
leases or bank loans.

The Group operates with a working capital deficit. As at 31
December 2011, the Group’s net current liabilities amounted
to RMB29,679 million (2010: RMB27,184 million). For the
year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded a net
cash inflow from operating activities of RMB13,623 million
(2010: inflow RMB10,641 million), a net cash outflow from
investing activities and financing activities of RMB12,803
million (2010: outflow RMB9,285 million), and an increase
in cash and cash equivalents of RMB820 million (2010:
increase RMB1,356 million).

The Directors of the Company believe that cash from
operations and short and long term bank borrowings will
be sufficient to meet the Group’s operating cash flow. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group’s treasury policy aims at maintaining flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available. The Directors of
the Company believe that the Group has obtained sufficient
general credit facilities from PRC banks for financing future
capital commitments and for working capital purposes (see
Note 2(a)).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@)
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v)

Financial risk factors (continued) (a) SREREZGE)
Liquidiity risk (continued) V) FREECEEE)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s TRERAEEMARTNEMEER
financial liabilities that will be settled into relevant maturity NFEEELEN SR EE  KERHE
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance BRI AR - RIEREERBRAE
sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts BHEE B FIER BRI T O o TR
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash NEBEHNSFEASAIERIRAIR SR
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying & c AREIRM R E R A - Ut E121E
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant. ARSI EM RSN EREE -
Group
£F
Less than Between Between
iyear 1and2years 2and5years Over 5 years
1EUT 12267 2E55 R 5FLLE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®BTR AR®T R ARET T
At 31 December 2011 —ZE——fF+=A
=g
Borrowings Bk 19,129,172 8,959,738 10,053,089 6,255,055
Derivative financial instruments SRITETHR 1,099 1,987 110,487 219,411
Obligations under finance leases ~ FHEFAEB & 2,790,844 2,846,797 7,836,047 8,448,826
Trade and other payables JERBR R H A E X 18,650,034 71,410 148,515 67,210
Total Fber ] 40,571,149 11,879,932 18,148,138 14,990,502
At 31 December 2010 —T—TF+=A
=+—H
Borrowings f&3k 16,113,516 8,591,821 9,140,195 6,729,831
Derivative financial instruments SRPTAETR 61,857 4,920 131,903 117,727
Obligations under finance leases ~ EEETHE B E 2,476,451 2,539,816 7,498,600 8,359,802
Trade and other payables JE A5} BR 30 e EL A FE A5 3Rk 18,151,076 8,830 336,761 314,944
Total BER 36,802,900 11,145,387 17,107,459 15,522,304

3. TRARERE(E)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aRAEAREE(E)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) SRERFEZE)
(v)  Liquidity risk (continued) V) REEZERE(E)
Company
G|
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5years Over 5 years
1EUT 1526 % 2Z5F R 5N L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR®ET R AREF T ARETR
At 31 December 2011 —E——%+=A
ETr=[E
Borrowings e 15,480,104 7,656,356 4,803,315 3,630,257
Derivative financial instruments SRITETHR 1,099 1,987 110,487 219,411
Obligations under finance leases ~ FHEFEBE 2,278,734 2,298,934 6,190,003 6,690,780
Trade and other payables JFE A~ BR 3k K% EL Ath JE A X 13,905,802 71,410 80,041 67,210
Total Fek ] 31,665,739 10,028,687 11,183,846 10,607,658
At 31 December 2010 —T—TF+=A
=+—H
Borrowings e 13,078,606 7,077,711 7,010,991 4,977,282
Derivative financial instruments SRITET R 61,857 4,920 131,903 117,727
Obligations under finance leases ~ EEETHE B E 2,084,165 2,137,332 6,251,938 6,854,100
Trade and other payables JE A~ BR TR K EL th FE A5 RR 14,552,006 8,830 268,526 314,944
Total 1aEs 29,776,634 9,228,793 13,663,358 12,264,053
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

,] 20 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt ratio, which is

3. &RiERE?

(b)

(&)
EREREE

AEBENEAREEBOR - BRIEEEER
28 UAARRREHELDBMAEERITA

FRRH A - R R R ER B A E AR
EERRA -

NP

RTRFRFARELRGRE  NEEAEST
BXMNTERROBEEE - BTHK ﬁﬁ
BERIEET

AEENREERBERERAER  Jti X

calculated as total liabilities divided by total assets. The debt ratio 1R PR 48 E BERAEEESE RN_E——F
at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows: EZE—ZF+_-_A=+—H BEAEGBX
ZZD"F :
2011 2010
S —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Total liabilities FEN=E 92,933,774 86,771,830
Total assets BEE 114,738,881 103,333,716
Debt ratio BEBEE 0.81 0.84

Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

(c)

TREENEREEN A AERFE

ROMTBBAANEFERERESR
TENARER - TRBRKERNAT

o HRAZBEHEBEETRTENRECK
KRR (E1E) -

o BRTFIEMBENRESN - ZEEM
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(BB ) SR (BIR B E18) (52
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 55 81 15 5 & Bll 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. aRAEAREIE(E)

TREENEREEN A AERE(F)

(c) Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities (c)
(continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2011 and 31

TRETAEEEENABER-_FT——FR
—E-TE+-A=+—HAEBNAAEBE-

December 2010.
Group
-3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2/E E3E FAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR%TR AR®TR AR®TR
At 31 December 2011 —E——&#+-A=+-—H
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments SRMETR
— Interest rate swaps (Note 38(a)) —FIRB B AL (HTE38() - 4,279 = 4,279
— Forward foreign exchange —INERBAEL
contracts (Note 38(b)) (GEXED) - 86 - 86
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 2,344 - 238,036 240,380
Total Az 2,344 4,365 238,036 244,745
Liabilities =L
Derivatives financial instruments SRITETH
— Interest rate swaps (Note 38(a)) —MEEHRAL(HE38()) - 267,909 - 267,909
— Forward foreign exchange —SNERMAL
contracts (Note 38(0)) (BT5E38(0)) - 65,075 - 65,075
Total 1A - 332,984 - 332,984
Group
£H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E ) E3E F4E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
At 31 December 2010 —ZEZ-EFE+-A=1+—H
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments SRITETA
— Crude oil option contracts —RhEEALN
(Note 38(c)) (BfEE38(c)) - 18,970 - 18,970
— Interest rate swaps (Note 38(a)) —MEEHE L (ME38(a)) - 52,081 = 52,081
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHEeRMEE 5,469 - 236,536 242,005
Total @ 5,469 71,051 236,536 313,056
Liabilities =L
Derivatives financial instruments SRMTETE
— Crude oil option contracts — R B & 4 (P 5538(c))
(Note 38(c)) - 48,612 - 48,612
— Interest rate swaps (Note 38(a)) —FEEHRAL(HE38()) = 191,247 = 191,247
— Forward foreign exchange —INERBA L (FTE38(0))
contracts (Note 38(b)) - 76,548 - 76,548
Total k) - 316,407 - 316,407
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

122

Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

3. TRARERE(E)

(c)

TREENEREEN A AERE(FE)

Company
NG|
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2E SE3E FAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥T R ARBTR ARBTR
As at 31 December 2011 —E2——&%+-A=1+—H
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments SRMTETE
— Interest rate swaps (Note 38(a)) —MEEHAEL(HE38()) - 4,279 - 4,279
— Forward foreign exchange —SNERBA L
contracts (Note 38(b)) (Bi=E38(0)) - 86 - 86
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE - - 221,557 221,557
Total e - 4,365 221,557 225,922
Liabilities &f&
Derivatives financial instruments SRITETR
— Interest rate swaps (Note 38(a)) —MEFBREL(HE38()) - 267,909 - 267,909
~ Forward foreign exchange —INEERHEX
contracts (Note 38(b)) (PfI5E38(0)) - 65,075 - 65,075
Total Fak] - 332,984 - 332,984
Company
NG|
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2E Ee]= FAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBTFT
As at 31 December 2010 225+ A=+—H
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments SRMTETE
— Crude oil option contracts — R EEA 4
(Note 38(c)) (PBf5E38(c)) - 18,970 - 18,970
— Interest rate swaps (Note 38(a)) —FEEBE L) (HT3E38(0)) = 52,081 - 52,081
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 3,672 - 220,057 223,729
Total Fakal 3,672 71,051 220,057 294,780
Liabilities BfE
Derivatives financial instruments SRITETR
— Crude oil option contracts — RS 4
(Note 38(c)) (Ht5E38()) - 48,612 - 48,612
— Interest rate swaps (Note 38(a)) —FIRBHBA 4 (KE38() = 191,247 = 191,247
~ Forward foreign exchange —SNEREA A
contracts (Note 38(b)) (PfE38(0)) - 76,548 - 76,548
Total B - 316,407 - 316,407

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2011
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 55 81 15 5 & Bll 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
Group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, these instruments are included in level 2 of the above
table.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

o The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves.

° The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to
present value.

o Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

3. TRIEREIR(E)

(c)

TREENEREFN A AERE(E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial statements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

(@

(b)

(c)

,] 24 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group tests whether property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets have been impaired in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(m) to the financial statements.
The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been
determined based on fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use
calculations. Value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management and certain
key assumptions, such as passenger-kilometers yield level, load
factor, aircraft utilisation rate and discount rates, etc.

Fair value of assets held for sale

Assets held for sale are stated the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2(n). The fair value of assets has been
determined by reference to the estimated market value and/or
available price quotes provided by the potential buyers.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises traffic revenues in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(e) to the financial statements.
Unused tickets are recognised in traffic revenues based on current
estimates. Management annually evaluates the balance in the SIAC
and records any adjustments, which can be material, in the period
the evaluation is completed.

These adjustments result from differences between the estimates
of certain revenue transactions and the timing of recognising
revenue for any unused air tickets and the related sales price,
and are impacted by various factors, including a complex pricing
structure and interline agreements throughout the industry, which
affect the timing of revenue recognition.

4,
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 55 81 15 5 & Bll 4R 82)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

U]

Frequent flyer programme

The Group operates frequent flyer programmes that provide travel
awards to programme members based on accumulated miles. A
portion of passengers revenue attributable to the award of frequent
flyer benefits is deferred and recognised when the miles have been
redeemed or have expired. The deferment of revenue is estimated
based on historical trends of redemptions, which is then used to
project the expected utilisation of these benefits and estimated fair
values of the unredeemed miles. Different judgements or estimates
could significantly affect the estimated provision for frequent flyer
programmes and the results of operations.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of components related to airframe and engine
overhaul costs are based on the Group’s historical experience
with similar airframe and engine models and taking into account
anticipated overhauls costs, timeframe between each overhaul,
ratio of actual flying hours and estimated flying hours between
overhauls. Different judgments or estimates could significantly
affect the estimated depreciation charge and the results of
operations.

Except for components related to airframe and engine overhaul
costs, other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The useful lives are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Provision for costs of return condition checks for aircraft
under operating leases

Provision for the estimated costs of return condition checks for
aircraft under operating leases is made based on the estimated
costs for such return condition checks and taking into account
anticipated flying hours, flying cycle and timeframe between each
overhaul. These judgments or estimates are based on historical
experience on returning similar airfframe models, actual costs
incurred and aircraft status. Different judgments or estimates
could significantly affect the estimated provision for costs of return
condition checks.

(e)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(9)

(h)

(M

’] 26 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

Retirement benefits

The Group operates and maintains defined retirement benefit
plans which provide retirees with benefits including transportation
subsidies, social activity subsidies as well as other welfare. The
cost of providing the aforementioned benefits in the defined
retirement benefit plan is actuarially determined and recognised
over the employees’ service period by utilising various actuarial
assumptions and using the projected unit credit method in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2(x) to the
financial statements. These assumptions include, without limitation,
the selection of discount rate, annual rate of increase of per capita
benefit payment and employees’ turnover rate. The discount rate
is based on management’s review of local high quality corporate
bonds. The annual rate of increase of benefit payments is based
on the general local economic conditions. The employees’
turnover rate is based on historical trends of the Group. Additional
information regarding the retirement benefit plans is disclosed in
Note 36 to the financial statements.

Deferred income tax

In assessing the amount of deferred tax assets that need to be
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2(j) to the financial statements, the Group considers future
taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning
strategies. In the event that the Group’s estimates of projected
future taxable income and benefits from available tax strategies are
changed, or changes in current tax regulations are enacted that
would impact the timing or extent of the Group’s ability to utilise
the tax benefits of net operating loss carry forwards in the future,
adjustments to the recorded amount of net deferred tax assets
and taxation expense would be made.

Valuation of acquisition price

The Company issued its A shares to effect the acquisition of
Shanghai Airlines during the year ended 31 December 2010. The
fair value of the shares at the acquisition date is determined based
on the quoted market price of the Company’s share issued as
of the date closest to the acquisition date with adjustments to
reflect restrictions specific to certain shares issued. Significant
assumptions were used when made adjustments for the value
of those restricted shares. Changes to these assumptions may
impact the amount of recognised goodwiill.

(9)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

)}

Purchase price allocation for business combination

Accounting for business acquisitions require the Group to allocate
the cost of the acquisition to the specific assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the date
of acquisition. In connection with the acquisition of Shanghai
Airlines, the Company undertakes a process to identify all assets
and liabilities acquired, including any identified intangible assets
where appropriate. The judgments made in identifying all acquired
assets, determining the estimated fair value assigned to each
class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as assets
useful lives, may materially impact the Group’s financial position
and results of operation. In determining the fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, a valuation was
conducted by an independent valuer and estimated fair values are
based on information available near the acquisition date and on
expectations and assumptions that have been deemed reasonable
by management.

There are several methods that can be used to determine the fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The purchase
accounting adjustment relate primarily to the aircraft and engines
and land use right which is valued by using market value approach.

4,
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5. REVENUES 5. A

,] 28 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation,
including the provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery, tour operations
and other extended transportation services.

AEBTELZRMER  BRETE 5E& B
B - IR R E AR E R AR o

Group
£

2011 2010
—EB——fF —ETFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR AREFIT
Traffic revenues EEUTA 76,513,636 67,390,909
— Passenger — =i 68,433,970 58,968,019
— Cargo and mail —HEREE 8,079,666 8,422,890
Ground service income It B ARFS YT A 2,104,604 1,957,610
Tour operations income MREEARFSUZA 2,115,520 1,932,510
Cargo handling income EYRRIEUA 278,724 673,329
Commission income e A 95,426 100,016
Others Hith 1,295,220 1,749,285
82,403,130 73,803,659

Note:

Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC, the major elements
of the Group’s revenues were subject to business tax levied at rates of 3% or 5%.
Pursuant to the notice of exemption of business tax on the provision of international
transportation services (Cai Shui [2010] No. 8) jointly issued by Ministry of Finance
(“MoF”) and the State Administration of Taxation (“SAT”), the Group’s revenues
from the provision of international transportation services are exempted from
business tax from 1 January 2010. The business tax incurred and offset against
the above Group’s revenues for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
approximately RMB1,803 million (2010: approximately RMB1,463 million).

Pursuant to the notice of regarding the pilot programme for the transformation of
transportation and certain modern service industries in Shanghai from business
tax to Value Add Tax (“VAT”) (Cai Shui Fa [2011] No. 111) issued by MoF and SAT,
all of the Group’s traffic revenue and the other revenues (including ground service
income, cargo handling income, commission income and others) generated in
Shanghai will be subjected to VAT levied at rates of 11% or 6% from 1 January
2012; while the other revenue generated in other locations of China will continue to
be subject to business tax at rates of 3% or 5%.

G

REFESESETRAREPINRE - AREETERA
A B H 3% 6% B E R - RiFHEARLNE
M BRBRBRREHACHBE BRHBLERH
REEER S5 RS XA B A (B 5[2010]85%) H93R
EBEZZ-ZF A AEERHNEFERS
BRBEER BE_T——Ft-_A=1T—HLEFE "
B B AR EIRA R & EF OB ARE18.03(ET(=
TTF  HARB14.63187T) ©

R EE AR ERE IR - BRFE R HECERE
EEMHRRBEREMIDBRIRK X & EH L E
B BB A (BT [2011]11158) »+ 8201241 A1 HE
REEFAEHRBEBRATN LS RHENEMRISIRA (R
FEERIEMA - EVRIEUA - B2UAREARA) 1
1211%306% 7T IS ER o NGB B E A1 R 1R A A9 H
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6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

6. Hfth=RIA

Group
55
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARETFT
Other operating income Hhes U A
— Government subsidies — ERFT R Eh 1,061,451 658,620

Note:

Government subsidies represent (i) subsidies granted by governments to the
Group; and (i) other subsidies granted by various local municipalities to encourage
the Group to operate certain routes to cities where these municipalities are located.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@)

CODM, office of the General Manager, reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources.

The Group has one reportable operating segment, reported as
“airline transportation operations”, which comprises the
provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery and ground service.

Other services including tour operations, aviation training, air
catering and other miscellaneous services are not included within
the airline transportation operations segment, as their internal
reports are separately provided to the CODM. The results of these
operations are included in the “other segments” column.

Inter-segment transactions are entered into under normal
commercial terms and conditions that would be available to
unrelated third parties.

In accordance with IFRS 8, segment disclosure has been
presented in a manner that is consistent with the information used
by the Group’s CODM. The Group’s CODM monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment based
on financial results prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises (the “PRC Accounting Standards”), which
differ from IFRS in certain aspects. The amount of each material
reconciling items from the Group’s reportable segment revenue
and profit or loss, arising from different accounting policies are set
out in Note 7(c) below.

===
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER(E)
EIEEEARE(REERAT) EBENA
EEHABEEADNHAKBRAR S RE
W o ()

(@) CODM, office of the General Manager, reviews the Group’s (a)
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. (continued)

BRE-F——Ft-A=t-ALFESHS

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as

,] SO China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

follows: BN TR
Airline
transportation Other
operations segments Elimination Unallocated* Total
MEEEIE  HEBIH pak: ki AABIER* &gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
Reportable segment revenue  $f5MRPHIRE D TULA
from external customers 81,597,560 2,376,945 - - 83,974,505
Inter-segment sales HEREE - 201,989 (201,989) - -
Reportable segment revenue WESEUA 81,597,560 2,578,934 (201,989) - 83,974,505
Reportable segment profit WEDHHAFIE
before income tax 4,997,606 41,986 - 128,122 5,167,714
Other segment information ~ Hft1 A& ¥
Depreciation and amortisation ~ FrEMEHER 7,282,227 88,500 - - 7,370,727
Impairment losses BERBEEX 799,105 259 - - 799,364
Capital expenditure BARMES 18,159,708 91,985 - - 18,251,693

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2010 are as

HEZ—ZFTA=+—HIFEND

follows: BEEN TR
Airline
transportation Other
operations segments Elimination Unallocated* Total
mEEBASD  HEBHH 7 EPFEHE RABIER" Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Reportable segment revenue  $i5MRPHIRE D EILA
from external customers 72,029,550 2,928,558 — = 74,958,108
Inter-segment sales Vak: s 427,141 295,335 (722,476) - -
Reportable segment revenue WED A 72,456,691 3,223,893 (722,476) - 74,958,108
Reportable segment profit WD EHAIFIE
before income tax 5,633,323 88,407 = 119,363 5,841,093
Other segment information ~ Hti5H&ER
Depreciation and amortisation ~ FTEMEHER 6,916,308 69,397 - - 6,985,705
Impairment losses AERERE 425,772 1,289 - - 427,061
Capital expenditure BAMSH 22,752,632 336,978 - - 23,089,610
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(@)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEPER(E)
CODM, office of the General Manager, reviews the Group’s (a) EEBERFE(HARERAE)EBEHAR
internal reporting in order to assess performance and EENAPBREUSTEXERERIBE
allocate resources. (continued) R e (88)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011 and 31 RZE——F+_A=+—RAN=E—ZF
December 2010 are as follows: TZA=T AN HBEEMEBEITHOT :
Airline
transportation Other
operations segments Elimination Unallocated* Total
MRS  HthEB pak:iEiiE AABIER* &gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR AR%T R ARBTR ARBTR
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&
+=A=1+-H
Reportable segment assets REDBEE 106,818,323 4,658,780 (763,176) 1,501,225 112,215,152
Reportable segment liabilities BENHAE 87,272,414 3,560,501 (763,176) - 90,069,739
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZF
+=A=t+-H
Reportable segment assets WEDDEE 97,500,563 2,045,617 (191,907 1,455,844 100,810,117
Reportable segment liabilities REDHEE 83,387,701 1,038,146 (191,907) - 84,233,940
* Unallocated assets primarily represent investments in associates * AOEEEEZZERERERBEN R - 68

(b)

and jointly controlled entities, and available-for-sale financial assets.
Unallocated results primarily represent the share of results of
associates and jointly controlled entities.

The Group’s business segments operate in three main
geographical areas, even though they are managed on a
worldwide basis.

The Group’s revenues by geographical segment are analysed
based on the following criteria:

(1)  Traffic revenue from services within the PRC (excluding the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”),
Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) and Taiwan,
(collectively known as “Regional”)) is classified as domestic
operations. Traffic revenue from inbound and outbound
services between overseas markets excluding Regional is
classified as international operations.

RARAHHESREE - ROREETE
BESEBMERRRAEAREME

(b) AEEZEBIBRZAZENHEEHL
& BEREERERMMN -

i S

Q)

PR MZE

B D M2 WADITIT -

RPBERER(TEETEERFRITR
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) The Group’s business segments operate in three main
geographical areas, even though they are managed on a
worldwide basis. (continued)

(2) Revenue from ticket handling services, ground services,
cargo handling service and other miscellaneous services are
classified on the basis of where the services are performed.

%

(b)

HREFR ()

AEEZEB I BRZEESHHEET
B BEHEEE2BEM - ()

@ REHEEZRBUA  HERBEARE
1t 71~ 5 BR 765 P R AR O W AR SR 1 % AR 7%
PRt BI5% Az i IR »

Group
3L |
2011 2010
—E——5F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
Domestic (the PRC, excluding Hong Kong, 3ER(HE - TEESREHE)

Macau and Taiwan) 57,675,579 51,060,489
Regional (Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) 78 & b & 3,771,339 3,900,952
International [0S 22,527,587 19,996,667
Total (== 83,974,505 74,958,108

The major revenue-earning assets of the Group are its
aircrafts, all of which are registered in the PRC. Since the
Group’s aircrafts are deployed flexibly across its route
network, there is no suitable basis of allocating such assets
and the related liabilities by geography and hence segment
assets and capital expenditure by geography have not been
presented.

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit, assets
and liabilities to the consolidated figures as reported in the
consolidated financial statements.

(c)

REET 2P ARRNREEE - b
R EMRAE - HRAKEZR
BRETRfARTEBRER  RAERL
SEERAHEEREERAEARAE
i At R RRE R IREEERE
RN

EDHBA ~ 2 EFE - DWEERDHP
BEESHIBRRIITZAHBBEZER
B e

Group
58

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZEFF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥F T ARETT

Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue HwED A 83,974,505 74,958,108

— Reclassification of business tax and —HEM R HTEERER

expired sales in advance of carriage HEERANEDE (i) (1,571,375) (1,154,449)
Consolidated revenue XN 82,403,130 73,803,659

,] 8 2 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit, assets
and liabilities to the consolidated figures as reported in the
consolidated financial statements. (continued)

BEDHBEA  2HFE - 2WEERD A
BEESHIBERRIIRZEHBEBZER
AR o ()

Group
55
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR¥F ARETFT
Profit before income tax A
Reportable segment profit &5 B AT E 5,167,714 5,841,093
— Difference in depreciation and — TR BEENIK
impairment charges for aircraft, RRITRAGITE -
engines and flight equipment MEBRHER (ii) (9,288) (83,765)
— Provision for post-retirement benefits —RIREEFREE (i) (326,145) (347,936)
— Reversal of revaluation surplus — FREH T b FRAE
relating to land use rights SLhIEE (iv) 8,420 8,420
Consolidated profit before income tax A BLRTAE 4,840,701 5,417,812
Group
L |
2011 2010
—E——fF —EFF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥F T ARETT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets WMEDHEELTE 112,215,152 100,810,117
— Difference in depreciation and — M - BB R
impairment charges for aircraft, RATRAEITE R
engines and flight equipment BEBENER 74,859 84,147
— Reversal of revaluation surplus — RS b (s R4
relating to land use rights SHEEE (iv) (343,786) (352,206)
— Difference in intangible asset (goodwill) —RUGE O _ERRR D EE
arising from the acquisition of WEPEEE)
Shanghai Airlines =2 (v) 2,760,665 2,760,665
— Others —HAth 31,991 30,993
Consolidated total assets ABHEERE 114,738,881 103,333,716
PERAMERGARAR 201 F% | 33
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) DEERHEE)

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit, assets (c) BEDIIBWA -~ 2FFE - 2 BEERST
and liabilities to the consolidated figures as reported in the EEHEHUBRRI R ZEHBIEZER
consolidated financial statements. (continued) e o (48)

Group
£ 5
2011 2010
=E——F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR¥ T AREFIT
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities HwENE B ELRE 90,069,739 84,233,940
— Provision for post-retirement benefits —RIKE R R RO A (il 2,943,428 2,617,283
— Others —EAth (79,393) (79,393)

Consolidated total liabilities A EERR 92,933,774 86,771,830

Notes: R

()  The difference represents the different classification of business tax () ZERREEVESIRAPRERRETED
and expired sales in advance of carriage under PRC Accounting ¥R ERR I B REER TR D HEE
Standards and IFRS. £o

(i)  The difference is attributable to the differences in the useful lives (i) ZEERRE BBRESEHERUAEEE
and residual values of aircraft and engines adopted for depreciation R ESEe AR T B #3R & %R
purpose in prior years under PRC Accounting Standards and IFRS. THHEFRAKBETRAMELENEZR -
Despite the depreciation policies of these assets have been unified BERFR  ZEEENFTEBRERED
under IFRS and the PRC Accounting Standards in recent years, ¥ EREERACESTERTES—
the changes were applied prospectively as changes in accounting BEREAERASEEET#EWRARRK
estimates which results in the differences in the carrying amounts BRZEEE  AUHZEEENREEBEEAR
and related depreciation changes under IFRS and PRC Accounting AR A BT 8 72 P B 1 25 g 5 25 A £ B R B A
Standards. WMELATIEFEEZR -

(i) In accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards, certain (i) REPECESER - B TRAKEENR
employees’ post-retirement benefits are recognised upon actually FIR AR o ARIBEIPR I ISIRE AR -
incurred. Under IFRS, such post-retirement benefits under defined WEIEATEENTETHE TRIKEER
benefit schemes are required to be recognised over the employees’ HEE TR FHRRNNENERDAELTER
service period using projected unit credit method.

(v)  Under the PRC Accounting Standards, land use rights injected by the vy ZEFRBECESFERT  AEBEHELETE
parent company as capital contribution are stated at valuation less BRAFEARD e A - R EER
accumulated amortisation. Under IFRS, land use rights are recorded KT R o RIBERMBHREER - =
as prepaid operating leases at historical cost which was nil at the time b {55 PR VE A A8 4 1 AR E TR A SR UA R 52 AR
of listing. PR - AN EEE TR A 1 R A

(V) The determination of the fair values of the acquisition costs and V) AFEEURE MR ES 0T R AT SR

,] 84 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

identifiable assets and liabilities of Shanghai Airlines acquired is
different under IFRS and the PRC Accounting Standards, which
results in difference in the intangibles/goodwill recognised arising from
the acquisition.

ERBENAABERTECEGEAIR
B G ER TEE TR - B AR
BIPEE/SENESENR -
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8. GAIN ON FAIR VALUE MOVEMENTS OF 8.

=t+—RLFE

DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

PTEIAR

REEZEH N

Group
L |
2011 2010
S —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETT
Gain arising from fair value movements of MTETERARBEZ KRG

derivatives financial instruments

— Crude oil option contracts (Note 38(c)) — B EIES £ (K15E38(c)) 67,310 800,195

— Other derivatives (Note 38(a) & (b)) —H A fTET A (KI5E38() & (0) 19,541 33,189

86,851 833,384

9. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS 9. I&  #HalEh
Group
L |

2011 2010

—B——F —E—ZF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T& - %o - eAL RmaL 5,992,672 6,567,729

Employee welfare and benefits EEEF 335,464 361,149
Defined contribution retirement schemes TEFRARE 2 (MH7E36())

(Note 36(a) 1,142,167 996,326
Post-retirement benefits (Note 36(b)) 1B BRIKEEREFH (M7E36() 478,502 479,514
Staff housing fund (Note 37(a)) BIFEES(ME37() 544,674 422 167
Staff housing allowance (Note 37(b)) B T E 8k (FI=E37(0) 171,375 113,901

8,664,854 8,940,786

FPERAMERBER AT
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9. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (continued)

(@) Emoluments of directors and supervisors

Details of the emoluments paid to the Company’s directors and

supervisors are as follows:

9. I& ¥ l@Ed(E)

(@) EBRESHHE

NGB AREEREENMERE TIISE

2011
—E——F
Salaries and
Allowance Bonus Total
e R TEAL wmE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TR ARBFT
Executive Directors HITESE
Liu Shaoyong* 2R B - - -
Ma Xulun 5 670 - 670
Li Yangmin*** TER 636 - 636
Luo Zhuping B 559 - 559
|_| \Jun*&*x $E*&** - - -
Luo Chaogeng*s** ZR B prre - - -
Independent non-executive BIAFHITES

Directors

Liu Keya 275 97 - 97
Wu Xiaogen REER - - -
Ji Weidong FHR 120 - 120
ShaoRuiging BRIRE 120 - 120
Supervisors E=E
Yu Faming*&*** a:;jg—u/%*&*** - - —
Feng Jinxiong HE 366 - 366
Yan Taisheng HRpE 317 - 317
Liu Jiashun* 2R IE* = - -
Liu Jiangbo*&** BT re - - -
Xu Zhao* RAB* - - -
Total a&t 2,885 - 2,885

,] 86 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011
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9. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (continued) 9. T & - H#& KEF| (&)
(@) Emoluments of directors and supervisors (continued) (a) EEREENME(E)
2010
—Z—ZF
Salaries and
Allowance Bonus Total
e Kmih TEAT b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKETTT ARETT ARETT
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Shaoyong* 2l E - - -
Li Jun* ZE* - - -
Ma Xulun 5w 604 - 604
Luo Chaogeng* I - - -
Luo Zhuping BT 514 - 514
Independent non-executive BIAFHITES

Directors

Liu Keya 255 E 102 - 102
Wu Xiaogen REER - - -
Ji Weidong FHR 96 - 96
ShaoRuiging BRIRE 60 - 60
Hu Honggao HEs 24 - 24
Zhou Ruijin B 24 - 24
Wu Baiwang RHE 60 - 60
Xie Rong EIES 60 - 60
Supervisors E=x
Liu Jiangbo* 21T - - -
Xu Zhao* RAE* - - -
Yan Taisheng =P 220 - 220
Feng Jinxiong HE 317 - 317
Liu Jiashun* ZIR g = - -
Total &Er 2,081 = 2,081

These directors and officials of the Company received emoluments

from CEA Holding, the parent company, part of which were in
respect of their services to the Company and its subsidiaries. No
apportionment has been made as it is impracticable to apportion this
amount between their services to the Group and their services to CEA

Holding.

These directors and officials of the Company retired or resigned

during the year ended 31 December 2011.

These directors and officials of the Company were newly appointed

during the year ended 31 December 2011.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no directors and
supervisors waived their emoluments (2010: Nil).

*k

KRARBHES  EFREMITBARBAR
RAREWBRRRMRY - YREREH

BRMEEDENE - ARARESRR

HAREENREDESASE R ERM
S8 - B A FORA I RT R o

KARARMAEE  EEREMITBRARRZ
T——FRRREER -

KARARMAEE  EEREMITBRARRZ

T——FEHMBE -

REE-F——F+-A=+—BLFE

BEENEENREMS(—T—TF &) -
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9. WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS (continued) 9. I& - #Fre @M (&)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

None of the Company’s directors and supervisors was among
the five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011(2010:Nil). The emoluments payable to the five
highest paid individuals are as follows:

(b)

Bt

il

AR BHFASNHE

R-T——FE ARAAUKSHAR
HEREM-UREERER(ZT-ZTF:
) - AfumSHFABNMEFHBENT

Group
58
2011 2010
—2-—F —ZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances IE - %< CAKMER 4,910 4,416

The emoluments fell within the following band:

BeRamT

Number of individuals

AH
2011 2010
—E——fF TE—T4E
Below HK$1,500,000 1,500,000/ 7T AT 5 5

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the Directors, supervisors and the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office (2010: Nil).

,] 88 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011
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10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 10. BERIERX
Group
55
2011 2010
—E-——fF —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Impairment charge on assets held for BFEFSEEREGEHE@)
sale (Note (a)) 612,216 256,694
Impairment charge on flight equipment RITRBESTHRE
spare parts 26,100 148,697
638,316 405,391
Note: AR
(@ In December 2011, the Group management entered into an agreement @ RITE——F+=h FEEEREHE-F=7%
with a third party to dispose certain aircraft and related engines in the FREHE  EARARIEAANLEHERNARS
forthcoming 12 months in consideration of high maintenance costs of these BB TREMESHE R ——F+_A=1+—
aircraft. The aircraft and engines has been classified as assets held for sale H ZERUEREBREESBAREFEEE -
at 31 December 2011, and an impairment loss of approximately RMB612 AEEREBEEEH ETOLHEERTNKREEER%
million was made against these aircraft and engines by reference to the BFEE - HZERE R BRI RAEEBEARK
contracted selling price less estimated cost to sell (Note 42). 6.12{8 T (fifzt42) -

11.

OPERATING PROFIT

1. L2 5 HE

Operating profit is stated after charging the following items: LERBARRER THIRB SR -
Group
L |
2011 2010
—E——fF —ZEFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARETT
Amortisation of intangible assets mR A E#E 26,167 49,681
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - SN RIBITE
—owned -BE 4,523,903 4,353,668
— leased —fHE 2,361,919 2,323,302
Amortisation of lease prepayments TEf R E R aM,777 31,186
Consumption of flight equipment spare parts LB BT HEFE 739,663 601,407
Provision for impairment of trade and other JEUBRTX
receivables R H h FEMCOR B AE 161,048 1,545
Auditors’ remuneration AN S 16,100 16,680
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

12. FINANCE INCOME 12, BRHA
Group
&5
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETFT
Exchange gains, net (Note) FE S es () 1,872,369 1,074,796
Interest income B YA 151,633 80,588
2,024,002 1,155,384
Note: TR
The exchange gain primarily related to the translation of the Group’s foreign EHWREEZERRRAEENINEG ENRERERER
currency denominated borrowings and obligations under finance leases at year- R FARE H B o
end exchange rates.
13. FINANCE COSTS 13, BAFE & 4
Group
L |
2011 2010
—E——fF T —TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Interest relating to obligations under BMERERENE
finance leases 268,487 279,095
Interest on bank borrowings BT B 1,379,452 1,234,837
Interest on bond FERHESRFE 40,833 -
Interest relating to notes payable FER TS 34,289 143,482
1,723,061 1,657,414
Less: amounts capitalised into advanced B BRNMEARETEN KNSR (GERE)
payments on acquisition of aircraft (Note) (253,027) (150,668)
amounts capitalised into construction in BERNMEATRIENSREGERE)
progress (Note) (7,307) (4,846)
1,462,727 1,501,900
Note: aHE
The average interest rate used for interest capitalisation is 3.84% per annum for BE_ZT——F+-A=+—HLFE  EXNMEFBRA
the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 3.75%). ) EN T 53.84% (—FB—T4F : 3.76%) ©
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX 14, BiIE

Income tax charged to the consolidated income statement is as follows:

SEARGIRERMBIELDT

Group
&=E

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETFT
Provision for PRC income tax R ETS R 255,047 125,309
Deferred taxation (Note 35) IEXERIE 8,282 8,182
264,229 133,491

Prior to 2008, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (the “Pudong
Subsidiaries”) located in Pudong District, Shanghai, were entitled to a
reduced rate of 15% pursuant to the preferential tax policy in Pudong
District, Shanghai. Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), which was approved by the
National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007 and became effective
from 1 January 2008, the Company and the Pudong Subsidiaries
are entitled to a transitional arrangement to gradually increase the
applicable corporate income tax rate to 25% over five years from 2008.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the corporate income tax rate
applicable to the Company and the Pudong Subsidiaries was 24% (2010:
22%). Other subsidiaries of the Company, except for those incorporated
in Hong Kong which are subject to Hong Kong corporate income tax
rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%), are generally subject to the PRC standard
corporate tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) under the New CIT Law.

RZZT)\FLART - AR B RR LB TURR R T
fiaE FHEAR(DERMBAR D) AI=ZX HEH
REIEABEEBERER - HER15% c BEZTZT\
F-A—BEBTHNHREARANBE2EARREK
ARERZZET+HF=RA T BRBA(FEARHKL
MECEMETENFHABHEE  KXREE
AR ERERBRE_SEN\EE_T——F8
HEHRRNE S BERB%  c R-T——FF * &
ARIRERWNERAREANEHREE B24% (=
T—TF : 22%) - REAMED BB A RIZR
EEBERTER165%(—T—ZF : 16.5%)H
FRSRLERIN - AR B E M E M B A B A iR RET
TSRl E R BAEEMBH RSN (ZE—FF :
25%) °
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14. INCOME TAX (continued)

15.

16.

,] 42 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

Tax on the Group’s consolidated income statement differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the standard taxation rate of
the Company as follows:

14, FiIE(E)

REEF A GHABRABIR - EARFATEB R
Rify AL T MmN ZRENT

Group
&5
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Profit before income tax G EIRNE 4,840,701 5,417,812
Adjusted by: PR
Share of result of associates and jointly BEHERAREENRNES
controlled entities (106,872) (67,382)
4,733,829 5,350,430
Tax calculated at the tax rate of 24% (2010: 22%) 1%24% % Xt ER ST & A
(2010%F : 22%) 1,136,119 1,177,095
Effect attributable to subsidiaries charged B A B125%8% 16.5% FT 1S R i R ) s/ 22

at tax rates of 25% or 16.5% (2010%F : 25%516.5%)

(2010: 25% or 16.5%) 10,637 1,170
Income not subject to tax mEHBUA (12,426) (14,829)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes T EE 2 & A 31,858 21,009
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses {5 A AR 4 & AR FERIE L & B

MRS IR (1,222,570) (1,682,357)
Unrecognised tax losses for the year AEERTFRAELEREENHEEIR 95,291 30,273
Realisation of deductible temporary differences ~ ANEFEBIRAGFERERRILER EE

which were not recognised deferred tax RTINS R ER

in previous years - (349,6006)
Unrecognised deductible temporary differences 2N [E R MR IR ET & B

for the year R HENE R ER 225,320 950,736
Tax charge HIEEA 264,229 133,491

The Group operates international flights to overseas destinations. There
was no material overseas taxation for the year ended 31 December
2011 and 2010, as there are double tax treaties between the PRC and
the corresponding jurisdictions (including Hong Kong) relating to aviation
businesses.

DIVIDEND

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2011 (2010: Nil).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
RMB4,523 million (2010: RMB4,422 million).

15.

16.

AEBERABHS - REKLI5E it - R
 EE BB A A (RIS E8) B T HE U E
BB - AEERBE-F——FR_F—F
A=+ AL EEEREATIBR -

)

ARREREEFBE_T—F+-A=+—H
IFFEENREEMRE(ZT—FF &) -

ARRRIESEFEERIGANE
8RB R A RIS 5 BRI A R #645.23

B(ZZE—ZF : ARBWUM2ET)ELBER
NAEIMIBEREP
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17.

18.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB4,576 million
(2010: RMB4,958 million) and the weighted average number of shares of
11,276,539,000 (2010: 11,149,426,000) in issue during the year ended
31 December 2011.

17. tHXJ‘l&JIIl

BREAR S IRAN GRS EERIEFBEAR
457618 (=T —FF : ARK49.58187T) FIAR
FADFEITHINEF AR E11,276,539,0000% (=
T—T4F 1 11,149,426,0000) 5t & -

The Company has no potentially dilutive option or other instruments RN BN B A S A AR A BE R i sk E At &
relating to the ordinary shares. TH-
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BB E
Group
£@
Goodwill  Sponsorship Computer
(Note (a)) fee software Total
HE
(F%()) BB B E 4 wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
Cost A
At 1 January 2010 R=Z—ZF—A—H - 320,000 133,867 453,867
Arising from/addition through the Wi EmBRREE,
acquisition of Shanghai Airlines 11,269,695 - 61,782 11,331,477
Other additions HMARE - - 22,403 22,403
Disposal BRE = (320,000) (641) (320,641)
At 31 December 2010 —ZF+_-f=+—H 11,269,695 = 217,411 11,487,106
At 1 January 2011 —T—%—f—H 11,269,695 - 217,411 11,487,106
Additions /é—\‘\g - - 46,381 46,381
At 31 December 2011 N=B——H+=-HA=+-—H 11,269,695 - 263,792 11,533,487
Accumulated amortisation B if
At 1 January 2010 R-—E—ZF—HF—H - 299,451 84,794 384,245
Addition through the acquisition of U AR AR (73 hn
Shanghai Airlines - - 40,379 40,379
Charge for the year NEEHE - 20,549 29,132 49,681
Disposal BE = (320,000) (675) (320,575)
At 31 December 2010 —ZF+_-f=+—H = = 153,730 153,730
At 1 January 2011 —T—%—f—H = - 153,730 153,730
Charge for the year $¢Fﬁ§ﬁﬁ - - 26,167 26,167
At 31 December 2011 R-B——F+=-A=+—H - - 179,897 179,897
Net book amount BRERE
At 31 December 2010 RNZE—TF+_A=+—H 11,269,695 - 63,681 11,333,376
At 31 December 2011 N-—B——F+=-A=+—-8 11,269,695 - 83,895 11,353,590
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

18. BILEE (&)

Company
AT
Goodwill  Sponsorship Computer
(Note (a)) fee software Total
BE
(FE%() g8E LS et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥T R ARBT T AR%ETR
Cost 22
At 1 January 2010 R-—ZE—ZF—HF—H = 320,000 129,244 449,244
Arising from the acquisition of Wi EfR D E A
Shanghai Airlines 11,269,695 - - 11,269,695
Other additions HiRE - - 31,851 31,851
Disposal BE = (320,000) = (320,000)
At 31 December 2010 R=—T—TF+=-A=+—H 11,269,695 - 161,095 11,430,790
At 1 January 2011 RZF—F—A—H 11,269,695 - 161,095 11,430,790
Additions NE = = 41,842 41,842
At 31 December 2011 R=TB——&F+=-A=+—8 11,269,695 - 202,937 11,472,632
Accumulated amortisation 25
At 1 January 2010 R=—E—ZF—HF—H = 299,451 82,803 382,254
Charge for the year REEHE - 20,549 24,688 45,237
Disposal RE - (320,000) - (320,000
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF+-A=+—H - - 107,491 107,491
At 1 January 2011 R=—E—F—HF—H = - 107,491 107,491
Charge for the year REEHH - - 21,767 21,767
At 31 December 2011 R-—B——H+=-A=+-—8 - - 129,258 129,258
Net book amount BREFE
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-—ZTF+=-A=+—H 11,269,695 - 53,604 11,323,299
At 31 December 2011 R=B——&E+=-A=+—-H 11,269,695 - 73,679 11,343,374
Notes: AEEE
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The balance as at 31 December 2011 represents the goodwill arising
from the acquisition of Shanghai Airlines. The goodwill is attributable
to strengthening the competitiveness of the Group’s airlines operation
business, attaining synergy through integration of the resources and
providing the evolution of Shanghai international air transportation center.
For the purpose of impairment assessment, the goodwill is allocated to the
airline operation business, the principal cash-generating-unit (‘CGU”) that
the Group operates and benefits from the acquisition.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is principally reflected by the
Company’s fair value which can be determined by reference to the
observable quoted market price of the Company’s shares less the costs of
disposal, no impairment for the goodwill is required based on the market
price of the Company’s shares as at the balance sheet date.

(@)

RZZE——F+=A=+—0  BEREENKE
ERBRD - ZEELTERRAMBATNETS
BEERESERGRIERAREE LERERAE
TR o BATARER B H - BEBRABREM
ZEBHE - BIAREEEREERT MmN RIS
MIREEHETT °

FZRESELETHANESEERARRARFHD
ABELAI2RARRBRENTHERBAEZREE
RitE - BEEABXRA  BEARARENTS
ERFE  BENFERE -
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. 2% - Has Mkt
Group
£5
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
R RERRRTRE
Other
Held under property,
finance plantand Construction
Owned Leases Buildings  equipment in progress Total
NeE Hig#psk -
RE HERF BF KERRE EBIE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTR AR®TR AR%TR ARMTR ARET:R
Cost ﬁY.ZNE
At 1 January 2011 R=—ZE—%—F—H 55,025,526 36,728,572 4,881,463  5256,126 1,063,659 102,955,346
Transfers from construction ﬁEEEIﬁ@;)\
in progress - - 310,006 179,927 (489,933) -
Transfers from advanced payments  #FREETER FEE A
on acquisition of aircraft (Note 21) (BzE21) 1,501,142 2,230,271 - - - 3,821,413
Other additions HAE 4,022,991 2,967,931 78,279 533,186 1,720,738 9,323,125
Transfer to assets held BERAGEEE
for sale (Note 42) (GiEZ) - (3,863,025) - - - (3,863,025)
Transfer to lease prepayments ERERAER - - = = (153,880)  (153,880)
Other disposals HWEE (778,991) (423,006) (32,078) (337,137) (1,424)  (1,572,636)
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&
+=RA=+-H 59,860,668 37,640,743 5,237,670 5,632,102 2,139,160 110,510,343
Accumulated depreciation RitHE
At 1 January 2011 R=F——F—f—H 19,584,570 8,855,680 1,125,373 3,349,386 - 32,915,009
Charge for the year AEEHE 3,871,675 2,361,919 177,049 475,179 - 6,885,822
Transfer to assets held BERAREEE
for sale (Note 42) (Ffiz+42) - (2,402,873 - - - (2,402,873
Other disposals HihRE (778,991) (423,006) (8,820) (285,610) - (1,496,427
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&
+=ZRA=+-H 22,677,254 8,391,720 1,293,602 3,538,955 - 35,901,531
Impairment ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
At 1 January 2011 R=—E——%—F—H 721,101 473,393 - 550 23,020 1,218,064
Transfer to assets held Lxﬁﬁﬁ BE
for sale (Note 42) (FisE42) - (365,623) - - - (365,623)
Other disposals HiRE = = = = (1,424) (1,424)
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&
+-RA=+-H 721,101 107,770 - 550 21,596 851,017
Net book amount BREEE
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&
+=A=1+-H 36,462,313 29,141,253 3,944,068 2,092,597 2,117,564 73,757,795
At 1 January 2011 RZFE—F—H—H 34,719,855 27,399,499 3,756,090 1,906,190 1,040,639 68,822,273
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

10. V3 -

ax M ikt (4E)

Group
&8
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
T - BEERLRTRE
Other
Held under property,
finance plantand  Construction
Owned Leases Buildings  equipment in progress Total
WA His -
HE HERA BF HEKRE W ERIR Aat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost BAE
At 1 January 2010 R=Z—-TF—-f—H 41,272,431 35,022,691 3,644,946 4,440,886 766,753 85,147,707
Additions through the acquisition of L& A& (5 &0
Shanghai Airlines 6,046,426 1,419,992 879,230 628,902 177,843 9,152,393
Reclassification to owned assets upon giETHEFHE A EHE
expiring of the finance leases 1,419,873  (1,419,873) - - - -
Transfers from construction REEIRREA
in progress - - 364,245 104,610 (468,855) -
Transfers from advanced payments  #FRITERRE A (Fi3E21)
on acquisition of aircraft - - - - - -
(Note 21) 2,663,603 745,740 - - - 3409343
Other additions HAE 5,601,047 1,250,639 13,340 374,853 587,918 7,827,797
Transfer to assets held BEREHFELE
for sale (Note 42) (Fiz42) (1,221,197) = = = - (1,221,197)
Other disposals HitR g (756,657) (290,617 (20,298) (293,125) - (1,360,697)
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-TF+-A=+—H 55,025,526 36,728,572 4,881,463  5256,126 1,063,659 102,955,346
Accumulated depreciation ZiE
At 1 January 2010 RZT—Z2F—-f—H 15,860,596 7,510,903 963,531 2,891,053 - 27,226,083
Additions through the acquisition of W& Effk(n 1 A0
Shanghai Airlines 670,166 - 6,076 151,205 - 827,447
Reclassification to owned assets REHEHBAEEDE
upon expiring of the finance leases 687,908 (687,908) - - - -
Charge for the year AEEIE 3,693,411 2,323,302 163,448 496,809 - 6,676,970
Transfer to assets held BEREHFELE
for sale (Note 42) (Fiz42) (570,854) = - = = (570,854)
Other disposals Hitg g (756,657) (290,617 (7,682) (189,681) - (1,244,837
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-ZTF+-A=+—H 19,684,670 8,855,680 1,125,373 3,349,386 - 32,915,009
Impairment REEE
At 1 January 2010 RZT—ZF—-f—H 721,101 473,393 - 550 23,020 1,218,064
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZF+-A=1+—H 721,101 473,393 - 550 23,020 1,218,064
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-—ZF+-A=1—H 34,719,855 27,399,499 3,756,090 1,906,190 1,040,639 68,822,273
At 1 January 2010 RZZ—-TF—-A—-AH 24,690,734 27,088,395 2,681,415 1,549,283 743,733 56,708,560

,] 46 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 Rk MY et

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 55 81 15 5 & Bll 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. % - #¢s2 R (&)
(continued)
Company
NE
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
R RBRERITRE
Other
Held under property,
finance plantand Construction
Owned Leases Buildings  equipment in progress Total
D Hin -
BE HEHE BF HERRHE ERIR ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥BTR AR®Tn AR%TR ARETRT AR®T:R
Cost BAE
At 1 January 2011 R=—ZE—%—F—H 41,725,668 30,512,148 2,522,648 3,225,784 823,081 78,809,329
Transfers from construction RERTREA
in progress - - 154,235 47,500 (201,735) -
Transfers from advanced payments  #FRHTERRE A (Ffi3E21)
on acquisition of aircraft (Note 21) 1,584,261 2,230,271 - - - 3,814,532
Other additions HAE 2,853,247 2,312,515 55,710 336,622 956,481 6,514,575
Transfer to assets held EERAFEEE
for sale (Note 42) (Hizk42) - (3,863,025) = = - (3,863,025)
Invests to a subsidiary as capital BRENHBAR
contribution (5,537,968) - (16,500)  (138,085)  (429,406) (6,121,959)
Transfer to subsidiaries BAMBAR (301,521)  (1,654,184) - - - (1,955,705)
Transfer to lease prepayments BEEAAER - - = -  (153,;880)  (153,880)
Other disposals HitRE (666,117)  (300,144) (9,619)  (176,278) - (1,152,158)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+=ZA=1+-H 39,657,570 29,237,581 2,706,474 3,295,543 994,541 75,891,709
Accumulated depreciation iE
At 1 January 2011 R=Z——%—-F—H 15,161,832 7,595,373 661,402 2,413,261 - 25,831,868
Charge for the year AEEHE 2,745,666 1,922,252 94,444 294,242 - 5,056,604
Transfer to assets held for sale EERAFEEE
(Note 42) (MizH42) - (2,402,873 = = - (2,402,873)
Invests to a subsidiary as capital BRENHBAR
contribution (2,102,313) - (1,018  (96,946) - (2201,177)
Transfer to subsidiaries BAMEAR - (368,211) - - - (368,211)
Other disposals HirRE (666,117) (300,144) (2,672) (135,933) - (1,104,866)
At 31 December 2011 R-E——%+=-A=t+-H 15,139,068 6,446,397 751,256 2,474,624 - 24,811,345
Impairment HEEE
At 1 January 2011 R=—E——%—F—H 721,101 473,393 - - 5,200 1,199,694
Transfer to assets held for sale ERREGFELE
(Note 42) (Mfs42) - (365629) - = - (365,629)
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&+=-A=1+—-H 721,101 107,770 - - 5,200 834,071
Net book amount IREFE
At 31 December 2011 R-E——%+-A=t-H 23,797,401 22,683,414 1,955,218 820,919 989,341 50,246,293
At 1 January 2011 R=—Z——%—F—H 25,842,735 22,443,382 1,861,246 812,523 817,881 51,777,767
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

10. V3 -

ax M ikt (4E)

Company
NE
Aircraft, engines and
flight equipment
M - BELRITRE
Other
Held under property,
finance plantand  Construction
Owned Leases Buildings ~ equipment in progress Total
PAREE Hips
BE HERE BF WERREE T2 Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:
Cost RAE
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE-ZF—F—H 34,191,578 31,111,745 2,054,303 3,024,929 629,324 71,011,879
Reclassification to owned assets RERERBBEARENE
upon expiring of the finance leases 1,419,873  (1,419,873) - - - -
Transfers from construction fERIEEA
in progress - - 356,001 8058  (364,959) =
Transfers from advanced payments ~ #FREETAR FEEA
on acquisition of aircraft (Note 21) (B zE21) 1,989,079 745,740 - - - 2,734,819
Other additions HiRE 6,764,083 1,219,814 121,904 475,392 558,716 9,139,909
Transfer to assets held BEREHEEE
for sale (Note 42) (FizE42) (1,221,197) = - = - (1,221,197)
Invests to subsidiaries as capital BERKBAR
contribution (887,511) - - (134,639) - (1,022,150
Transfer to a subsidiary #BAKBAR - (864,592) - - - (864,592)
Other disposals HihEE (530237)  (280,686) (9560 (148,856) - (969,339
At 31 December 2010 RZF-ZF+-A=+—H 41,725,668 30,512,148 2,522,648 3,225,784 823,081 78,809,329
Accumulated depreciation REINE
At 1 January 2010 R=ZE—ZF—F—H 12,369,045 6,701,200 595,334 2,197,814 - 21,863,393
Reclassification to owned assets REHEHBABEDR
upon expiring of the finance leases 687,908 (687,908) - - - -
Charge for the year AEEHE 2,787,223 1,934,251 70,837 330,735 - 5,123,046
Other additions HbEin 681,907 - - - - 681,907
Transfer to assets held for sale ERRERELE
(Note 42) (MHz42) (570,854) - - - - (570,854)
Invests to subsidiaries as capital BBERWB AR
contribution (263,160) - - (10,610) - (3,770
Transfer to a subsidiary #BAMBEAR - (71,484) - - - (71,484)
Other disposals HhEE (530237)  (280,686) (4769  (104,678) - (920,370)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZF+-A=1+—H 15,161,832 7,595,373 661,402 2,413,261 - 25,831,868
Impairment REEE
At 1 January 2010 R-E-ZF—F—H 721,101 473,393 - - 5,200 1,199,694
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-ZEFE+-A=1+—H 721,101 473,393 - - 5,200 1,199,694
Net book amount BREEE
At 31 December 2010 R=F-ZTF+-fA=+—-H 25,842,735 22,443,382 1,861,246 812,523 817,881 51,777,767
At 1 January 2010 RZZE-ZF—-F—H 21,101,432 23,937,152 1,458,969 827,115 624,124 47,948,792
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 55 81 15 5 & Bll 4R 82)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

20.

(continued)

Note:

(a) As at 31 December 2011, certain aircraft and buildings owned by (@)
the Group and the Company with an aggregate net book amount of
approximately RMB18,317 million and RMB10,005 million respectively (2010:
approximately RMB20,800 million and RMB 14,846 million respectively) were

pledged as collateral under certain loan arrangements (Note 32).

LEASE PREPAYMENTS

19. W5 - s Rkim (&)

R=ZF—F+=_A=+—8 ' 2EEEKAEQRK
FED BN A ARE183.17E L R ARKE100.05
BL(ZE—ZTF : ARB2080EBLTEARKE
148.461870) B TR RIEFE RES THERBE
# R @ (T 7ES2) °

20. FENHEER

Group Company
£8 AE]
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E2——F —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARETR ARETT
Cost Jo%:
At 1 January —H—B#&#% 1,696,575 1,230,068 551,785 551,785
Ad(ditions through the acquisition W BE FRRZ D1 hn
of Shanghai Airlines - 466,507 - -
Other additions EMRE 159,306 - 157,547 =
Disposal BE (59,605) = (49,721) =
At 31 December +ZA=+—H#&& 1,796,276 1,696,575 659,611 551,785
Accumulated amortisation RETEs
At 1 January —A—B#&&H% 290,419 259,233 152,925 142,154
Charge for the year AN S 41,777 31,186 15,019 10,771
Disposal BE (7,192) - (5,634) -
At 31 December +=—A=+—HB&% 325,004 290,419 162,310 152,925
Net book amount BRMERE
At 31 December +-—A=t—H8&% 1,471,272 1,406,156 497,301 398,860

Lease prepayments represent unamortised prepayments for land use

rights.

The Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and the majority
of these land use rights have terms of 50 years from the date of grant.
As at 31 December 2011, the majority of these land use rights had
remaining terms ranging from 35 to 50 years (2010: from 36 to 51

years).

15 -

TR BRI i R # S RO TR A 2o 2 A B 3K

REBAAN L E BN E - MAR L
AR EFRABRRE AR R TH - R
E——F+-A=+—H  KRIBOHBOLEHRE

HBTERENAS+ESAHF(Z2—F4F
=TAFERT—) -

PR MZE

waRas 201 #% 149
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

21. ADVANCED PAYMENTS ON ACQUISITION OF = 21, Fiia
AIRCRAFT

Group Company
=L | AF
2011 2010 2011 2010
-5 ZZ—ZTF =—B-—-F ZZTITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREBTT AR%®TR ARETT
At 1 January —A—B#&&H% 6,356,602 5,081,174 6,231,270 5,081,174
Additions through the acquisition of U E& %) 1 0
Shanghai Airlines - 1,072,366 - -
Other additions H b3 n 8,180,128 3,461,737 7,533,475 3,745,877
Interest capitalised (Note 13) BAMEF B (HEE13) 253,027 150,668 245,127 139,038
Transfers to property, plant and EEYZE  WRREE
equipment (Note 19) (FH5E19) (3,821,413)  (3,409,343)  (3,814,532)  (2,734,819)
At 31 December +=-—A=+—8&% 10,968,344 6,356,602 10,195,340 6,231,270
Included in the Group’s and the Company’s balance as at 31 December RZE——F+ZA=+—H AEEREAQFEH
2011, the amounts of accumulated interest capitalised are RMB632 AN EFTEREFEEFDRNAARKE.32(2
million and RMB617 million respectively (2010: RMB548 million and TT(ZE—ZF : AR¥5.48B70) RARK6.17E
RMB530 million). TT(ZZT—ZTF : ARKES30ET) ©
On 27 October 2011, the Company entered into agreements with A AF20114F10 A 27 B B R B 52 5140
an aircraft supplier to substitute the purchase of certain number of a Wi - EREAFTRFIREAEER - AalR
type of aircraft with certain number of another type of aircraft because TR E TRZMERMTEE MK E TR B
of the delay in delivery of the original type of aircraft. Pursuant to the R FRM o IRIBIBFRIRTE « LRI TR TR K
agreements, all advance payments are transferred and the Company 2 E0EE AFTHA RTER R o RILRER - AFIEE
also reclassified other receivables of RMB687 million to advanced JR R M G B A E R ORET A R #E6.87 18T th
payments on acquisition of aircraft accordingly (Note 27). wHARMIER R (E27) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
AF
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Investment, at cost A BB ANME 7,104,106 4,083,117
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, majority of which are limited AEENEZEMRBR R RERBK L REENE
liability companies established and operating in the PRC, are as follows: REFEAR - HABERWT :
Place and date Attributable
Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
NCIECT R R A HMER FEfE R D TEEH
2011 2010 2011 2010
g% -%-3F =% C-33F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR AREFRL
China Eastern Airlines Yunnan Co., PRC 3,661,540 - 65% - Provision of airline services
Ltd. (‘CEA Yunnan’) (Note () 2 August 2011 Rtz R
FEIR A MEERARAT R
(RMES ) (@) —2—%)\AZH
China Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. PRC 3,000,000 950,000 51% 70%  Provision of cargo carriage
(“China Cargo”) (Note (b)) 22 July 1998 services
HEEENEERAR H RE{EEMERRY
(MﬂhﬁnJ)(‘&%ﬁ( ) —NN\F
tA=+Z=AH
China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu PRC 2,000,000 2,000,000 63% 63%  Provision of airline services
Co., Ltd. (‘CEA Jiangsu”) 3 May 1993 R R
FERAMZETIHERA R
([ RATER]) —hWNA=FHA=H
Shanghai Eastern Flight Training ~ PRC 608,443 608,443 95% 95%  Provision of flight training
Co., Ltd. (“Flight Training”) 18 December 1995 services
PERARITEIERAR F RERITIRIRS
(5 ]) —NREF
+=A+NB
China Eastern Airlines Wuhan PRC 600,000 600,000 96% 96%  Provision of airline services
Co., Ltd. (“CEA Wuhan’) 16 August 2002 RAZ R
HEIR AR H
BREFAR(RMEE]) “ZET-FN\A+A
Shanghai Airlines Co., Ltd. PRC 500,000 500,000 100% 100%  Provision of airline services
(‘New Shanghai Airlines”) 16 March 2010 Rtz R
EemzEaRAR(HEMR]) I
“Z-TE=A1"H
PERFMERGERLR 2011 E% | 5]
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22. REMNMBATI(E)
Place and date Attributable
Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
ARER R A HEfER EiBR G TEEH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®--% C-T-TF -%--F -T-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Shanghai Eastern Airlines Logistics PRC 200,000 200,000 70% 70%  Provision of cargo logistics
Co., Ltd. (“Eastern Logistics”) 23 August 2004 services
EERFERYRARAR i REEEMRRS
([REHR)) —ZTNEF
NAZ+=H
China United Airlines Co., Ltd. PRC 100,000 100,000 80% 80%  Provision of airline services
(“United Airlines”) 21 September 1984 R R
REEAMERRAR g
) —ANDE
AA=+—~H
Eastern Airlines Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC 70,000 70,000 86% 86%  Provision of hotel services
RMABEERAR 18 March 1998 primarily to crew
H members
—NN\FE FERBRITABRMEE
=AtNR AR
Shanghai Airlines Tours PRC 50,090 50,090 100% 100%  Tour operations, travel and
International (Group) Co., Ltd 29 August 1992 air ticketing agency and
(“Shanghai Airlines Tours”) e transportation
PemERERE(RE)ARRE —ANZEF RETENMZEZBRIER
(=z1)4)) NA=TAhA ediliient
Eastern Business Airlines Service ~ PRC 50,000 50,000 100% 100%  Provision of airlines
Co., Ltd. 27 September 2008 consultation services
RAABMERB AR Gl FRRUMEELENA
—TT)N\E
AA-++H
Notes: i
(@  In 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with the State-owned @ RIEB-—TF ARFAHEEFAREERITNE 7405
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the People’s REHERKYEMER  cEMEFHEMELAS AR
Government of Yunnan Province to establish CEA Yunnan with registered 36.62187C ' AAREIEMEARREEY c BHE-T——F
capital of RMB3,662 million, in which the Company holds 65% interests. +—A=1+—H ' AAFUBESMFEEARK3SET
As at 31 December 2011, the Company contributed its share of RMB2,380 =R BIE B EE -
million in cash and net assets.
(o)  China Cargo was previously a 70% subsidiary of the Company with original (b) FEMREMERESET  ARQFT70%ZEREHE D

,] 5 2 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

registered capital of RMB950 million. In 2011, making reference to the
valuation of the net assets of China Cargo, the Company and several other
investors contributed RMB1,046 million and RMB1,004 million respectively
into China Cargo. After the contribution, the proportion of ownership
interests held by the Company decreased from 70% to 51% and the
accumulated loss attributable to the Company was decreased by RMB426
million which was credited to share premium (Note 41).

Ale RZT——F  RIEFEMFEENTHE - AAF]
MEMLEE D BT EHFEARB10.46ETRARE
10.04187C ° JEE K& + NRRIFRLHIE70% FBEE
51% * RAREEN R EIER D ARB4261ET - W B
ST ABRAEHE (HizE41) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

23. WENREZE A7

Group Company
58 AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
—e——5 -T-TF -®--5 _T-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTIT AR¥®TRT AERETR
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMIRE MR AE 622,768 622,768 578,836 578,836
Share of results/reserves BhEE RE 214,821 184,901 = =
837,589 807,669 578,836 578,836

The movement on investments in associates is as follows:

RERBERROEFHMT

Group Company
£H NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF —E——fF —ZEFF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFT AR¥F R ARETT
At 1 January —A—B# 807,669 728,022 578,836 522,058
Additions through the acquisition of W% R A% {718 00
Shanghai Airlines - 59,714 - 56,778
Disposal of shares in an associate HE B2 N B I HE - (7,203) - -
Share of results of associates b (o) NI 75,435 39,228 - -
Share of revaluation on B{EHE AR
available-for-sale investments FiFHy Al B E
held by an associate BWAR(EE (2,701) 1,543 - -
Dividend received during the year AREWE|RINLE (42,814) (8,635) - -
At 31 December +—A=+—H#&% 837,589 807,669 578,836 578,836

RERSHERHERAT 201 F8 |53
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. WE RN a] (B

\/

AREEN T2 E N R RPBEKLLE
BEAT - HERERNT :

GENAR

Particulars of the principal associates, which are limited liability
companies established and operating in the PRC, are as follows:

Place and date Attributable

Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
ARER R A EMER FEfL R 47 TEEH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g--F -T-TF =§--F -TIF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETRT
Eastern Air Group Finance PRC 400,000 400,000 25% 25%  Provision of financial
Co., Ltd. (“Eastern Finance”) 6 December 1995 services to Group
RMEENBERETAR i companies of
([RMEt %)) —hWAESE CEA Holding
+=A7XA RTERMEE TEQ
REE RS
China Eastern Air Catering PRC 350,000 350,000 45% 45%  Provision of air catering
Investment Co., Ltd. 17 November 2003 services
RAMERMRERRAA FE REMEERRY
ZTT=F
+—A+tH
Shanghai Pratt & Whitney Aircraft PRC USD39,500  USD39,500 51% 51%  Provision of maintenance of
Engine Maintenance Company 28 March 2008 aircraft, engine and other
Limited (“Shanghai P&W”) H related components
(Note (a)) ZTENF maintenance services
PEEERBEDREEERDA =ZA=t+NR IRARH - BEHA
([LEEE])(FE@E) HAERED A E
New Shanghai International Tower ~ PRC 166,575 166,575 20% 20%  Provision of property
Co., Ltd. 17 November 1992 development and
¥ EEEBRAERRAR i management
—NWN=F REYEERRY
+—A+tH
Eastern Aviation Import & Export PRC 80,000 80,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Co., Ltd (‘Eastern Import 9 June 1993 equipment, spare parts
& Export’) i purchase
FmZEEHAFRAR —N=F =R - RITRER
([REELD ) ~ANR RITHBEHES
Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Travel ~ PRC 51,369 51,369 27% 27%  Provision of traveling and
Co., Ltd. (‘Dongmei Travel’) 17 October 2004 accommodation agency
PBRERZEIREER AR HE services
([REHE]) —TTNE RAIRE OB TR
+A++R R
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Place and date

23. RERE

Attributable

PN
=/N=]

(4&)

Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
NRER R HR A EMER FEE R4 TEXH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—Z2—-% C—ZT-TF ZB--F C"T-IZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETT
Eastern Aviation Advertising PRC 50,000 50,000 45% 45%  Provision of aviation
Service Co., Ltd. 04 March 1986 advertising agency
(‘Eastern Advertising”) H services
EERAMEERARAR —RE EREMEEEES
([RAEE]) =AmA
Shanghai Hongpu Civil Airport PRC 25,000 25,000 30% 30%  Provision of cable and
Communication Co., Ltd. 18 October 2002 wireless communication
PBIDERBESRERRAR H services
2T E REBR R EREBARS
THATAR
Collins Aviation Maintenance PRC USD7,000 USD7,000 35% 35%  Provision of airline electronic
Service Shanghai Ltd. 27 September 2002 product maintenance
PRI ERBERAR  E services
2T E REMSEFEREERS
NA=t++H
Notes: =
(@)  In 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with United Technologies (8 RMIZZTENF  ARuHEERBEASEMERERA
International Corporation (“Technologies International”) to establish T BEEMER | )IREK T FEE BRI
Shanghai Pratt & Whitney Aircraft Engine Maintenance Company Limited HWEEERATI(ATHE £EEE])  HeLs
(“Shanghai P&W”). Shanghai P&W has a registered capital of USD40 FMEARECLEETT - ARRIFEZARS1 %MK
million in which the Company holds a 51% interests. According to the o RIBEATIER  BARMEERYE ST =/
shareholder’s agreement, Technologies International has the power to BMAERLEEAEFZS#E B AARE LS
govern the financial and operating policies and in this respect the Company EEEABENTIKE -
accounts for Shanghai P&W as an associate.
(o)  The Group’s aggregated share of the revenues, results, assets and liabilities (b) ANEEBEHEARNKA @ ¥E - EENAGBD
of its associates are as follows: T
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit
BE afE WA F5E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBFT ARBFIT ARBFIT
2011 —B——F 3,728,129 2,890,540 2,417,786 75,435
2010 —T-TF 3,443,043 2,635,374 1,638,597 39,228
PERFMERGERAR 2011 ER | HH
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24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24, #5&NEE AT
ENTITIES
Group Company
£8 AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-TF —E2——F T —TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARETR ARETT
Unlisted investments, at cost JE RIS BRI ANE 290,050 290,050 323,238 323,238
Share of results/reserves WOEE HE 133,206 116,120 - -
423,256 406,170 323,238 323,238

The movement on investments in jointly controlled entities is as follows: BEREERAIRZEEIAT

Group Company
£ AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F T -TF —E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT AR¥ T ARETT
At 1 January —RA—H&% 406,170 372,793 323,238 301,802
Additions through the acquisition of W EE _E (D

Shanghai Airlines bl - 19,184 - 21,436
Share of results BExE 31,437 28,154 - =
Dividend received during the year AU B B A% B (14,351) (13,961) - -
At 31 December +=—A=+—B#%&% 423,256 406,170 323,238 323,238
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24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24, #&R& %A A

ENTITIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities, all of which are AEENEZRERATHRTERLREBNFR
limited liability companies established and operating in the PRC, are as RERR - HABEROT
follows:
Place and date Attributable
Company of establishment Paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NCIEE R A H# EfEA 38 TEEK
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B—-f -ZT-2f C—B--f _"T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARETRT
Shanghai Technologies Aerospace  PRC USD73,000  USD73,000 51% 51%  Provision of repair and
Co., Ltd. (“Technologies 28 September 2004 maintenance services
Aerospace”) (Note (a)) H RERBIEE REERS
PEREFRERAR —TTNE
(IR T ) (FHE () AA=+NR
Shanghai Eastern Union Aviation PRC USD2,100 USD2,100 40% 40%  Provision of spare parts
Wheels & Brakes Maintenance 28 December 1995 repair and maintenance
Services Overhaul Engineering H services
Co., Ltd. (‘Wheels & Brakes’)  — L% REZHEERSE
LERBMELRAEAEIR +TZA=+/\H
ARAA ([ S8wAE])
Eastern China Kaiya System PRC RMB10,000 RMB10,000 4% 41%  Provision of computer
Integration Co., Ltd. 21 May 1999 systems development
PERMERINT RGEEMK H and maintainance
BRAT —NNE services
AA=+—H REEKASHEAN
#ERB
Notes: g
(@ Under a Joint Venture Agreement with the joint venture partner of (@ REAAREREFMIE—EEREIR=_TT=
Technologies Aerospace dated 10 March 2003, the Company has agreed FZATHESNHAKERHS  ~ARRREES
to share control over the economic activities of Technologies Aerospace. —EERB T HAZAREFMREEE N
Any strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activities of 1 o (R EBHFME B A B A B 75 R AS &R AR
Technologies Aerospace require the unanimous consent of the Company ERARNREBEFEMS —AERE RS 88
and the joint venture partner. RE °
()  The Group’s aggregated share of the revenues, results, assets and liabilities (b)) ZAEEBEGHSEQANKA X5 BEKAEN
of its jointly controlled entities is as follows: T
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit
BE afE ['ON FIiE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT AR¥EFT ARETFTT
2011 —E——F 524,573 101,317 287,822 31,437
2010 —T-TF 473,861 67,691 258,665 28,154
PERFMERGERAR 2011FE | H/
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25. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

25. At RHIEE

Group Company
&5 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E——F —IZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR%®FTx AR®ETT
Deposits relating to aircraft under S EREARRERY
operating leases (Note (a)) e (@) 749,580 610,866 262,420 233,703
Prepaid flight training fees A RITEIEETIE
(Note (b)) (FE%E()) 886,177 838,395 650,822 577,780
Other long-term assets B REIEE 204,077 302,854 67,192 103,316
1,929,834 1,752,115 980,434 914,799
Notes: FTEE

(a) The fair values of deposits relating to aircraft held under operating leases
of the Group and the Company are approximately RMB685 million and
RMB248 million (2010: RMB584 million and RMB222 million) respectively,
which are determined using the expected future refunds discounted at
market interest rates at the year end.

(b) Prepaid flight training expenses cover the Group’s pilot undergraduates and

pilots in service and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the beneficial
periods for which the prepayments cover.

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit terms given to trade customers are determined on an
individual basis, with the credit periods generally ranging from half a
month to two months.

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

20.

@ AKERARRELEEREREBBORS 2D
AEBESFAARE6.8ETIARK2.48(ET(=
T-TF  AR¥SBAETRARK222(87T) * &
R EERRBEE SN FORRERTSFN R
B EmE

() TFENRITEIZINEBRITELRIERERRITES

FIER - ZEBRMNFRERENZIRRARER

LGN

RTEENEERERRRERNBEREE @ BF
B EAEMEATE -

FEUBRFREVARER DAT AN T

Group Company
L | AFE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —Z-IZF -5 —Z-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR%¥®TR AREBTT
Within 90 days NTHR 2,096,474 2,058,666 2,184,795 2,439,624
91 to 180 days N+—HZ—8B/N\+H 71,437 27,094 37,882 11,397
181 to 365 days =PAN e =
—AA~TARA 35,246 39,882 30,749 17,377
Over 365 days BBE=a"1taA 212,828 233,202 103,237 196,788
2,415,985 2,358,844 2,356,663 2,665,186
Less: provision for impairment of B EURER IR
receivables RERE (218,492) (231,398 (100,062) (119,286)
Trade receivables FEUBR TR 2,197,493 2,127,446 2,256,601 2,545,900
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Balances with related companies included in trade receivables are
summarised in Note 45(c)(j).

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate their fair
value.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of independent sales agents for whom there is no recent
history of default.

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of RMB66 million (2010:
RMB91 million) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent sales agents for whom there is no recent history
of default. The Group holds cash deposits of RMB627 million (2010:
RMB500 million) from these agents. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

26. FEWERFR(4E)

il

JRE M5 B R B R Bk 07 AR B A BR R DE AR DI R IO B R
45(c)(i) »

FEUE R REEERCIE AR EE -

ARIBLER T R (B O FE A AR R T B 2 4 4 A AR R AT
BHRERFERH -

RZB——F+ZRA=+—H BREFRARE
0.66BIT(ZT—ZF : ARK0.9187T) B & m
B ERE - WERBEPRE RSB ERER
RSRVEV R c HZUBURF  AREREE
BR/RARKG2TRIT(ZZ 24 : ARMSET)
R o WERBERTAERER DT

Group Company
L | AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF —E——fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETTT AR¥F R ARETFT
Up to 6 months 7~ E A AR 41,190 50,799 27,809 12,810
6 to 12 months ANETZEA 25,336 39,882 30,749 17,377
66,526 90,681 58,558 30,187

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of RMB198 million (2010:
RMB213 million) were impaired and fully provided for. The remaining
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. The factors considered by management in determining the
impairment are described in Note 2(r).

The ageing of impaired receivables is as follows:

R=ZF——F+=ZA=+—8 BRERARE
198 (ZT—FF : ARM213ET) B AR
Il IEﬁkiﬁﬁ@%% %Tﬂ@%%%ﬁm
HRFELEEVHERENRS - MIBA RGO R
mT&W@ ERERERERENEERAER
Waa)

EFHERERENELSRREIRENT

Group Company
£H 27

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF —E——F —ZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETR ARETT
6 to 24 months overdue B EI6Z=241E A 21,685 13,689 7,142 13,623
Over 24 months overdue wHEA2AE A A £ 203,638 219,513 96,127 183,165
225,323 233,202 103,269 196,788
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 26. FEWER R (&)
Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables FEUWBRZCRERER T -
are as follows:
Group Company
&5 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E——fF —ET-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARKETTT AR¥F R ARETT
At 1 January —RA—B#&% 231,398 221,816 119,286 115,243
Additions through the acquisition W B
Shanghai airline Bt &R il - 9,687 = =
Receivables written off during the year 4E %1 & 7~ 8E Ut /Bl &)
as uncollectible FEUR SRAZ $H (13,970) (2,985) (12,992) -
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment ~ Z<4EEH2 /(828
of receivables TR B 1,064 2,880 (6,232) 4,043
At 31 December +TZRA=+—RH&% 218,492 231,398 100,062 119,286
The net impact of creation and release of provisions for impaired HEW R B ERN IR MR R E E2 BEE T
receivables have been included in ‘Provision for impairment of trade R EWERER R E At FEUR TR E 2 | N (B
and other receivables’ in the income statement (Note 11). Amounts 11) - EEBRPPHBROBHE—RSEFEHEE
charged to the allowance account are generally written off, when there is U Cl5EINR S B FZ 3 o
no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated NEE I BERH BRI EE SRR -
in the following currencies:
Group Company
£H AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF —E——fF —ZEFF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFIT AR¥F T ARETT
Currency i
Renminbi AR 1,584,763 1,655,344 1,836,308 2,187,115
Japanese Yen Hit 140,143 123,956 133,706 121,715
US Dollars Ei 131,720 91,908 22,192 16,344
Euro BT 121,646 83,081 45,174 50,461
HK Dollars Bk 121,089 73,621 121,089 70,724
Korea Won BRK 26,536 47,563 26,536 47,563
Other currencies Hih ks 71,596 51,978 71,596 51,978
2,197,493 2,127,446 2,256,601 2,545,900
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying EREAE  EERRNGRSRBRAE S iR
amount of receivable shown above. HHIFREE °
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. 3813k ~ e sk M H fth fE Uk

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
£8 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——fF —T-TF —E2——F —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT ARETR ARETT
Restricted bank deposits (Note (a)) R #IM R TE R (GEE (@) 278,230 1,486,362 249,386 1,466,463
Rebate receivables on aircraft B ATRM TS

acquisitions JE Lt B 412K 836,647 796,737 801,002 753,741
Receivables from aircraft manufacturer & U TR g pe R

for cancelled order (Note 21) RER(FIzE21) - 686,966 - =
Deposits with banks with original BA=EA

maturity over three months BALR—FH

but less than a year (Note (b)) TR (GER(D) 2,616,057 462,768 110,782 89,601
Prepaid aircraft operating lease rentals TE{I R LIHHER S 280,638 306,293 130,760 179,070
Rental deposits HET2 222,455 260,650 246,636 220,555
Amounts due from related companies  FEU A FAE A )

(Note 45()(i) 2018 (M 3E45(c)()) 249,865 152,731 2,326,225 2,386,120
Others Hith 1,437,599 1,188,492 612,042 568,492
Subtotal /et 5,921,491 5,340,999 4,476,833 5,664,042
Less: bad debt provision R R (309,776) (183,995) (262,995) (110,676)

5,611,715 5,157,004 4,213,838 5,553,366
Notes: TR
(a)  The restricted bank deposits primarily represent bank deposits of RMB236 (8 PREIERITEREZBEARERERNRITER

million (2010: RMB1,345 million) for secured borrowings. Such deposit bear
interest rate of 3% per annum (2010: 2.02% to 3.37%) with final maturities

through 1 March 2012 (Note 32).

As at 31 December 2011, the deposits are denominated in RMB and bore (b)
effective interest rates ranging from 0.5% to 5.3% per annum (2010: 0.36%

per annum).

AREE236ETL(ZE—ZF : ARK13.45187T) -
FREREIW(ZZE—ZTF : FHENR202%E
3.37%28))  tERE_T——F=F— B EH(H

F£32) °

RZT——F+=-A=+—H RHEZIAEARK
TR HFFERNR0E5%ESI%ZE(ZF—F
F  FF|FR0.36%) °
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

28. HE LIREFEY)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s cash and cash NEFRAATIREG RESEEYHEREREERE

equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

BRI

Group Company
&5 AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
—F——-F —T-THFE —BE-—-F —IT-ITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARKETTT AR¥F R ARETT
Renminbi AREE 3,249,932 2,642,109 326,408 511,808
US Dollars 7T 520,976 263,051 453,753 181,499
Euro BT 19,753 30,592 7,938 22,888
Japanese Yen Hit 5,425 12,705 1,021 7,445
Hong Kong Dollars bt 26,219 11,430 25,412 10,362
Others HibEHE 38,668 118,341 37,480 117,281
3,860,973 3,078,228 852,012 851,283

29. TRADE PAYABLES AND NOTES PAYABLE

The aging analysis of trade payables and notes payable is as follows:

29. RN BRI N BN &

FER BRSNS RN RB A ERE DATIAT

Group Company
£H AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E——fF T FF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTIT AR¥TR ARETET

Within 90 days N+BUR 1,761,478 2,477,327 2,400,602 3,522,807
91 to 180 days A+—BE—A/N\+H 217,331 1,190,393 620,039 868,816
181 to 365 days —BA+—HBE
= il =! 409,475 290,991 243,903 69,583
Over 365 days e =l ol =| 304,340 316,732 215,565 240,745
2,692,624 4,275,443 3,480,109 4,701,951
As at 31 December 2011, the trade payables and notes payable R-ZT—F+—_A=+—8  AEEMLARAE
balances of the Group and the Company included amounts due to NEEFR L FET EE e RE R FER BN RIRRE D B &
related companies of RMB1,216 million (2010: RMB478 million) and AR¥E1216BT(ZE—ZF : AR¥E4A78ETT)

RMB2,925 million (2010: RMB2,441 million) respectively (Note 45(c)(ii).

FMARKE2925BTT(ZE—FF : AR¥24.4118
7T) (P E45(c)(i))

As at 31 December 2011, notes payable amounted to RMB48 million AZE——F+ZA=1+—1H EREBREAA
(2010: RMB1,425 million), which were unsecured, bore effective interest R¥048(ETL(ZZE—ZFF : AR¥14.25(87L) -
rates ranging from 6% to 8% per annum (2010: 3.48% to 4.5%) and are MIER - FEFRAEUESN (T —TF : 3.48%F

repayable within six months.
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30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES  30. Hfth e 2= K FEIZ & F

31

Group Company
L | AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF —E-—F —ZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETT AR®TRT ARETT
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits  TBIE L& - ¥4 RiET] 2,657,376 2,857,725 1,590,845 2,435,460
Accrued take-off and landing charges  TE32 A HE[E B A 1,885,898 2,016,546 695,207 851,991
Accrued expenses related to aircraft IR E EAHY
overhaul conducted i PN CE 4 1,941,007 1,759,898 1,087,209 939,135
Accrued fuel cost BRI AR E A 2,223,904 1,550,561 1,326,225 959,558
Duties and levies payable AT R ENTE 1,750,389 1,375,205 1,030,312 818,774
Other accrued operating expenses TEREMEEER 1,571,843 1,650,795 1,030,312 1,115,279
Deposits received from ticket NEBIHERIE
sales agents IWERRIRT & 627,006 500,139 368,149 350,596
Current portion of other long-term HEtREEESN
liabilities (Note 34) B EB 7 (FiT=E34) 398,701 384,960 249,259 337,224
Staff housing allowance (Note 37(b)) B T (¥ 5= 8k (FH5E37(0)) 389,719 348,232 262,964 265,084
Current portion of post-retirement RINE BT AR
benefit obligations (Note 36(b)) mEED (FIFE36(b) ) 83,483 61,279 70,327 54,523
Amounts due to related companies e B RIEANR]
(Note 45(c)(ii)) K38 (P 5E45(c) (i) 96,590 83,641 1,101,154 757,173
Other payables Hit 2,641,371 1,947,187 1,849,414 1,557,583
16,267,287 14,536,168 10,661,377 10,442,380

As at 31 December 2011, the Group and the Company had 80 and
60 aircraft (2010: 71 and 58 aircraft) respectively under finance leases.

. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

31. MEMHEERE

Under the terms of the leases, the Group and the Company has the F:

option to purchase, at or near the end of the lease terms, certain aircraft
at either fair market value or a percentage of the respective lessors’
defined cost of the aircraft. The obligations under finance leases are

principally denominated in US Dollars.

7T128F05828 ) - RIEF & 5K

TR T e

RZZB——F+-R=+—H AEERAAFIN
BEME XD RIEARESORMEOR (—ZF—F

F REERAEAR

AEENEEMRAECOEWE - LTS ATEE
X FR A B A AT RE RO PR AN B H A LR o
BEHERBEBEURTREMHE
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31. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 31.

(continued)

The future minimum lease payments (including interest), and the present

N/

REME

B

mt

: (4

~

\r

Bt

il

s

’

REHRESEES (BEMNE) R&ERSHRED

value of the minimum lease payments under finance leases are as FIEE
follows:
Group
&8
2011 2010
—g—-F —E-EE
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum minimum Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments Interest payments payments Interest payments
EEHS RERE
EEES FE 2B REHE HME ZEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥TR ARBTRT ARBTr ARETT ARET:
Within one year —FR 2,790,844 331,585 2,459,259 2,476,451 338,620 2,137,831
In the second year FF 2,846,797 288,703 2,558,094 2,639,816 296,589 2,243,227
In the third to F=FEERE
fifth year inclusive (BEEEME) 7,836,047 600,836 7,235,211 7,498,600 609,882 6,888,718
After the fifth year AEE 8,448,826 440,568 8,008,258 8,359,802 421,245 7,938,557
Total et 21,922,514 1,661,692 20,260,822 20,374,669 1,666,336 19,208,333
Less: amount repayable within e —FR
one year BRIMH (2,790,844) (331,585)  (2,459,259)  (2,476,451) (338,620)  (2,137,831)
Long-term portion REEHH 19,131,670 1,330,107 17,801,563 18,398,218 1,327,716 17,070,502
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31. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 31. gi&HEAE(E)
(continued)
Company
DFE]
2011 2010
= “3-%F
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum minimum Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments Interest payments payments Interest payments
BEES RERE
BEES FE ZHfE REHE HME ZBME

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR AR®TR ARETT ARRTZ ARETE

Within one year —FR 2,278,734 267,746 2,010,988 2,084,166 287,427 1,796,739
In the second year EF 2,298,934 226,849 2,072,085 2,137,331 252,061 1,885,270
In the third to F=FEZFRE

fifth year inclusive (BREEEMT) 6,190,003 471,306 5,718,697 6,251,938 521,000 5,730,938
After the fifth year RFIAE 6,690,780 358,378 6,332,402 6,854,100 389,175 6,464,925
Total k| 17,458,451 1,324,279 16,134,172 17,327,535 1,449,663 15,877,872
Less: amount repayable within W —ER

one year {BBHH (2278734)  (267,746)  (2,010,988)  (2,084,166)  (287,427)  (1,796,739)

Long-term portion REED 15,179,717 1,056,533 14,123,184 15,243,369 1,162,236 14,081,133
The fair value of obligations under finance leases of the Group and AEBERAARBRERNEGE 2 ARESIAAR
the Company are RMB20,866 million and RMB16,599 million (2010: #208.6618 T K ARE165.99B T(Z T —FF :
RMB19,529 million and RMB16,228 million) respectively, which are ARM19529(8 T R AR162.28187T) - HA R
determined using the expected future payments discounted at market ERBEERS N RIEIRFEARTSH R R E
interest rates prevailing at the year end. 5o
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32. BORROWINGS

Group Company
£ A
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF S —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARKETTT AR¥F R ARETT
Non-current FEMENEH D
Long-term bank borrowings REAIRITIER
— secured (Note (a)) — B EIF (@) 11,988,500 18,107,405 6,439,802 8,983,065
— unsecured (Note (b)) — &I (GEE (D)) 9,114,963 10,247,592 8,745,066 9,258,475
Guaranteed bonds (Note (c)) BERESGEE@Q) 2,500,000 = = =
23,603,463 23,354,997 15,184,868 18,241,540
Current VoY)
Long-term bank borrowings REAIRTTIER
— secured —FiER 1,973,744 2,011,861 983,602 1,274,011
— unsecured — &K 4,743,506 2,005,721 4,081,231 1,830,273
Short-term bank borrowings RRHASRITIER
— secured —HiEH 221,948 1,324,540 221,948 1,324,540
— unsecured — IR 11,231,932 9,868,538 9,543,699 7,918,751
18,171,130 15,210,660 14,830,480 12,347,575
Total borrowings {3 41,774,593 38,565,657 30,015,348 30,589,115
The borrowings are repayable RITIEFRIER
as follows: THIEAREAERER
Within one year —FR 18,171,130 15,210,660 14,830,480 12,347,575
In the second year FE_F 8,407,984 6,161,606 7,335,988 4,739,334
In the third to E-FEZERF
fifth year inclusive (RIEERME) 9,391,440 10,672,434 4,484,140 8,682,965
After the fifth year AFLAE 5,804,039 6,520,957 3,364,740 4,819,241
Total borrowings R L 41,774,593 38,565,657 30,015,348 30,589,115
Notes: e

(@)
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As at 31 December 2011, the secured bank borrowings of the Group and
the Company were pledged by the related aircrafts and buildings with an
aggregate net book amount of RMB18,317 million and RMB10,005 million
respectively (2010: RMB20,800 million and RMB14,846 million) (Note 19).

Certain unsecured bank borrowings of the Group and the Company totaling
of RMB228 million and RMB85 million respectively (2010: RMB575 million
and RMB85 million) were guaranteed by CEA Holding (Note 45(c)).

On 1 August 2011, Eastern Air Overseas (Hong Kong) Corporation Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, issued three-year guaranteed
bonds with a principal amount of RMB2.5 billion, at an issue price equal to
the face value of the bonds. The bonds bear interest at the rate of 4% per
annum and payable semi-annually. The bonds are redeemable at 100% of
the principal amount and mature on 8 August 2014.

The Company has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due
payment and performance of the above bonds.

@)

R=F—F+=_A=+—8 xEERERQRH
ARG RAE TR RIEFIEEFY - HEEEEE
ARIRBARKE183ATIEITRARK100.05FBT(=ZF
—ZF : AR¥E208.0018 T kAR 148.46187T)
(ff3E19) ©

REBRARRIDIFEBRITERT ARE2.28
BLTRARKOSET(ZE—F4F : ARMKS75
87T %0.85187C) B B R Ak B #E (R (B 5%
45(c)) °

RZZE——FN\A—H ARAIZZEMBARR
gINER) BR A RIZREEE T ARK5ET
HISFHIBRERES - FHMERRI%  BFENE—
R WEFEEIHE T -—mFENAANBKRRE
EREE -

AR B BUEF R G RN AR ER
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32. BORROWINGS (continued)

The terms of the long-term borrowings are summarised as follows:

FRHSRITHESRAO BFERAE LT

Group Company
| AF
Interest rate and
Currency final maturities 2011 2010 2011 2010
¥iE BERAEREHA —E——-F —"ZT-IZF —B——-F —Z-ITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETFT AR¥TR ARETT
RMB denominated Interest rates ranging from 3.51%
AREE t0 6.4% per annum with final
maturities through to 2024.
FFIENRB.51%ZE6.4%TE -
BRE2024F 1% EI| Hf 11,344,130 10,550,536 7,378,300 8,897,248
U.S. dollar denominated Interest rates ranging from 3 month
7T LIBOR+0.25% to 6 month
LIBOR +3.5% per annumwith
final maturities through to 2022.
F RS H3E ALIBOR +0.25% %=
61E HLIBOR +3.5% 1% -
BRE2022F £ 1% EI| 18,976,583 16,822,043 12,871,401 12,448,576
Total long-term bank
borrowings
REE AT 30,320,713 27,372,579 20,249,701 21,345,824
(@) The fair value of long-term borrowing of the Group and the @ AEBERARRNRBERZAAEBEDS

Company are RMB30,363 million and RMB20,706 million
respectively (2010: RMB27,759 million and RMB21,768 million),
which are determined using the expected future payments
discounted at prevailing market interest rates available to the
Group and the Company for financial instruments with substantially

the same terms and characteristics at the balance sheet date.

(o) Short-term borrowings of the Group and the Company are (b)
repayable within one year. As at 31 December 2011, the interest
rates relating to such borrowings were ranged from 1.30% to
6.31% per annum (2010: 1.26% to 5.31% per annum).

A AR ®303.6318 T kAR 207.0618 7T
(ZZ2—ZF : A\RE2T7TSOBETLREARK
217.68(87T) * HAAREBETIBBREHS AR
B UEREEBBRAAREENARRFR
EESNERGRLEESR T AEEMEF
ERITRE -

RNEBKARRRERERE B —FEARE
BHER RZE—F+-_A=+—H"
RHERNFENENN1.30%E6.31%(=F
—Z4F 1 1.26%%E5.31%) °

PERGMERGERAR

2011E% 10/



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

32. BORROWINGS (continued) 32. B (&)

() The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the € EBRHEEESEATIEESEN
following currencies:

Group Company
L | AF

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E——fF —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREBTT AR%®TR ARBTT
Renminbi AREE 16,779,919 16,493,536 11,428,300 12,927,248
US Dollars 7T 24,994,674 22,072,121 18,587,048 17,661,867

41,774,593 38,665,657 30,015,348 30,589,115

33. PROVISION FOR RETURN CONDITION 33. & HERMERRIEER
CHECKS FOR AIRCRAFT UNDER OPERATING

LEASES
Group Company
55 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g——% -T-TF =-B--% ~T-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE AREBTT AR¥®TR ARETT
At 1 January —A—B#&% 2,814,503 1,847,755 1,517,071 1,282,402
Additions through the acquisition of U BE F AR (D 12 h0
Shanghai Airlines - 685,934 - =
Additional provisions REEHR 801,309 586,364 262,569 247,424
Utilisation rEELA (316,686) (305,550) (58,545) (12,755)
At 31 December +=ZA=+—B#&&% 3,299,126 2,814,503 1,721,095 1,517,071
Less: current portion B mENEL D (375,409) (339,091) (174,151) (46,695)
Long-term portion RHIEB (D 2,923,717 2,475,412 1,546,944 1,470,376
Provision of operating lease aircraft return condition check represents IRETHEREER RS EEAKRS EHERMENTE
the present value of estimated costs of major return check for aircraft HEFAREERANRE YR ERE - KXEFEE
under operating leases as the Group has obligation to fulfill certain return EEMEEERERTEOEIEME -

conditions under relevant leases.
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34. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

34. Bt RE EE

Group Company
&5 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—$——% -T-TF =5 =T IF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETT AR®TRT ARETT
Long-term duties and levies payable = AR BEH: & H 18 908,406 821,950 674,238 624,836
Fair value of unredeemed points BT S
awarded under the Group’s AR A IR ERENTE S
frequent flyer program NREE 1,424,709 1,254,752 815,183 1,119,159
Other long-term payables E bR EAFERR 112,685 113,120 91,649 91,484
2,445,800 2,189,822 1,581,070 1,835,479
Less: current portion included in other 3 : 5+ A H A R FAAITELR
payables and accrued expenses Z AR BB (398,701) (384,960) (249,259) (337,224)
Long-term portion KHIEMS 2,047,099 1,804,862 1,331,811 1,498,255

35. DEFERRED TAXATION

35. IEEFHIE

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right of offsetting and when the deferred income

BARZATHEMNASHIBEE  BSRR-EEH#
B AR RSRER IR E ELREH A A EE R

taxes relate to the same authority. The following amounts, determined

after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheets:

o R BTIISEEEERERAIIR

Group Company
&5 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-TF —E——fF —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT ARET T ARETT
Deferred tax assets EEFBEE
— Deferred tax asset to be utilised —12{8 A LA_E R EIRAYIE
after 12 months EFRIBE E 41,687 73,675 = -
— Deferred tax asset to be utilised —12{8 ALAAR R BEIRAVIE
within 12 months EFRIBE E 2,731 1,618 = -
44,418 75,188 - -
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBAG
— Deferred tax liability to be realised —12{E A A LRI ERAVIE
after 12 months EFRIBAG (29,326) (61,814) = -
Net deferred tax assets REFIB A = F 58 15,092 23,374 = -
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 35. EAETIE (&)
Movements in the net deferred tax assets are as follows: REFIEFEERZ ST
Group Company
&5 |
2011 2010 2011 2010
—F——-F —T-THE —BE--—-F —IT-ITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARKETTT AR¥F T ARETT
At 1 January —RA—B&% 23,374 32,209 - -
Additions through the acquisition of U B& A A& 3 a0

Shanghai Airlines - (653) - =
Charged to income statement FTAFER (H7E14)

(Note 14) (8,282) (8,182) - —
At 31 December +=-—A=+—H#&s% 15,092 23,374 - -
The deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsetting of balances BIERIEEERBEBER —BEME TIEBRT
within the same tax jurisdiction) were made up of the taxation effects of BRE AT IR S R 2248 RK
the following:

Group Company
55 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF —E——fF —ZEFF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFIT AR¥F T ARETT
Deferred tax assets: BEEFRIEAE ¢
Impairment provision for obsolete FRAKER
flight equipment spare parts THERELEE 70,071 83,365 64,951 79,272
Impairment provision for FEUWGROR B
receivables 34,745 69,063 31,537 53,945
Impairment provision for property, ME - e
plant and equipment R AE B 78,286 128,226 74,187 125,573
Provision for return condition checks A% & 7H & A
for aircraft under operating leases RIARIEER - 93,740 - 92,101

Provision for frequent flyer programs — ® ik & 22BN T2 - 44,001 - 39,355

Derivative financial liabilities RHMERBE 29,201 29,526 29,201 29,526

Provision for post-retirement benefits  iR/R1% 18 F2EHS 230,361 245,026 198,370 220,475

442,664 692,947 398,246 640,247

Deferred tax liabilities: RERIEAE :
Depreciation and amortisation e RN (426,481) (652,521) (397,155) (623,195)
Derivative financial assets RoEEMEE (1,091) (17,052) (1,091) (17,052)
(427,572) (669,573) (398,246) (640,247)
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 35. IELEFRIA(4E)

Movements of the net deferred tax assets of the Group for the year: BRI FEENEEOT ¢

(Charged)/
At the credited to
beginning income At the end
of the year statement of the year
FE&
FHEREE (1518) &8 FRERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥TT AR¥TR
For the year ended 31 December 2011 —ZF——F &
Impairment provision for obsolete AR BT
flight equipment spare parts PR EE M 83,365 (13,294) 70,071
Impairment provision for receivables FEM R B B s 69,063 (34,318) 34,745
Impairment provision for property, M - e Rk
plant and equipment DENIER 128,226 (49,940) 78,286
Provision for return conditionchecks for 4% %0 & et
aircraft under operating leases RFABIEERE 93,740 (93,740) -
Provision for frequent flyer programs IR SEE R T B 44,001 (44,001) =
Derivative financial liabilities RGMEEHEE 29,526 (325) 29,201
Provision for post-retirement benefits RIKBEFER 245,026 (14,665) 230,361
692,947 (250,283) 442,664
Depreciation and amortisation HrEs RSy (652,521) 226,040 (426,481)
Derivative financial assets R4S EE (17,052) 15,961 (1,091)
(669,573) 242,001 (427,572)
Net deferred tax assets IR IR A E R 23,374 (8,282) 15,092
PERFMERGERAR 2011 E% | /]
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 35. EAETIE (&)
Additions
through the (Charged)/

At the acquisition credited At the
beginning of of Shanghai to income end of
the year Airlines statement the year

WebE Ff INEES
FHERTE fRA1E  (1518),/ E1A FRERATE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARKETT ARETT ARETE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 —Z—ZF[E
Impairment provision for obsolete flight FH# =& 5 Z {4 &

equipment spare parts [REE 78,634 - 4,731 83,365
Impairment provision for receivables  FEUR R BB & 68,553 510 - 69,063
Impairment provision for property, plant 4% - #23 K& &4

and equipment B 170,808 - (42,582) 128,226
Provision for return condition checks for 4% & & AR 8

aircraft under operating leases RIEERE 152,231 - (58,491) 93,740
Provision for frequent flyer program IR R S 13,619 - 30,382 44,001
Derivative financial liabilities RE5ESHEE 132,732 - (103,206) 29,526
Provision for post-retirement benefits iRk 1% 1@ 7 4 271,672 - (26,646) 245,026

888,249 510 (195,812) 692,947
Depreciation and amortisation PrE R (855,272) - 202,751 (652,521)
Derivative financial assets RE5ESREE (768) (1,163) (15,121) (17,052)
(856,040) (1,163) 187,630 (669,573)
Net deferred tax assets EEFIB A R 5 32,209 (653) (8,182) 23,374
As at the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had following REEBERB @ AEERAR AR ARERIELTR
balances in respect of which no deferred tax asset has been recognised: HEEMBA@SRRENIRAT
Group
L |
2011 2010
—B——F T T
Deferred Temporary Deferred Temporary
taxation differences taxation differences
EERIE TRMER RERTE  ERUEER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥T ARETT ARETT
Tax losses carried forward AR RS SR 2,428,143 9,712,570 3,824,859 15,299,437
Other deductible temporary H A AT 30

differences TR ER 971,951 3,887,804 741,766 2,967,064
Total unrecognised deferred RIERIELE

tax assets MIEEESST 3,400,094 13,600,374 4,566,625 18,266,501
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

306.

35. IEAEFAIA (48 )

Bt

m|

Company
AE]
2011 2010
—B——F —ETF

Deferred Temporary Deferred Temporary

taxation differences taxation differences

ELERIR TRMER RAERIR TR ER

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥T T ARBTT ARETT

Tax losses carried forward AT AR S 18 1,544,268 6,177,072 2,739,512 10,958,048
Other deductible temporary Efb T30

differences TREER 737,072 2,948,288 510,721 2,042,884
Total unrecognised deferred RUEZIRIE

tax assets MIBEEA:T 2,281,340 9,125,360 3,250,233 13,000,932

In accordance with the PRC tax law, tax losses can be carried forward,
for a period of five years, to offset against future taxable income. The
Group and the Company’s tax losses carried forward will expire between
2012 and 2016.

As at 31 December 2011, management carried out an assessment
to determine whether future taxable profits will be available to utilise
the tax losses and deductible temporary differences. As there are still
uncertainties around the Group’s future operation results, such as future
fuel prices and market demand, management determined that it is not
probable that future taxable profits will be available and the deferred tax
assets arisen from aforementioned tax losses and deductible temporary
difference were not recognised.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a) Defined contribution retirement schemes
()  Pension

The Group companies participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by municipal governments of
various provinces in which the Group companies operate.
Substantially all of the Group’s PRC employees are eligible to
participate in the Group companies’ retirement schemes. The
Group companies are required to make annual contributions
to the schemes at rates ranging from 20% to 22% on the
employees’ salary and allowances subject to certain ceiling
as set up by the relevant municipal governments. Employees
are required to contribute to the schemes at rates ranging
from 7% to 8% of their salaries. For the year ended 31
December 2011, the Group’s pension cost charged to the
consolidated income statement amounted to RMB768 million
(2010: RMB715 million).

306.

RIBPBIBE - HRISETIE R 0 T A S AR R FERR
BIRA o REBEARANBRBEEREN T —=
FE-TRNFHEH -

R-ZB——%+-A=+—0 EBREBHRRIESE
A E AR FE BRI AR A _E it AT AT R 1 2 R e B
TSERETT T ATl - AR AEERREEEREM
HERETEERETEEEREZNTE  TEE
R LAt AT R 2 R R S R IR A AL B AT
AT R AT RE 1B )N - BURTERR S B HOIR FE P 1S
BEEE °

BIREETE KB BIRIRRAER

]

(a) TEEMEBAREEE
O EEz

REEEHE S SR 2 EE A TR
EENTHERINEZRTE - AEE
AEZHFEREEFLELEARTENEE
SEEIZ G - AEBETIRE S ROREE
SF20% £ 22% 3 M REE - W IAMEE
MBNSRE &= AR o &8 RlEHE
EREESH7T%ESHRIMLR - HE=
T——F+-_A=+—HALFE K&
BEZE TEFFASHFIERNEE
SEHAREBRAEARE7SEIL(ZZT—
TF . ARE7A5ETT) ©
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(C)

Defined contribution retirement schemes (continued)

(i)

Medical insurance

Majority of the Group’s PRC employees participate in
the medical insurance schemes organised by municipal
governments, under which the Group companies and
their employees are required to contribute to the schemes
approximately 12% and 2%, respectively, of the employee’s
basic salaries subject to certain ceiling as set up by the
relevant municipal governments. For those employees
who participate in these schemes, the Group has no other
obligation for the payment of medical expense beyond the
annual contributions. For the year ended 31 December
2011, the Group’s medical insurance contributions charged
to the consolidated income statement amounted to RMB374
million (2010: RMB281 million).

6. k&

(%

(a)

(b) Post-retirement benefits

(b)

In addition to the above defined contribution retirement schemes,
the Group provides retirees with other post-retirement benefits
including transportation subsidies, social function activities
subsidies and other welfares. The expected cost of providing these
post-retirement benefits is actuarially determined and recognised
by using the projected unit credit method, which involves a number
of assumptions and estimates, including inflation rate, discount

rate and employees’ turnover ratio.

:-:
(=]
=

)

At 8l N e 8RR 1R By & 7

ERMFRAEEE ()

(i)

EL P (0 e
N

AEBABHHEEE 2T BT
Zﬂi%eaﬁ%ﬂ%’*%il rEBEKES
AN RIRBETRFREEAH LN
12% K 2% [AaHSI4E 58 - W AT IR
IR EREREAR o BRILHERIN - &
EEU2 N ENES T EH MR
REF BE-T——F+=—A=1+—
ALEFE @ AEEREHFIBERFB IR

BERBRAAREITIET(ZE—
TE : AR®281187T) ©

BAEHEF

B bz etEs

B1&H
flb g o

fﬁi&ﬁ%ﬁm%iﬁ ©

AEEEHRKE
BIEZRRE  HRRERMUAKE

RIRIRAR NI P EE A Y %ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ*ﬁg
FRRGF B2 % BEMAER
BRRERGFREE

» WA

*“EP’??%@HEZ‘: #

The post-retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance EEEBERTERNERRERENE
sheets are as follows: B
Group Company
&M AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —"T-ZF —B——-F5 —"=-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFT AR¥T T ARETT
Present value of funded post- HRECHIEBRIKER
retirement benefit obligations B REHENIRE 350,210 440,042 - -
Fair value of plan assets AIEEENAREER (92,450) (95,085) - -
Present value of unfunded post- HRESWIEBRINE
retirement benefit obligations BRI EREENIRE 5,826,053 4,737,736 5,032,085 4,155,547
Unrecognised actuarial losses ERIEREIEREEN (3,140,385) (2,465,413) (2,770,036) (2,209,541)
Post-retirement benefit obligations & BiE{K1&
anE RERs 2,943,428 2,617,280 2,262,049 1,946,006
Less: current portion (Note 30) W mENER D (MiEES0) (83,483) (61,279) (70,327) (54,523)
Long-term portion REAER D 2,859,945 2,556,001 2,191,722 1,891,483
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST- 36. E{hk&:tE RIEEEKRELET

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) (#8)
(b) Post-retirement benefits (continued) (b) EAKEHER(F)
Changes in post-retirement benefit obligations are as follows: RINERN B BERENESNT
Group Company
£ AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —T-TF —E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT AR®F T AREBFT
At 1 January —A—B#%& 2,617,284 1,849,933 1,946,006 1,644,742
Additions through the acquisition of H&zﬁﬁtﬁnﬁﬁf\iﬁj}u
Shanghai Airlines - 419,414 - =
Costs charged in the income FTAFIEERNEEER
statement 478,502 479,514 438,829 399,177
Payments A (152,358) (131,581) (122,786) (97,913)
At 31 December +—A=+—H#&&#% 2,943,428 2,617,280 2,262,049 1,946,006
The costs of post-retirement benefits are recognised under wages, BIKEREFEBABIALE  Fe kEH &
salaries and benefits in the income statements as follows: e - WERANEEFERD K :
Group Company
£ AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —ET—TF —E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETFT AR¥TR ARETT
Current service cost B HREE R 170,493 172,889 170,444 138,270
Interest cost Fali=R=Jz: 224,064 211,412 182,737 169,884
Actuarial losses recognised RHFEEIRL 90,643 101,256 85,648 91,023
Estimated return on planned asset ~ =t& & ETEHEIHR (6,698) (6,043) - -
Total (Note 9) #FE (H1319) 478,502 479,514 438,829 399,177
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(b)

Post-retirement benefits (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as

(o

2| M 18 B R IKT

\

(b) EAREEF(E)

REEBERBFEREMER

ELok=p

RIAT

follows:

Group and Company

SERAF

2011 2010

—E——fF —T—TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETT

Discount rate e R 4.20%-4.25% 4.25%
Annual rate of increase of per capita < fHE B @RI

benefit payment FEERR 3%-5% 3%-5%

Employee turnover rate BEmKR 3%-3.25% 3%-3.25%

Mortality rate A mp:S 9.83% 9.83%

Medical inflation rate BEER=x 5.00% 5.00%

37. STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS

(a)

,] 7 6 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

Staff housing fund

In accordance with the PRC housing reform regulations, the Group
is required to contribute to the State-sponsored housing fund for
its employees at rates ranging from 7% to 15% (2010: 7% to 15%)
of the specified salary amounts of its PRC employees. At the same
time, the employees are required to contribute an amount equal
to the Group’s contribution. The employees are entitled to claim
the entire sum of the fund contributed under certain specified
withdrawal circumstances. For the year ended 31 December
2011, the Group’s contributions to the housing funds amounted to
RMB545 million (2010: RMB422 million) (Note 9) which has been
charged to the consolidated income statement. The staff housing
fund payable as at 31 December 2011 is RMB28 million (2010:
RMB45 million). The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

37. B I{EF#Ah

(@)

ETFEES

BEFEEFSEER  ~A5EFEENETS
EHT%E15% (=T —FF : 7%=15%) i
FEERZHNEREEST - AR - BTN
AREEESH  BAQAEHSENER -
EETREBHFEIAERERZEMER - N
HE-_T——F+_-_A=+—HLFER
AEEGFAEHFBRNBIEEESHH
FTEIARESABIL(ZE—FF : ARK
4.221870) (MizF9) - BEZZE——F+_H
=+—HB AEEEMBICEESERER
BAARKOBEIL(ZE—TF : ARK
0.45(870) - EESMEET RN FEER
AR5 B HA R BT EA I 2 B - AN SR B AR
BUSHEENETEFTR
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37. STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS (continued)

(b)

Staff housing allowances

The Group also provides staff housing allowances in cash to
eligible employees. The total entitlement of an eligible employee
is principally vested over a period of 20 years. Upon an eligible
employee’s resignation or retirement, his or her entitlement
would cease and any unpaid entitlement related to past service
up to the date of resignation or retirement would be paid. As at
31 December 2011, the present obligation of the provision for
employee’s staff housing allowances is RMB390 million (2010:
RMB348 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the staff housing benefit
amounted to RMB171 million (2010: RMB114 million) (Note 9)
which has been charged to the consolidated income statement.

38. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

37. BT EFEMBL(E)

(b)

ETEEMHE

AEERKUARESHRNAFEERNE TR
HETEEMHM - SR LLAE=TF
ENAERE TRBSGRRE - HEAKE
IEETE - EAAEFE A B AR AL &
EHBBIBRREIN BHEZT——F
+-A=+—HB BEIEEMMEANHRE
BAREIOET(ZZ—ZTF : ARK3.48
f87T) °

BE-_ZT——F+=-A=+—HILFE ' 5
ARBITIEBIT(ZE—ZF : ARK1.1418
L) B TEEHER A HFFIEERF ) = (M
9) °

38. TRITAETR

Group and Company

£EERAT
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB——F —E-TF —E——F —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT AR¥TF R ARETF T
At 31 December +-—A=+—HB#%&%
Interest rate swaps (Note (a)) FIEEIREH (@) 4,279 52,081 267,909 191,247
Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ 4NE 1= Hj
(Note (b)) a#(FEED) 86 - 65,075 76,548
Crude oil option contracts (Note (c)) R RS 4 (FERE(0) - 18,970 - 48,612
Total S 4,365 71,051 332,984 316,407
Less: current portion B RENED
— Interest rate swaps —FEEBREHL - - (51,063) (62,891)
— Forward foreign exchange —INERHIG 4
contracts - - - (10,479)
— Crude oil option contracts —FRHEESYD - (18,970) - (48,612)
- (18,970) (51,063) (121,982)
Non-current portion FERENEL D 4,365 52,081 281,921 194,425

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of the derivative assets in the balance sheet.

ERERH  FERARNGERREARAEREERR
RATEBENAAEE -
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38. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to reduce the risk of changes in market
interest rates (Note 3(a)(ii)). The interest rate swaps entered into by the
Group for swapping variable rates, usually referenced to LIBOR, into fixed
rates are accounted for as cash flow hedges. Other interest rate swaps
are accounted for as fair value hedges. As at 31 December 2011, the
notional amount of the outstanding interest rate swap agreements was
approximately US$695 million (2010: US$668 million). These agreements
will expire between 2013 and 2021.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from the valuation of
these interest rate swaps have been dealt with in the income statements as
follows:

38.

SRITETAE)

FEEBREHN

REE BB X ERRE TSRS B ER (FiRE
3 (a) (i) ~ ALEZET RO AR B RS 4975 21 IBORH
M Z B R F R REENENFIREREL B
RESREEH  REANARANEED - R
T——F+ZA=+—H AEEDHERARRS
MFREME NN AR S HOR6.95EET(ZF—
ZTF  6.68(EXT) KRB =FE_F——
EFEﬁ@J/Hﬂ °

AEZDEARARERMNEERENERXERE
K2R EEZEIRRFIBROT :

(b)

Group
&8

2011 2010

—E——f —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREFIT

Realised losses (recorded in finance costs) BEERBRGIARKER) (118,016) (105,043)

Unrealised mark to market gains/(losses) REBUE(HBK)

- cash flow hedges (recognised in equity) —BHERERGIABERRTE) (133,526) 8,103
— fair value hedges (recognised in gain on fair value —ARBEEHGIATESRTIA

movements of derivatives financial instruments) AR EEESHER) 9,062 7,602

(242,480) (89,338)

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce the risk of
changes in currency exchange rates in respect of ticket sales and expenses
denominated in foreign currencies (Note 3(a)(i)). The Group’s forward foreign
exchange contracts for selling Japanese Yen and purchasing U.S. dollars at
fixed exchange rates are accounted for as cash flow hedges. Other forward
foreign exchange contracts are accounted for as fair value hedges. As at 31
December 2011, the notional amount of the outstanding currency forward
contracts was approximately US$46 million (2010: US$48 million), which will
expire between 2012 and 2017.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from the valuation of these
contracts have been dealt with in the income statements as follows:

(b)

SHEEREH

AEBEBIBINER G KRR TZHEINEA
K2 75 LASNEE S A+ 9 B PR 4R 2 A0 BB SR % B LR (B =
3(@) () - AEEFTHUETERBEERATREA
ETHINERELN BRESTEED - Hibsh
EBRBENARAANEESR -R=F—F+=A
=+—B  AEEZFAENARSOINEEHE LB
ZERESTENR0IEET(ZT—ZTF : 0488F
L) SR =T ——FE T+ FHIH -

FEEEERRAERIERPENER T B
RASBEZHIIRNFERNAT :

Group
&8
2011 2010
s —z-zf
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Realised losses (recorded in finance income) EERBLRGIAMEER) (10,406) (42,233)
Unrealised mark to market gains/(losses) REBWE(BR)
- cash flow hedges (recognised in equity) —HEREHGIABRATE) 1,080 (25,119)
— fair value hedges (recognised in gain on fair value —AREBEEHGIATESRTA
movements of derivatives financial instruments)) NRBEEEHER) 10,479 25,587
1,153 (41,765)
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38. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Crude oil option contracts

In previous years, The Group entered into crude oil hedging contracts. The
crude oil hedging contracts used by the Group are normally structured to
include a combination of both put and call options which allow the Group to
lock in fuel prices for specified volumes within a price range. In each hedging
contract, the call options price at which the Group is effectively entitled
to buy fuel will be higher than that at which the counterparty is effectively
entitled to sell. In 2011, the Group did not enter into any new crude oil
option contracts, and all the contracts signed in past years were settled
before 31 December 2011.

None of the crude oil hedging contracts the Group entered into is qualified
for hedge accounting. The Group is required to account for the fair value of
the difference between the spot price of crude oil and the price at which the
counterparties are effectively entitled to sell in future periods as unrealised
mark to market gains/losses and recognised these gains/losses in the
income statements immediately.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from the valuation of these
contracts have been dealt with in the income statements.

38.

SRITETAE)

itaE - ()

(c)

FhiES L

RAGEFER  ARERR] TETRHHESH - A
SEEITNREBESONEIRABRERTER
MR ARG XE—ERE LBATEENAL
BREETE—EER - &80 RHHES T -
AEEERRAETEREBAMBANERSNRZ S
HFEAENLENER  -R=_T——FF  A&E
ARBFOERES L - BUEFERENFH
PREAHER _T——F+-—A=+—Ra2H3

AEBFRFORAHAES N TTRERS K
o REBFRREERERSHEFRARRBEL
EEZMAREENERERAERMEKS 18
RERFTAFIEE -

ZEANBEEENEERNAERMBEMBRL
FEARER

Group
&8

2011 2010
—B——f —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBFIT
Realised losses BEREX (37,668) (82,420)
Unrealised mark to market gains REHYZS 104,978 882,615
67,310 800,195
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

39. &Rt T B (3558 5R)

(@) Group (a) %=E
Assets at
fair value Derivatives
Loans and through the used for Available
receivables profit and loss hedging -for-sale Total
NAAREE
iEE
EBHK HEFHHA BEESH THEE
FEWRIE BRNEE fTETR SREE @
Assets as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EERERANEE ARBTR ARETR AR®TR ARBTR AR%T R
Balance 31 December 2011 —E—%+-fA=1—-H
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESFIERE - - - 240,380 240,380
Derivative financial instruments FTETR - - 4,365 - 4,365
Trade receivables G 2,197,493 - - - 2,197,493
Prepayments, deposits and B FRRREFASN
other receivables excluding O E R
prepayments 4,638,264 - - - 4,638,264
Cash and cash equivalents HERHLEEY 3,860,973 - - - 3,860,973
Total o 10,696,730 - 4,365 240,380 10,941,475
Liabilities at Other
fair value Derivatives financial
Loans and through the used for liabilities at
receivables profit and loss hedging amortised cost Total
NAREE
&R D 1]
ERR HEHHA BEESH AT ER
EWE BREHAE fTETRE Hitemas ok
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEAERANEE ARET R AR¥TR AR¥ETR ARETF R AR¥TR
Balance 31 December 2011 —E——5+-A=1-H
Borrowings &3 41,774,593 - - - 41,774,593
Obligations under finance leases ~ REMEE(E 20,260,822 - - - 20,260,822
Derivative financial instruments ETAR - - 332,984 - 332,984
Trade payables and notes payable FERBEZ R ERZiE 2,692,624 - - - 2,692,624
Other payables and accrued HiENTRIERER
expenses 16,267,287 - - - 16,267,287
Total ot 80,995,326 - 332,984 - 81,328,310
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. £ &t T B (IR (48)
(continued)

(C)

Group (continued) (@) &£E(E)
Assets at
fair value Derivatives
Loans and through the used for Avallable
receivables  profit and loss hedging -for-sale Total
YNNI
2R
BRk HEFEHA F{EERM A E
FENIR BamEE FTETA SREE it
Assets as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEBERBNAE ARETFT ARETTT ARETFT AREFT ARETTT
Balance 31 December 2010 —E-TF+-_A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets [ HESREE - - - 242,005 242,005
Derivative financial instruments ETR - - 71,051 - 71,051
Trade receivables FEUER TR 2,127,446 - - - 2,127,446
Prepayments, deposits and BER - ERRBREAR
other receivables excluding AN L A FE ISR
prepayments 4,442,730 - - - 4,442,730
Cash and cash equivalents e RBSZEY 3,078,228 - - - 3,078,228
Total et 9,648,404 = 71,051 242,005 9,961,460
Liabilities at Other
fair value Derivatives financial
Loans and through the used for liabilities at
receivables  profit and loss hedging  amortised cost Total
AR ERE
2R DABEER
fERR HEHA RIEESM AT 26
FENIR il 0 =N fTETE HtiemaR @t
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BEBERANER ARETFT ARETT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
Balance 31 December 2010 “T-TF+-A=+—A
Borrowings E& 38,565,657 - - - 38,565,657
Obligations under finance leases ~ EEFEARE 19,208,333 - - - 19,208,333
Derivative financial instruments FTETH - - 316,407 - 316,407
Trade payables and notes payable  FEF BRI M Z1E 4,275,443 - - - 4,275,443
Other payables and accrued HinENHRERER
expenses 14,536,168 - - - 14,536,168
Total FeEs 76,585,601 - 316,407 - 76,902,008
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. €@t T B (I%%EF

(continued)

Bt

) (%)

il

(b) Company (b) A7
Assets at
fair value Derivatives
Loans and through the used for Available
receivables profit and loss hedging -for-sale Total
NAREE
#FEH
BHR HEFHTA REERH AftHE
FEW 8 BRNEE fTETIR SREE wct
Assets as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BESBERANEE AR®T R ARYBTR AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TR
Balance 31 December 2011 “E—%+ZA=+-H
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESRIEE - - - 221,557 221,557
Derivative financial instruments fTAETA - - 4,365 - 4,365
Trade receivables FENBR 2,256,601 - - - 2,256,601
Prepayments, deposits and BER - FRRBEMNR
other receivables excluding AN EL A EISR
prepayments 3,790,959 - - - 3,790,959
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN 852,012 - - - 852,012
Total 5t 6,899,572 - 4,365 221,557 7,125,494
Liabilities at Other
fair value Derivatives financial
Loans and through the used for liabilities at
receivables profit and loss hedging amortised cost Total
NAREE
HER D -]
BHK HEBTA REESH BATER
P8 BRNEE fTEIRE Htremas @t
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEGERANEE ARBTR ARBTR AR®T R ARET T AR%T R
Balance 31 December 2011 “T—F+ZA=+—-H
Borrowings 3k 30,015,348 - - - 30,015,348
Obligations under finance leases ~ FIEHEAE 16,134,172 - - - 16,134,172
Derivative financial instruments fTETR - - 332,984 - 332,984
Trade payables and notes payable  FEfTERIN M [ 21& 3,480,109 - - - 3,480,109
Other payables and accrued Hib R m&fﬁ} 2R
expenses 10,661,377 - - - 10,661,377
Total st 60,291,006 - 332,984 - 60,623,990
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. £ &t T B (IR (48)
(continued)

(b) Company (continued) (b) 2T (E)
Assets at
fair value Derivatives
Loans and through the used for Avallable
receivables  profit and loss hedging -for-sale Total
YNNI
2R
BRk HEFEHA F{EERM A E
FENIR BamEE FTETA SREE it
Assets as per balance sheet RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEBERBNAE ARETFT ARETTT ARETFT AREFT ARETTT
Balance 31 December 2010 —E-TF+-_A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets [ HESREE - - - 223,729 228,729
Derivative financial instruments ETR - - 71,051 - 71,051
Trade receivables FEUER TR 2,545,900 - - - 2,545,900
Prepayments, deposits and BER - ERRBREAR
other receivables excluding AN L A FE ISR
prepayments 5,212,915 - - - 5,212,915
Cash and cash equivalents e RBSZEY 851,283 - - - 851,283
Total st 8,610,098 = 71,051 223,729 8,904,878
Liabilities at Other
fair value Derivatives financial
Loans and through the used for liabilities at
receivables  profit and loss hedging  amortised cost Total
AR ERE
2R DABEER
fERR HEHA RIEESM AT 26
FENIR il 0 =N fTETE HtiemaR @t
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BERBRAMAE ARBFT ARBETFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Balance 31 December 2010 “T-TF+-A=+—-A
Borrowings E& 30,589,115 - - - 30,589,115
Obligations under finance leases ~ EEFEARE 15,877,872 - - - 15,877,872
Derivative financial instruments FTETA - - 316,407 - 316,407
Trade payables and notes payable  FE BRI M S Z1E 4,701,951 - - - 4,701,951
Other payables and accrued HivENHRERER
expenses 10,442,380 - - - 10,442,380
Total &5t 61,611,318 - 316,407 - 61,927,725
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40. SHARE CAPITAL

40. R

,] 84 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

Group and Company

KERAT
2011 2010
—ZT——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Registered, issued and fully paid of RMB1.00 each 5t » 2317 R 2 & IR AR
1.007T
A share listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange ELEBAFZ S ETHAR(TAR]D)
(“A Shares”) 7,782,214 7,782,214
— Tradable shares held by CEA Holding with — P ERMEERFENARE G
trading moratorium R 4,831,375 4,831,375
— Tradable shares held by other investors with —HIREERF BN ERE G
trading moratorium (Note) ik () 288,889 288,889
— Tradable shares without trading moratorium —ERERERBRGER)
(Note) 2,661,950 2,661,950
H shares listed on the Stock Exchange of EERBARZ S EmHHR(THER )
Hong Kong Limited (“H shares”) 3,494,325 3,494,325
— Tradable shares held by CES Global Holding — R ZER (EE)BR AR
(Hong Kong) Limited with trading moratorium A AR E SR E 1,437,375 1,437,375
— Tradable shares without trading moratorium —ERE R REK 2,056,950 2,056,950
11,276,539 11,276,539

Pursuant to articles 49 and 50 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
both the listed A shares and the listed H shares are all registered
ordinary shares and carry equal rights.

Note:

On 28 January 2010, as approved by the Company’s shareholders meeting
and China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”), the Company issued
1,694,838,860 A Shares of the Company to the shareholders of Shanghai Airlines
in exchange for all the existing issued shares of Shanghai Airlines. Of the total
1,694,838,860 shares issued, 288,889,000 shares were issued to an investor
with lock up period of 29 months from 25 January 2010. The fair value of the A
Shares issued amounted to approximately RMB9.1 billion, of which RMB1.7 billion
is recorded as share capital and the remaining RMB7.4 billion is recorded as share
premium.

REARBNARZERELN AR TE - SEIFRE
B~ ABUA R HECS R e BB = A RIS 4R o

HIE

BARIRRAERTRABESIE  NARR=ZZE—ZTF—A
Z+ N\ Bm_ MBS R AL #1T1,604,838,860% A% + FA LAMRER
EMRHOBE TR EHRMD o FEE FE1TH1,694,838,860 R AR
7 288,889,000/% AR E A% + BRE HI A B201041 A25H 29
BA - ZRBEITHARBREN R BEHAARBIET  HF
ABRBATEITET AR » ARBTABITE AREEE o




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

41. RESERVES A1, @
Group
£
Capital Hedging
Share reserve reserve Other Accumulated
Premium (Note (b)) (Note 38) reserves losses Total
BAREE =3
RARE (E%(0) (KzE38) HibfE R 23R Ch

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTRT ARMTRT ARMTR ARETR AR%T:R

At 1 January 2010 —Z-TF-A-B#&H 10,347,872 (720,057) (137,476) 76,010  (17,913,496)  (8,347,147)
Unrealised loss on cashflow R EHNAELER

hedges (Note 38) (Fiz£38) - - (17,016) - - (17,016)
Fair value movements of AR EREH DA BES

available for sale investments - - - (534) - (634)
Fair value movements of BEME NN IHLE

available for sale investments BRENDL BEED

held by associates - - - 1,543 - 1,543

Issuance of new shares for the UrEs BRI TR ATHIAR
acquisition of Shanghai Airlines (FizE40)

(Note 40) 7,399,913 — — — — 7,399,913
Profit attrioutable to equity KRR BEREGHE

shareholders of the company - - - - 4,957,989 4,957,989
At 31 December 2010 “T-TF+ZA=+—A

Fo3 17,747,785 (720,057) (154,492) 77,019 (12,955,507) 3,994,748

At1 January 2011 —E——5-F-P&H 17,747,785 (720057)  (154,492) 77,019 (12,055507) 3,094,748
Unrealised loss on cashflow R ERNAELER

hedges (Note 38) (Fiz£38) - - (132,446) - - (132,446)
Fair value movements of HEERENAL BEES

available for sale investments - - - 486 - 486
Fair value movements of BEMENRFENHLE

available for sale investments RERNAREEES

held by associates - - - (2,701) - (2,701)
Profit attributable to equity ARAERFEEEGFE

shareholders of the company - - - - 4,575,732 4,575,732
Accumulated losses shared by LhEPNGIEEE e e

non-controlling interests Hipapi:opek) it

after capital injection in (FfizE22(b))

a subsidiary (Note 22(b)) 426,439 - - - - 426,439
Acquisition of non-controlling BB A B e M

interests in subsidiaries ftE (12,905) - - - - (12,905)
At 31 December 2011 —Z——F+-A=1+-H

Fen 18,161,319 (720,057) (286,938) 74,804 (8,379,775) 8,849,353
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41. RESERVES (continued) 4. B (E)
Company
DE
Capital Hedging
Share reserve reserve  Accumulated

Premium (Note (b)) (Note 38) losses Total

EXfRE ENRE
AR E (FEE(b) (Hizk38) 2 ER ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETR AR®T R ARETR AR®T R
At 1 January 2010 —E-ZF—-F—BEH 10,347,872 (720,057) (187476) (15276108 (5,785,769

Unrealised gain on cashflow hedges RBEEHMAERKE

(Note 38) (Fiz£38) - - (17,016) - (17,016)
Issuance of new shares for e ERBRD B TRTAR

the acquisition of Shanghai Airlines (FizE40)

(Note 40) 7,399,913 - - - 7,399,913
Profit for the year FEFE - - - 4,422,353 4,422,353
At 31 December 2010 “E-ZEFZA=1-A

s 17,747,785 (720,057) (154,492)  (10,853,755) 6,019,481
At 1 January 2011 —Z——E-A-B&E 17,747,785 (720,057) (154,492)  (10,853,755) 6,019,481
Unrealised gain on cashflow hedges ReEHNATR NG

(Note 38) (Hizk38) = = (132,446) = (132,446)
Transaction with non-controlling interest ~ JER IR Z 5 197,335 - - - 197,335
Profit for the year EERHE - - - 4,522,687 4,522,687
At 31 December 2011 —T——%+-A=1+—H

Feees 17,945,120 (720,057) (286,938) (6,331,068) 10,607,057
Notes: TR
(a) Statutory and Discretionary Reserves (a) ZEREEAES
Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Companies’ Articles of Association, RIEFREBERERARRNARER » AR RABIZRT

each of the Group companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit for the
year, as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to a statutory
common reserve fund until the fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group
company’s registered capital. The statutory common reserve fund can be
used to make good previous years’ losses, if any, and to issue new shares
to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings or to increase
the par value of the shares currently held by them, provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Each of the Group companies is permitted to transfer 5% of its profit
for the year as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to a
discretionary common reserve fund. The transfer to this reserve is subject to
approval at shareholders’ meetings.

No profit appropriation by the Company to the statutory and discretionary
reserve fund was made for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: nil).

(b) Capital reserve

,] 86 China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited ~ Annual Report 2011

Capital reserve represents the difference between the fair value of the net
assets injected and the nominal amount of the Company’s share capital
issued in respect of a Group restructuring carried out in June 1996 for the
purpose of the Company’s listing.

(b)

B &R E N FEATIHEM10%EAEE AR
& EERAHESHEBBENEMAELRNE0% - EAEATH
SR BN AR FREER - IRARR A R AR BT
P T BCER SOE AR IR B T AR (D VN (E - (B RHR V45
AR DR M AR A A25% °

ARR A B E &R B A FEAFREE5% R
AEBAES - ZEERACRRAGRERBE -

ARRREE—E——F T A=+ —HILFEER#T
EHEBEEREBRAER(ZT—FF  §) -

BAERE

REBR—ANNRFRAER LT B M BAREITH
BAREERFEEAABENZRREANGHE -
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42. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 2. FEFERE
In December 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with a third R-E——F+-F AEBEEF=FHRNEIER:] 1%
party to dispose certain aircrafts and related engines in the forthcoming % EARKI2(E AR EHER AR S HE TR
12 months in consideration of high maintenance costs of these aircrafts. M - N —_T——F+_-_A=+—H - ;HER
The aircrafts and engines with an aggregated carrying value of RMB482 BEEGEERMFEAAREAL 2B TH) Ll TR K&
million (after the impairment loss charge) has been classified as assets BERSBERHAFELE - REBZEATEE -
held for sale at 31 December 2011. An impairment loss charge of AREEY FMRE KRBT IRREERBARE
approximately RMB612 million was made against these aircrafts and 6.1218 7T (f4FE10) ©

engines by reference to the contracted selling price (Note 10) for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

The assets held for sale as at 31 December 2010 were disposed in 2011 R-ZE—ZF+-_A=+—BNREaFEEEER
and the selling price approximates its carrying value as at 31 December T FEERE REEREEREEERLD -
2010.

43.NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 43. A4 nekMr
STATEMENT

(a) Cash generated from operations () KEELNRTRE
2011 2010
———% —T-35
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARBTIT
Profit before income tax BRI 4,840,701 5,417,812
Adjustments for: FHEIER -
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERREREVEE
equipment and intangible assets e 6,911,989 6,726,651
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant WIE - B NRENRE
and equipment (Yezs) /18K (35,851) 15,893
Loss on disposals of investment in associates BREE ARMEL = 1,013
Gain on disposals of assets-held-for-sale HEREHFEEEN NG (2,585) -
Gain on disposals of investment in B & M A A8 as
subsidiaries (230) (45,147)
Share of results of associates N (75,435) (39,228)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities BEEENRER (31,437) (28,154)
Amortisation of lease prepayments SEAREiEN=E7¢: 5] aM,777 31,186
Net foreign exchange gains SFIE 5 Wam (1,872,369) (1,074,796)
Gain arising from fair value movements of SRITETENAREEBE
derivative financial instruments (49,183) (915,804)
Consumption of flight equipment spare parts AR BT 2 HFE 739,663 601,407
Impairment provision trade and other UK BR 5% N EL A PR M ROR (B
receivables 161,048 1,545
Provision for post-retirement benefits RINEABRIZEE 478,502 479,514
Provision for return condition checks for T EREGR RIS e
aircraft under operating leases 695,415 586,364
Impairment loss BERERX 638,316 405,391
Interest income FEUA (151,633) (80,588)
Interest expense FMEER 1,462,727 1,501,900
Operating profit before working capital changes — &3& & A& &) 514 Z F))H 13,751,415 13,584,959
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43. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 43. A#E4 T2 XU (8)

STATEMENT (continued)

(@) Cash generated from operations (continued)

(@) RETHELENRSRE(H)

2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Changes in working capital EEEREH
Flight equipment spare parts AL BT (1,023,437) (776,736)
Trade receivables FEULAR TR 104,977 (202,667)
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERER - R R E AL IR 668,453 337,365
Sales in advance of carriage FHEEXK 619,794 846,502
Trade payables and notes payables TR R R (1,601,517) (3,418,055)
Other payables and accrued expenses Hip R RFERE A 1,680,679 292,530
Other long-term liabilities HihRHABE 86,728 569,577
Provision for return condition checks for KRR ERMRB RIS ER
aircraft under operating leases (316,686) (305,550)
Staff housing allowances B T Bk (144,272) (166,871)
Post-retirement benefit obligations RIRBEFIEE (152,358) (131,581)
Operating lease deposits LEHHERS 107,643 110,366
30,004 (2,845,120)
Cash generated from operations REEENRERE 13,781,419 10,739,839
(b) Non-cash transactions b) FBEERH
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARBTFT
Financing activities not affecting cash: FEHESETH :
Issuances of new shares acquisition of W BE | RRR () i B A%
Shanghai Airlines - 9,118,433
Finance lease obligations incurred for LA BT E 5 = B AR
acquisition of aircraft 4,181,145 1,455,152
4,181,145 10,573,585
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44. COMMITMENTS A4, G
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAXRZHES
The Group and the Company had the following capital AEERARRNERNS LEARDT ¢
commitments:
Group Company
&5 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F T -TF —E——fF —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFIT AR¥TR AREFIT
Authorised and contracted for: ERERETLH
— Aircraft, engines and flight — TR - BB
equipment (Note) AT (5 108,297,645 96,262,948 103,173,999 90,624,858
— Other property, plant and —HMmE - #Ek
equipment B 568,565 844,855 495,000 458,000

108,866,210 97,107,808 103,668,999 91,082,858

Authorised but not contracted for: B B RET 44T ¢

— Other property, plant and —HE - s R
equipment BNl 3,193,495 3,282,093 2,306,832 2,629,793
— Investment — K& - - 1,125,000 1,045,500
3,193,495 3,282,093 3,431,832 3,675,293
112,059,705 100,389,896 107,100,831 94,758,151
Note: 4
Contracted expenditures for the above aircraft, engines and flight equipment, DA TR - BB R RTTR G B FE BRI E & B &
including deposits prior to delivery, subject to future inflation increases built I - BRSO NBRARE
into the contracts were expected to be paid as follows: MEE) - BESEYIRAOT ¢
Group Company
£8 AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-TF —E2——F —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT ARETR AREBTT
Within one year —FR 17,934,594 16,670,989 17,640,003 15,712,221
In the second year F_F 22,248,728 21,732,824 20,060,026 20,719,021
In the third year E=5F 29,884,980 24,056,335 27,986,506 22,402,355
In the fourth year FEE 31,362,018 22,189,380 30,620,138 20,957,405
Over four years BB 6,867,325 11,613,420 6,867,326 10,833,856

108,297,645 96,262,948 103,173,999 90,624,858
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 Rk B et

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

44. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)
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Operating lease commitments

44, EGHE(E)

(b)

As at the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had
commitments under operating leases to pay future minimum lease

rentals as follows:

RS SR

REEBERA  ARERARAHEE M
HEAIN T RN FAG -

Group Company
&5 NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—F——-F —T-THFE —BE-—-F —IT-ITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARKETTT AR¥F R ARETT
Aircraft, engines and flight TR BENERRIT
equipment B3
Within one year —FR 3,750,437 3,814,179 1,680,735 1,900,096
In the second year FoF 3,545,992 3,427,740 1,529,785 1,692,370
In the third to fifth year inclusive FE-FEERF
(BEEEWF) 8,256,751 8,520,237 3,409,279 4,011,890
After the fifth year RFLAE 5,368,641 7,829,784 1,541,119 2,555,671
20,921,821 23,591,940 8,160,918 10,160,027
Land and buildings T RIEF
Within one year —FR 241,693 216,771 31,447 19,682
In the second year FoF 212,170 187,636 28,314 14,754
In the third to fifth year inclusive E-FEERF
(BEEEWF) 335,454 460,368 48,201 30,884
After the fifth year RFLAE 2,767,760 2,705,609 53,502 26,696
3,657,077 3,570,384 161,464 91,916
24,478,898 27,162,324 8,322,382 10,251,943




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by CEA Holding, which directly owns 42.84%
of the Company’s shares as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 42.84%). In
addition, through CES Global Holding (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CEA Holding, CEA Holding owns 17.09% of the
Company’s shares as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 17.09%).

(@) Nature of related parties that do not control or controlled by
the Group:

Name of related party
BREABALTER

A5, BB A TR S

AEBBHPBEEMERZES - R=FT—F+=A
=+—HB PEEMEEEEIFE AR F42.84%
ZHRE(ZZ—ZF : 4284%) ° LHh R=F
——&+-A=+—8 TEREMEEBRBEE2E
MiE A R RME R (BB BRAREE A AR
17.090% M RE(ZT—FF : 17.09%) °

(a) EAIRNZAEEEFZINEMEREERS
BAEE AL -

Relationship with the Group
BRAKERER

Eastern Finance

R AT

Kunming Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. (“Kunming Dongmei”)

EREMERERR AR ([RARE])

Dongmei Travel

R iE

Xian Dongmei Aviation Travel Co., Ltd. (“Xian Dongmei”)

BARREMEREGRAF([ALRE])

Eastern Import & Export

FRAE L A

Wheels & Brakes

e A==

Technologies Aerospace

BHEZFM

Shanghai P&W

EBEE

Shanghai Eastern Air Catering Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Catering”)

PERFMERMBRAR( MR

Eastern Advertising

RAELE

CEA Development Co. Ltd. (“CEA Development”)

EBRAMEBXAR(RMEED

Shanghai Eastern Aviation Equipment Manufacturing Corporation
(“Eastern Aviation”)

PERAMERFEREAR AR ([ RMEEEE )

Shanghai Hute Aviation Tech. Co. Ltd. (“Shanghai Hute”)

PEREMERMBRAR ([ EEE])

Shanghai Eastern International Aviation Travel Co., Ltd.
(“Eastern Aviation Travel”)

BERF MR IRE ER A RN ) ([ SRR k2% |)

Eastern China Kaiya System Integration (“China Kaiya”)

FERMERINERREKAR AR (FERNE])

CEA Northwest Co., Ltd. (“CEA Northwest”)

PERMEREEL AT ([RMEEFEIL S A ])

Controlled by the same parent company
ZR—SATES

Controlled by the same parent company
ZR—SATES

Associate of the company
RRRZEE R T

Controlled by the same parent company
ZR—SATES

Associate of the company
RRRZEE R T

Jointly controlled entity of the Company
RRRZEERE]

Jointly controlled entity of the Company
RRRZEERE]

Associate of the company
RRRZEE R T

Controlled by the same parent company
2R —RAFHEH]

Associate of the company
RRRZEE R T

Controlled by the same parent company
2R —RAFHEH

Controlled by the same parent company

ZR—SATES
Controlled by the same parent company
2R —RAFHEH

Controlled by the same parent company

2R —RAFHEH
Controlled by the same parent company
ZR—SATES
Controlled by the same parent company

FR— GRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 Rk B et

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Related party transaction

45. AN LR 5 (&)

(b) BEAEALXRS

Income/(expense or payments)

WA (BARXZTSEE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2011 2010
RBHME BERAEAL —E——fF —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
With CEA Holding or companies directly or
indirectly held by CEA Holding:
B (58] SR 1 5 (88 = A R R A 5 B R P R 4R Y
YN
Interest income on deposits at an average rate of Eastern Finance 46,242 17,658
0.50% per annum (2010: 0.36% per annum) BETS
A BHA - FFEFH0.50%
—T—FF  FFHRK0.36%)
Interest expense on loans at average rate of Eastern Finance (561,117) (61,162)
5.39% per annum (2010: 4.47% per annum) WAMET TS
ERFEZ L - FH%5.39% CEA Holding (476) (8,229)
(ZZ—26F : FFIK447%) FERMEE
Commission expense on air tickets sold on Kunming Dongmei (11,218) (12,532)
behalf of the Group, at rates ranging BREREE
from 3% to 9% of the value of tickets sold** Dongmei Travel (8,285) (5,173)
BEHERS  HEZNSENS%ZEI% ISLEESS
Xian Dongmei (858) (1,092)
FAERE
Handling charges of 0.1% to 2% for purchase of Eastern Import & Export (57,682) (59,636)
aircraft, flight equipment, flight equipment WO
spare parts, other property, plant and equipment
and repairs for aircraft and engines™
BERWE - RITRME  RITREZHREMETEEE KR
REEEMZ NN FEE - BEERN01%%E2%
Repairs and maintenance expense for aircraft Wheels & Brakes (52,098) (63,949)
and engines** Gl
TR BB RIS RS E B Technologies Aerospace (169,698) (176,392)
BHRFH
Shanghai P&W (1,170,567) (831,013)
labich= )
Supply of food and beverages* Shanghai Catering and (737,827) (544,487)
BREEEHERHER its subsidiaries
EEMRREWB AR
Advertising expense** Eastern Advertising (18,202) (20,209)
BEEA RA{EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Related party transaction (continued)

45 ERABA TR 5 (E)

(b) BEEALXRZ(H)

Income/(expense or payments)

WA (EARZASE)
Nature of transaction Related party 2011 2010
REME BERAEAL —E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFT
Media royalty fee** Eastern Advertising 12,900 12,000
HERTTREERE Rm{EE
Automobile maintenance service, aircraft maintenance, = CEA Development (102,614) (89,799)
providing transportation automobile and other WMEX
products™*
AEERERY - REEEEERY - fEEREE
B R A DA Rt R
Equipment maintenance fee** Eastern Aviation - (2,974)
FX R RS RS Rk RS
Shanghai Hute (39,662) (39,958)
g
Land and building rental CEA Holding (55,140) (65,140)
MHHE? B R SR B
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries CEA Holding (47,211) -
KRR BT B8 A B A SR M A = B R SR B
Acquisition of cargo business Great Wall Airlines (357,261) -
WS BT REMZEER AR
Disposal of investment in subsidiaries*** Shanghai Catering - 24,064
S BN A EEMER
Eastern Import & Export - 57,753
RATEL A
Eastern Advertising - 27,264

RAER

The Group’s pricing policies on products purchased from related

parties are based on mutually agreed prices between contract parties.

ok

The Group’s pricing policies on services provided by and to related

*k

parties are based on the mutually agreed prices between contract

parties.

***  The Company’s pricing policies on transfer of equity are based on the

valuation prices.

ANER B BRAB BB 0 MV E Y (B AR R—AE T 5 {
TRERE EREETT A RERE ©

1=

AEBEZBAB D RENSHENEREED
SERER FEETT T

AE BRI T B R BRI R E

IREERE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR B ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (122 B 81 15 3R & 4 Bl 4R 82 )
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)  45. BR8EA T+ 5 (&)

(c) Balances with related companies (c) BEEEALERE
(@)  Amounts due from related companies () EREEELFIHE
Group Company
&5 AF
Nature Company 2011 2010 2011 2010
HE AR BB —E——F —E-TF —E——fF —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTx AREBTT AR%®TR AREBTT
Trade receivables Kunming Dongmei
JREUTBR TR AR 211 12,879 - 12,879
Eastern Aviation Travel
R A B B e 8 2B 11,012 11,012 11,012 11,012
China Cargo
REM - - 1,215,770 1,480,721
Others
Efth 2,340 14,099 16,717 20,108
13,563 37,990 1,243,499 1,524,720
Prepayments, Eastern Import & Export
deposits and Rp#ER O 218,753 63,138 101,846 60,555
other receivables China Kaiya
B - FRK ERHD 16,189 18,605 16,189 18,605
E fth IR CEA Holding
Fh B B A AR - 43,282 - 43,282
China Cargo
REM - - 553,860 651,176
CEA Wuhan
ez - - 628,468 820,302
New Shanghai Airlines
R - - 688,897 627,716
Yunnan Airlines
RER - - 254,872 -
Others
EAh 14,923 27,706 82,093 164,484
249,865 152,731 2,326,225 2,386,120
All the amounts due from related companies are trade in FERKEREARITIA  2RESHIE
nature, interest free and payable within normal credit terms B CAEERAETRESER —HKWIE
given to trade customers. BERA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR By ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B 81 15 5 & Bl 4R 82)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)  45. BR8iEA T+ 5 (&)

(c) Balances with related companies (continued) (c) BBEEALHREGE)
(i) Amounts due to related companies (i) ENEEELNGIHE
Group Company
&5 AT
Nature Company 2011 2010 2011 2010
HE AEEE —E——F —T—TF —E——fF —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTIT AR%¥TR ARETET

Trade payables and Eastern Import & Export
notes payable Rin#EH O 747,179 375,602 652,287 265,765
FERBR R R B IR Shanghai P&W
EEE 278,778 - 278,778 —
Shanghai Catering
HERE 120,260 23,743 14,344 20,982
CEA Jiangsu
RAULE - - 251,506 440,677
China Cargo
FREM - - 869,546 568,998
New Shanghai Airlines
M - - 681,745 947,258
Others
Hh 70,095 78,859 176,884 196,847
1,216,312 478,204 2,925,090 2,440,527
Other payables and CEA Holding
accrued expenses FEREEMEE 87,115 69,864 37,582 69,864
HiENRKRTEIRER  Eastern Air Overseas
(Hong Kong)
Corporation Limited
RAUEINEB)BER AR - - 692,924 -
CEA Northwest
REEmEIL AT - 8,000 - 8,000
China Cargo
&R - — 187,309 341,540
New Shanghai Airlines
M - - 73,616 192,463
Others
Hith 9,475 5,777 109,723 145,306
96,590 83,641 1,101,154 757,173
Except for the amounts due to CEA Holding, which are FIB R ABERARKIA - BT REAH
reimbursement in nature, all other amounts due to related BERMERMRBBARBRIN 2REH
companies are trade in nature. All amounts due to related HE - FTEENBEEARNEZAT
companies are interest free and payable within normal credit EERLTRESEF—BEMNEZER
terms given by trade creditors. B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR B ot

(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 B% B 76 2R 25 2 Bl R 52
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE =T ——F+-A=+—HItFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)  45. BR8EA T+ 5 (&)

(c) Balances with related companies (continued) (c) BEBEEALHREE)
(i) Short-term deposits and borrowings with associates and (i) B E L\ A] R A 2 R A AR B AT B A A
CEA Holding R B
Average interest rate Group Company
SRENiES £E AT
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

B 2T ZB-—-f “T-TF =ZB--§ “T-%F
RMB’000 RVB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥TT ARBTRT ARETI

Short-term deposits (included 5 HiTF%

in Prepayments, Deposits (BHEEREMN
and Other Receivables) TRk EmEREA)
“Eastern Finance” [ RAEH7 0.50% 0.36%  2,204510 1,137,218 232,236 27,390
Short-term loans REER
(included in Borrowings) (REERZA)
“Eastern Finance” [ REEE 5.02% 4.26% 176,425 1,286,227 - 1,286,227
Long-term loans REBER
(included in Borrowings) (REEEZRN)
“Eastern Finance” [RmE 5.64% 5.00% 135,000 295,000 - 200,000
Long-term loans REER
(included in Borrowings) (REEEZA)
“CEA Holding” [HERMESR ] 5.18% 5.18% - 32,000 - -
(d) Guarantees by holding company (d) EZRAIMEHWIER
As at 31 December 2011, bank loans of the Group and Company RZFE—F+ZA=+—0 ' AEEEKR
with an aggregate amount of RMB228 million and RMB85 million ARHAFEEMERERNRITERS A
respectively (2010: RMB575 million and RMB85 million) were AR¥228E TR ARKE0SSEIL(ZZ—F
guaranteed by CEA Holding (Note 32). F : AR¥ES. 7587 K% 0.85(8 7T (FI5E32) ©
(e) Key management compensation (e) SRITHAEME
2011 2010
—T——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Directors and supervisors (Note 9(a)) EEZREZ(MEEER) 2,885 2,081
Senior management =RITHBAB 2,740 3,422
5,625 5,503
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards) (12 5% B1 & 3R &5 2 Bl 4R 52
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

46. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 46. ERARTEIR A B
The Directors regard CEA Holding, a state-owned enterprise established ARBNEEATEEMEER  —KAPEKIA
in the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company. BB EARR RRKIER AT
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
eI B A

The following consolidated financial information is extracted from the £t & GBI &R B NEBRFE T E e EBEEH
consolidated financial statements of the Group, prepared under the PRC &4t FEHRE
Accounting Standards.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME f£8{LA&63F %
STATEMENT

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards) (Fr B F 2 a R R)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE_F——F+t_A=1+—HIFE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Revenue =E2 PN 83,974,505 74,958,108
Less: Cost of operation A (70,447,837) (60,726,601)
Taxes and surcharges BB RN (1,803,091) (1,462,770)
Selling and distribution expenses HEEBA (5,406,103) (5,324,601)
General and administrative expense EIEER (2,576,470) (2,656,326)
Finance expenses, net MBER  FE 441,072 (431,289)
Impairment loss BERBEEX (799,364) (427,061)
Add: Fair value gain e AR BEZEKES 86,851 833,384
Investment income B W 128,122 119,363
Operating profit EERE 3,597,685 4,882,207
Add: Non-operating income o EEINEA 1,598,522 1,093,164
Less: Non-operating expenses o BEIT (28,493) (134,278)
Total profit s zs 5,167,714 5,841,093
Less: Income tax B TSt E R (265,227) (188,177)
Net profit FFE 4,902,487 5,702,916
Attribute to: BER:
— Equity shareholders of the Company — KA EIEREEE 4,886,702 5,380,375
— Non-controlling interests — JEPR A MR 15,785 322,541
4,902,487 5,702,916
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

fIEF B E R

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

BeaHBEERER
(AL BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2011 R E—— = = —HIFEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr ARETF T
Assets EE
Total current assets MEVEE 13,712,403 11,720,627
Long-term investment RHENRERE 1,498,881 1,450,375
Fixed assets and construction in progress BEEEEREETIR 84,651,280 75,506,263
Goodwiill EE 8,509,030 8,509,030
Intangible assets and non-current assets EEEENMNEMIEREEE 3,831,131 3,579,627
Deferred tax assets BIEFTSRI A= 12,427 44,195
Total assets EES 112,215,152 100,810,117
Liabilities and equity EERBRERER
Current liabilities mEEE 43,664,571 39,167,783
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 46,375,842 45,014,343
Deferred tax liabilities BEFTERAE 29,326 51,814
Total Liabilities 8EE65 90,069,739 84,233,940
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFREE 20,437,377 15,577,109
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS 1,708,036 999,068
Total equity iR 22,145,413 16,576,177
Total liabilities and equity EERRRERET 112,215,152 100,810,117
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

IS B E R

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS

The Group’s accounting policies, which conform with IFRS, differ in
certain aspects from PRC Accounting Regulations. Differences between
IFRS and PRC Accounting Standards which have a significant effect
on the consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company and consolidated net assets of the Group are summarised as

B smE R EREES
TERINEAER

AEERBREEI B RELRNES T HEEREE
Xt ERFEEZR - BRUBHMSER NP EE
FE AN ERH AR RRERAERIGTER
REEAHFEENERZBEIMT

follows:
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARTR ARETFT
Consolidated profit attributable to AATRERSEEELEHRE
equity shareholders of the Company
As stated in accordance with PRC BERF RS E S ERZR
Accounting Standards 4,886,702 5,380,375
Impact of IFRS and other adjustments: BIBR B FS R A 2 Al R H A AR A
e
— Difference in depreciation for flight —HRAEHRATRAERE
equipment due to difference PR T 3E A TR T SR A AT B Y
depreciation lives used previously =8 (@) = (74,183)
— Difference in depreciation and impairment — RN R AT F G R 3E A TR
charges for aircraft and engines due HEZE B AT EE B (B 1R K
to different depreciation lives =R (b) (9,288) (9,582)
— Provision for post-retirement benefits —IRIKERRFI R (© (326,145) (347,936)
— Reversal of additional amortisation — R 15 R AR (I E XY
due to the revaluation surplus BN E
relating to land use rights e 8,420 8,420
— Deferred tax adjustments —IREFIB R @ 998 4,686
— Non-controlling interests — e R R (h) 15,045 (3,791)
As stated in accordance with IFRS AR R BRI AR B 75 S o5 2R U D1 7R 4,575,732 4,957,989
Consolidated net assets attributable to A B#EXEEEELEEHST
equity shareholders of the Company BE
As stated in accordance with PRC BEF B E ST ERDR
Accounting Standards 20,437,377 15,577,109
Impact of IFRS and other adjustments: B B s S A 22 B S EL A FREE Y
g
— Difference in depreciation and impairment — AR AT {E B AR 35 A,
charges for aircraft and engines due TR B AT B LR E R
to different depreciation lives KHWER (o) 74,859 84,147
— Provision for post-retirement benefits — R R ES (© (2,943,428) (2,617,283)
- Intangibles assets (Goodwill) —EREE(HE) (d) 2,760,665 2,760,665
— Reversal of revaluation surplus relating to — R EH b PR RS I E
land use rights HEHnT 2 @ (343,786) (352,206)
— Others —Efth () 79,393 79,393
— Deferred tax adjustments —RERHAE ©)] 31,991 30,993
- Non-controlling interests — IR RS (h) 28,821 (291,531)
As stated in accordance with IFRS BRI B R B 15 &S 285 = 20,125,892 15,271,287
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
el 15 A

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(@) Prior to 15 February 2006, under the PRC Accounting Standards,
rotables are classified as current assets and the costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 5 years. Under
IFRS, rotables are accounted for as property, plant and equipment
and is depreciated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost to
their residual value over their estimated useful lives and annual
provision for scrap was made. Since 1 January 2007, under the
PRC Accounting Standards, rotables have been classified as
property, plant and equipment and is depreciated over 10 years.
Under IFRS, the useful life of rotables was also changed to 10
years with no further annual provision for scraps in 2007. This
change of accounting estimate was applied prospectively. Despite
the useful life of rotables has been unified under IFRS and the
PRC Accounting Standards from 2007, the carrying amounts of
rotables at the time of the change were different under IFRS and
the PRC Accounting Standards. As at 31 December 2010, these
differences in carrying amounts have been fully eliminated.

(b)  Under the PRC Accounting Standards, on or before 30 June
2001, depreciation of aircraft was calculated to write off their costs
on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of 10 to 15
years to their residual values of 3%. With effect from 1 July 2001,
depreciation of aircraft under the PRC Accounting Standards is
calculated to write off their costs on a straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives of 15 to 20 years to their residual values of
5% of costs, the change was applied prospectively which resulted
in the difference in the carrying amounts under IFRS and the
PRC Accounting Standards. These differences will be reduced
progressively in the coming years, and will be fully eliminated when
the related assets are fully depreciated or disposed.

(¢)  Under the PRC Accounting Standards, employees’ post-retirement
benefits are recognised upon actually incurred. Under IFRS,
such post-retirement benefits under defined benefit schemes are
required to be recognised over the employees’ service period using
projected unit credit method.

() BB SR R R E S

ATERIMEAEZERGE)

REFEEEEFEN  RoTERF_HA
THBZAE  SERSEHERRBEED
R WIRSFIAE LA T B - RIBEIER
BBHERLL - SEREMHEREEEET
BRI EHRITE - WE Z BT AR AR A
FTRME - WABGORIZIERT I (£ A F R
WEHFRRBELEE - B _TTLF—H—
Bt ERRECEEHAELT  SEREN
EREEBESIRIIZ0FFHRITE - £H
BRUBHREENT - SERAEENFEFR
TN EFERAI10F - XA FRR—ARRE
A o AN BT E SR E R R b
R MEERERAT ARERERRE -
BN E RS D B g R KRR
P HRERER TESTBORE R B FHfRME
BETR WBREFEFRE_ZTLFER
— ENFELANER R -T-TFE+—
A=1—R  ZEZENEEEEST2HER °

REFEEEEF LN RoTE—FXHA
=+ BAT - R B B O 4T B A B AR AR
E3BMNEERIZI0E165F 2 At AlERFR
RERERTE BT —FtA—H
A - TR N B B AT B AR AR R 6% B (E
1% - RIFT AR A R16E205FAHRITE -
U8 SRR B AEBR IR - AT E
MEEEFHEAREREIRETELES
12 R 0 B T3 £ [0 R B %5 S o5 R B ) BR
HFETR - ZEZEREESRFEPERH
B TRAENBEEREXREMERT
A2 °

REBEFEEEEFEN - B TRAKREMNR
ERRBEAR AR - RIZEEBR M BREEN -
WEE B EBBAETE TR B TRINEZEH
BB IRBFHANEL DA EHTRLR -
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

fIEF I E R

(A) SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) AND PRC ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(@)
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The recognition and measurement of the fair values of the
acquisition costs and identifiable assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Airlines acquired are different under IFRS and the PRC Accounting
Standards, which result in difference in the intangibles/goodwill
recognised arising from the acquisition.

Under the PRC Accounting Standards, land use rights injected by
the parent company as capital contribution are stated at valuation
less accumulated amortisation. Under IFRS, land use rights are
recorded as prepaid operating leases at historical cost which was
nil at the time of listing.

In addition of the above, the application of IFRS differs in certain
other respects from the PRC Accounting Standards.

This represents the corresponding deferred tax effects related to
the items above.

With effective from 1 January 2010, loss for the period is shared by
non — controlling interest (NCI) even if this results in the NCI having
a deficit balance under both PRC Accounting Standards and
IFRS. However, under PRC accounting standards, retrospective
adjustment is required for the change, whereas under IFRS, no
retrospective adjustment is required. As a result, the carrying
amounts of NCI as at 1 January 2010 were different under IFRS
and the PRC Accounting Standards. In addition, differences as
described in (a) to (g) above also have the corresponding impact
on NCI.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARIEH

DIRECTORS

Liu Shaoyong (Chairman)

Ma Xulun (Vice Chairman, President)

Li Yangmun (Director, Vice President)

Luo Zhuping (Director, Company Secretary?)

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu (Independent Non-executive Director)
Wu Xiaogen (Independent Non-executive Director)

Ji Weidong (Independent Non-executive Director)

Shao Ruiqing (Independent Non-executive Director)

SUPERVISORS

Yu Faming (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Yan Taisheng (Supervisor)

Feng Jinxiong (Supervisor)

Liu Jiashun (Supervisor)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Tang Bing (Vice President)

Shu Mingjiang (Vice President)

Wu Yongliang (Vice President, Chief Financial Officer)
Tian Liuwen (Vice President)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Luo Zhuping*

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Liu Shaoyong
Luo Zhuping*

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
http://www.ceair.com

COMPANY’S E-MAIL ADDRESS

ir@ceair.com

* With effect from 6 April 2012, Mr. Luo Zhuping ceased to act as the Company
Secretary and the Authorised Representative; and Mr. Wang Jian and Mr. Ngai
Wai Fung have been appointed as the Joint Company Secretaries, and Mr.
Wang Jian has also been appointed as an Authorised Representative.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AT

AUDITORS

International Auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

Domestic Auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers

Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company
11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

2 Corporate Avenue,
202 Hu Bin Road
Shanghai 200021
PRC

LEGAL ADVISERS

Hong Kong: Baker & McKenzie
USA: Baker & McKenzie
China: Beijing Commerce & Finance Law Office

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Shanghai Branch
China Construction Bank, Shanghai Branch
The Bank of China, Shanghai Branch

SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

The Bank of New York
101 Barclay Street
New York, NY 10286 USA

China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited, Shanghai Branch
166 East Lu Jiazui Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRIEM

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Since 3 July 2009, the principal place of business in Hong Kong has been
changed to Unit B, 31/F., United Centre, 95 Queensway, Hong Kong.

CUSTODIAN FOR LISTED SHARES WITH TRADING
MORATORIUM

China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited,
Shanghai Branch

CHANGE OF BUSINESS LICENSE REGISTRATION

The Company changed its business license registration due to changes in the
registered capital of the Company.

Registered capital of the Company is RMB11,276.539 million at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Business License Registration Number of the Corporation Legal
Person: 310000400111686

Tax Registration Number: 310046741602981
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Shareholders can obtain a copy of the Company’s annual report for the year 2011 through the Internet addresses shown below:

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaeast
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COMPANY PROFILE
RAEST

COMPANY’S REGISTERED CHINESE NAME
H B R 22 R0 A BR A A

COMPANY’S ENGLISH NAME

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

COMPANY’S ABBREVIATED ENGLISH NAME
CEA

COMPANY’S LEGAL ADDRESS
66 Airport Street,

Pudong International Airport,

Shanghai, China

POSTAL CODE
201202

COMPANY’S OFFICE ADDRESS

2550 Honggiao Road,
Shanghai, China

POSTAL CODE
200335

COMPANY’S LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Liu Shaoyong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Luo Zhuping®

COMPANY’S WEBSITE ADDRESS

WwWWw.ceair.com

COMPANY’S E-MAIL ADDRESS

ir@ceair.com

TELEPHONE
(86-21) 6268 6268

FACSIMILE
(86-21) 6268 6116

PLACES OF LISTING
The Shanghai Stock Exchange
Code: 600115

Abbreviation: CEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Code: 00670

The New York Stock Exchange, Inc.
Code: CEA

A With effect from 6 April 2012. Mr. Luo Zhuping ceased to act as the Company
Secretary and the Authorised Representative; and Mr. Wang Jian and Mr. Ngai
Wai Fung have been appointed as the Joint Company Secretaries, and Mr.
Wang Jian has also been appointed as an Authorised Representative.
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